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f P#l-1 1 PROCEEDI_NGS
2 9:04 a.m.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Good morning. We're back on the
;

4 record. I see that the NRC contingent has been augmented'

5 by Mr. Rutberg. Mr. Hoefling, maybe Mr. Rutberg could

6 introduce himself for the record.

7 MR. HOEFLING: Yes, Mr. Chairman. With us today

8 is Mr. Joseph Rutberg, who is Assistant Chief Hearing Counsel

9 for the Office of Executive Legal Director.

10 I have a few preliminary matters that I'd like

11 to address when the Board wishes.

32 JUDGE KELLEY: Did Mr. Rutberg -- Joe, did you

13 bring with you your pleading on certification?
g

(v) 14 MR. RUTBERG: Dick has it.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Excuse me?

16 MR. RUTBERG: Dick has it.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Good. Go on.

- 18 MR. HOEFLING: The mission has been successful.

19 I have two items that I'm going to distribute to the Board

20 and the parties. The first is the NRC Staff's response

21 to Applicants' certification request. The second packet

22 will be the product of the NRC Staff's review of files with

23 respect to FEMA-NRC correspondence. I will distribute the

r~1 24 packet; I'd like to just read the contents of the packet for
V

25 the record so that we know what we hav( .

(>
Q -. '
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f[h ' JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.
v

2 MR. HOEFLING: First, a March 12, 1980 letter to
' ~

3 Harold Denton from J. McConnell of FEMA; then a November
,_ I
('l 4 3, 1980 memo for John McConnell.of FEMA from Brian Grimes

5 of the NRC Staff; a March 4, 1981 memo to John Dickey of

6 FEMA from Brian Grimes of the NRC Staff; a March 30, 1981

*

7 memo to John Dickey of FEMA from Brian Grimes of the NRC

8 Staff; a June 3, 1981 memo to Brian Grimes of the NRC

9 Staff from John Dickey of FEMA; a June 13, 1981 memo for

10 John Dickey of FEMA from Brian Grimes of the NRC Staff; a

11 July 14, 1981 memo for Brian Grimes of the NRC Staff from

12 Robert Jaskey of FEMA; and a July 17, 1981 memo for Brian

13 Grimes of the NRC Staff from Robert Jaskey of FEMA.

( ) 14 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you, Mr. Hoefling. Off

15 the record for just a moment.

16 (Off the record discussion)

17 JUDGE KELLEY: We're back on the record now.
'

18 MR. HOEFLING: Mr. Cha~irman, the Staff's response

19 to the certification reque.|t is not signed at this time,

20 but if it were signed --

21 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Before we get off the
.

12 listing that you just made, this is the results of your

23 reviewing of files for material between you and FEMA

24("} regarding this application, correct?
\s,

25 MR. HOEFLING: That's correct.

p

__ . _. _ ._
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(',7 s 1 JUDGE KELLEY: And are you proposing to turn over( ,)
2 copies?

3 MR. HOEFLING: Yes. I'm going to distribute
(3

' 4 then to the Board and the parties.-

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. I believe I asked you --

6 that's fine. I appreciate your going to this effort -- I

7 believe I asked you whether in addition your files had any

8 material let's say originating with the Applicants to FEMA

9 with copies to you, that kind of material. Did you have any

10 material of that kind?

11 MR. HOEFLING: The Staff considered that category

12 of material and we have nct come up with any of that material .

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. So that Mrs. Gallagher

(( ) 14 and Mr. McClung, as I recall our discussion, you were

15 expressing a desire for various categories of information.

16 At least insofar as you are asking for copies of written

17 matter between FEMA and the Staff, that's what you are getting

18 .this morning from'Mr. Hoefling. ~

! 19 MS. GALLAGHER: Yes. Did I understand Mr. Hoefling

20 to say that there were no communications between Applica.nt

21 and FEMA copied to Staff?

22 JUDGE KELLE7: I asked about written. You can

23 answer the question.

24 MR. HOEFLING: That's correct.
)

25 MS. GALLAGHER: Thank yon

!

c
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'}% 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Right. So that's that aspect of
q.J

2 it. Now did your request extend beyond that? I believe it

3 did, but could you restate it?
I_s)
''

4 MR. MC CLUNC: I'm not sure what you mean exactly

5 by our request, but the - with respect to the NRC Staff

6 that would probably cove: it.

7 JUDGE KELLEY. Right.

8 MR. MC CLUNG: The other aspect we were trying to

9 get ahold of was communications between the Applicant and

10 FEMA, which is not covered by -- -

;

11 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. That's what I meant

12 by your request. I want the record to be clean here. And

13 we've cleaned it up as to the Staff and FEMA by this filing.

((). 14 I don't recall the precise terms of your discussion and our

15 discussion earlier. Are you making a formal request on the

16 record that copies of written correspondence between FEMA

17 and the Applicants be provided to you? ,

.

18 MR. MC CLUNG': . Yes, I am.
~

19 JUDGE KELLEY: Apart from your argument that those

20 communications are in the nature of ex parte communications

21 within the meaning of the Commission's rules, is there any

:

22 other thing that youwould point to as basis for the request?

23 MR. MC CLUNG: You caught me a little off guard

24 here this morning. I wacn' t expecting to 2espond to this.{}
25 But just off the top of my head, I think that due process

O,y

.
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.

1 considerations would require in that the FEMA Board and Agency-~()"'

2 is making a determination which may be or will be used by

3 this Board and the NRC in their final determination with

(Dss 4 respect to off-site emergency planning in this licensing

5 proceeding. And if we cannot see the basis for the action

6 plan and the fixing up of the FEMA problems which are enun-

7 ciated in the interim findings we can't tell what they did

8 and the Applicants' role in there and whether or not, for

9 instance, discussions of this licensing hearing and the

10 impacted nature of this plant had an effect on the actual

11 FEMA review process.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Let's put discussions to one

13 side. Let's do be clear about this if we are going to have

(( ) 14 a motion and we are going to have rulingson it. Whatever got

15 said between the Applicants and FEMA and the NRC Staff has

16 already been said, unless it wasn't recorded -- which I

; 17 assume it wasn't -- there isn't any record of those discus-

18 sions. What I'm asking you about is whether I -- I-under-

19 stand you to be requesting of written matter, notably cor-

20 respondence between the Applicants and FEMA pertaining to

21 the development of their plan. And I'm asking you whether

22 you have a basis above and beyond the argument you earlier

23 made about the ex parta rule, and I understand you are making

24 an argument about due process.

25 I am perhaps catching youa little off guard this

[ |s.

_ _ _ . - - -
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|(?N 1 morning because it wasn't on the agenda, that's true. On

! ' \_)
2 the other hand, it is your request. Let me pass to Mr.

!

3 Pigott and see what their response is to a request of this
,.

. \ /
| 4 kind or if they want to think about it for a day, although' ' '

:

5 it was at least suggested earlier.

6 MR. PIGOTT: It has been suggested earlier and

7 we never thought that there was much, if any, merit to it.

8 The ex parte rule is pretty specific as to what it deals

9 with and it certainly does not deal with conversations at

10 the staff level outside the litigated -- well, with certain

11 exceptions which are mostly policy exceptions by the

12 Commission rather than -- by the Staff -- rather than require-

13 ments under the rule. But this characterization of FEMA

[(_/.

14 findings or FEMA determinations as being bootstrapped up
._

| 15 to the same level as the kind of deliberations addressed in

16 the ex parte rule, to my mind, is just -- it just doesn't
1

| 17 follow.
!

18 Staff makes determinations all the' time in this,

!

| 19 proceeding. We have an SER that is chuck full of determina-
|
| 20 tions of one kind or another. But they don't rise to:the

21 level of the kind of deliberation and decision that is

22 discussed in the ex parte rules. So I am still awaiting

23 Mr. McClung or Mrs. Gallagher's citation of some authority
i

24 and some specification of their grounds for raising this{}
| 25 whole question. To my mind, they are indulging a little bit
i

of very late discovery, and no more than that.
' (.
: (2x
|
L

I

'
_
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i

| p'~~) T2 kl 1 JUDGE KELLEY: 'All right. I don't think, in, \(a
2 the Board's own mind, that we need any further paper on the

3 question. If you want to file anything else on this, I
| (~s,
\>

,

4 5:ould suggest -- well, I would say do it. Do it by the end'

.

5 of the week. And it is a legalistic kind of point. I don't

6 have a law library here, and if we had to decide it, we

7 would decide it, but it seems to me it is the sort of thing

| 8 we can decide, oh, sometime next wes ., early on in the

9 break, so that if it goes against the Applicants they can
|-

10 go look for the papers that are covered, and if it goes in
.

11 favor of the Applicants, that would be the end of that, sub-

12 ject to any appeal you want to make on the point.
I

13 Mr. Hoefling, anything else?
,

[k- 14 MR. HOEFLING: Just anither point with respect
|

| 15 to the certification pleading. It is unexecuted. It is
f

16 going to be executed in Washington and served today, which
|
i

! 17 will clear that problem. I am going to --

i
~

! 18 JUDGE KELLEY: The copy you have got in hand,'

| 19 though, is the same except the signature?

20 MR. HOEFLING: That is correct.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: I think with that understanding

22 you can serve it. That is fine with us.

23 Thank you. I only want to note very briefly

(') 24 that there have been some suggestions off the record that

25 the Board has been slow, even foot dragging on this motion.

N

|

|

|

- _ _
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I

!

. (7 ) k2i 1 And I believe it was served on the 17th of August. Byn

2 mail? Was it served by mail?

3 MR. PIGOTT: The motion was re'ved by expedited()
4 delivery overnight to all Board members that were available

5 on that basis and the parties. The rest were served -- the

6 rest of the service list was served by regular mail.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: But b. press Mail is still mail,

8 correct?

9 MR. PIGOTT: I am not sure if it was Express
,

10 Mail or whether it was a Federal Express type courrier. It

II was a delivery that was calculated and supposedly guaranteed

12 to be landing on the person's desk the following morning.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. A fascinating legal ques-
O
k/ 14 tion is whether you get five days when you do that.

15 MR. PIGOTT: Staff maintains they do.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: I am sure. In any event, under

17 the rule the Staff's filing was due, I believe, next Monday.

18 I want to commend them on their expeditious filing, and we
.

19 will be taking it under active consideration. Let me raise

20 a question now. Mrs. Gallagher, we discussed earlier brief-
.

!
21 ly whether you would file on this motion. Do you intend to?

22 MS. GALLAGHER: We will nct file.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Oral argument?
.

() 24 MS. GALLAGHER: Yes, we -

.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: To the extent we have it.

(O\~J,ss-

r

I

- .-. .- - -- __
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&C k3 1 MS. GALLAGHER: Yes, we will.'

2 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Any proposals for

p when the board ought to hear oral discussion of the motion,3

v
4 Mr. Pigott?

5 MR. PIGOTT: If -- I would say as soon as possi-

6 ble within -- as soon as possible, assuming that the Inter-

7 venors are ready to address the question. As far as I am

8 concerned, with a little bit of emphasis, we have our case

9 laid out in our motion.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes. Let me ask you a question.

II The Board is out here far from its law library, and we have

12 got a number of cases cited, not a great many, but some,

13 to which we simply don't have access. Now, we have counsel's

[V 14 description that the cases insofar as they are arguing thisi

15 case or that case -- let me just ask you this. Would it be

16 feasible under chese circumstances, the Board wanting to'

17 have a good grip of the applicable law, for the Applicants
~

18 or the Staff c,r some combination thereof to give us some

19 Xerox copies of these cases?

20 MR. PIGOTT: It certainly is. Give me a list

21 and I will get you a copy.

22 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. I was looking at your

23 pleading this morning in that regard, pages two through five

O 24 or ehereebouts -- in the memo of gointe end .euthorities on

25 certification, not on the merits of the question, but the

O
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O
1 shorter pleading where you cite several cases, maybe five(_)k4
2 or six.

3 Now we don't -- some of those cases are awfully(}!

4 long. All we are talking about is certification discussion,

5 so that we can get a grasp of the standards that the appeal

6 board has been applying in these kinds of questions. I

7 should think it would be a matter of two or three pages in

8 any given case and not more than 15 or 20 pages total. I

9 would hope so.

10 MR. PIGOTT: Let me be sure that we are talking

!
! 11 about the same thing.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.
|
.

13 MR. PIGOTT: Do you have your copy --

f (([]!

14 JUDGE KELLEY: Yeah, I have got mine here. I

1$ ! have just got to flip it over. I am lookin'g at your plead-

16 ing. Memorandum of Points and Authhorities in Support of

17 Request for Certification for the NRC, starting on page
. . _ .

18 two. You first cite Wolf Creek.

19 MR. PIGOTT: Right.
.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: And then further on, Toledo

21 Edison. Pages two through five, some of the cases are cited

22 twice,

23 MR. PIGOTT: Does the Board want anything other

() some statements24 than those cases? We do have, for instance,,

25 of policy and --

k

- -- - .
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()kS 1 JUDGE KELLEY: I think we have got the policy

2 statement someplace. That is the statement of late May?

(~) 3 MR. PIGOTT: May 27th, 1981.
V

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Right. Well, if you have an

| 5 extra of that, mine may be back in my desk. I am just not

6 positive.

7 MR. PIGOTT: We will go through to the extent

We will make sure you have a set of the authorities8 we can.

9 cited.
|
(

l 10 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Now, this is -- it is not

11 necessary that this material be served on the service list.

12 This is strictly an accommodation to the Board. I would

13 appreciate it if the Applicants don't have it, if you could
14 give them a set too of the case --

15 MR. PIGOTT: The Staff or Intervenors?

16 JUDGE KELLEY: I said Applicants. The Inter-

17 venors is what I was mainly thinking of. I don't know

18 whether the Staff -- I assume you -have been over those cases .

19 I don't know if you think you need them out here. Maybe

20 you have got them.

21 MR. HOEFLING: No, we are all right.

| 22 JUDGE KELLEY: You are okay? Okay.

23 MR. PIGOTT: Whatever we give to the Board we
. /~%
| (_) 24 will give to the Intervenors.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Ok ?.y , thank you very much. That

i.
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) k6 I would be helpful.
--

2 When is the Staff prepared to speak to this

N 3 motion?
(O

4 MR. HOEFLING: Well, Mr. Chairman, I think that

5 we feel comfortable with the written filing we have made.
.

6 It expresses our views and --

7 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

8 MR. HCEFLING: -- to the extent that the Board

9 wishes to have clarification, it is at the convenience of

10 the Board.

11 JUDG. ~2LLEY: Thank you. How about setting

12 aside a little -- we do have a few questions about your

13 motion -- would like to hear your viewpoint on them. Setting

'

14 aside a little time after lunch on Wednesday? And then if

|

i 15 you could -- if you can get us those cases tomorrow morning,
I
l 16 that will fit well with that kind of a schedule.
|
| 17 And what we have in mind is -- we have got some
! _ _

-

! 18 questions. You may want to make an argument in support.

19 Intervenors may wish to argue various points, and things

20 may come up with the Staff too. We haven't read the Staff's

21 pleading yet. Okay?

22 Mr. Hoefling, anything else?

23 MR. HOEFLING: That is all.

() 24 JUDGE KELT;EY: Okay. Mrs. Gallagher,

25 Mr. McClung, anything preliminary this morning?

O
e ,'

- ._ -. . - . .
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k7 1 MR. MC CLUNG: No, sir.
rp )
\. ''

2 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Well, while we are on it,'

3 let's just take a minute. We had this discussion Friday, I

rS;

(_) 4 guess, about whether you would be able to be here on this

5 coming Thursday morning, and I gather that stands as it stands?

6 I think I projecte d on behalf of the Board a very sort of hard-

7 nosed attitude. Now, if you can't come, you can't come. It

3 is a half a day, and okay. We do feel that this is not like

9 the case where you are here and everybody involved is at home

10 base. Here we have an awful lot of people here at an awful

| 13 lot of expense to try only this case. And there is really not

|

| 12 much else we can do with our spare time, so that I think we

feel that in terms cf neing here and being prepared to go for-33

([ } 34 ward, that we ought to have priority, absent some rather

extraordinary thing over and above one's day to day laywer busi-15

16 ness.

17 But Mrs. Gallagher has described a situation which

is seems to call upcn her time, and if.you have got a case, you

19 have got a case. We would just like to see you get out of it

20 if you possibly can. Given a little lead time, can you let us

!

21 know, sort of up or down -- what is the nature of that court

12 and its proceedings? Are you not going to know until Wednesday

evening whether you have to be there Thursday morning, or how23

I 24 does that work?e~s
U

25 MR. MC CLUNG: Crange County Superior Court Case,

O
(5 '

..
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' (~') k8 1 I believe, and I know right now exactly when it is. It is,

'(_-
2 Thursday morning. It is set to go to trial Thursday morning.

3 It is about a two hour case. I know --
7s
t )

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Is there any possibility though''

5 you can get it unset or set for some other time?
6 MR. MC CLUNG: The policy of the Court is against

7 continuances. I can attempt to do so. I have not attempted

8 to continue the case.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Will you give it a try and explain

10 our circumstances and see if they can't accommodate us?

11 MR. MC CLUNG: Yes, I will.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: And then let us know tomorrow and

13 then we will just have to decide. Certainly with subpoenaed

() 14 witnesses coming in -- if you know at the end of tomorrow

15 what our program is, is that enough time for you to figure out. '

16 who to call?

17 MR. PIGOTT: This might be a subject best discussed
_

~

'It gets rather involved ---individuals - -18 off the record.

19 and shouldn't reflect, I think, on their testimony ete way

20 or the other. But if I could discuss off the record the

21 witness scheduling -- the individual witness scheduling, it

; 22 may shed some light on this, but I would just as soon it not

23 be on the record.

24 JUDGE KELLEY: Let''s go off the record then, but
(])

25 let's go ahead and get it resolved if we can. Off the record,

(Discussion <'f the record.)
,

--

o
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g JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record.c .'

2 Any other preliminary matters before we call the

3 first witness?

(J~
4 MR. ROGIN: No, we have not' ing else .a

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Go ahead.

6 MR. ROGIN: We would defer, as we indicated,

7 the redirect of Mr. Brothers, and call at this point

8 Chief Ben Killingsworth of the California Highway Patrol.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. '

i

| 10 traereupon,

BEN KILLINGSWORTH

124

i was called to the witness stand and, having been first duly

- [[\ -)
'

'
13

sworn by the Chairman, was examined and testified as follows:
1 14

JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you.,

I 15
1 DIRECT EXAMINATION

16
BY MR. ROGIN: --

17
'

O Would you state your nane and address for the
! 18
i record, please ?

13

A Ben Killingsworth. My address is 3703 Camino
i 20

Del Rio South, San Diego.
21

Q And are you appearing here today in response to
1 22

() a subpoena that was served upon you?
23

A Yes, I am.,

.() Y P ^ * '" * " '25-s-
.
s

e

- ,, - - . , m ,, , , , - - - - - -
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]~ s 2g I which you work and the title that you have.?

2 A The organization is the Departnent of the

3 California Highway Patrol. My title is Chief. I am a-s

k,) |
4 Commander of the Border Division, which includes San Diego,

'5 Orange, Imperial and Eastern Riverside Counties.

6 Q Could you generally describe for the Board your

7
duties ~ and responsibilities in that position?

8
A My duty is to manage that division, the day to

9
day operations, planning, budgeting, and so forth.

O Could you also briefly describe your formal

11
education and training cutt you have received?

12
A I have received the normal training, Highway;

(( ) 13
Patrol Academy, many many additional classes in the Academy

i

14
of management sorts.

15;

I have a Bachelor's degree from Frespo. State
16

University.
17

Q And could you briefly describe your employment

background, if there was any, prior to joining the Highway
.

Patrol, and then during the Highway Patrol experience?

A Very little prior. Four years in the Navy; some

other jobs. I have been with the department for 27 years.22

73 I have served through all the ranks. Through chief; I was

24 commander of the San Diego area for a time, and prior to my

( 15 present assignment, I was commander of planning and analysis

.

- - - - m
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-(_ 3g 1 division in our headquarters in Sacremento.

'O
2 Q Thank you. Can you tell me if the Highway

3 Patrol participated in the development of the evacuation-s

/N_-)
4 plans and routes to be used in the event of an emergency

5 at SONGS?

6 A Yes, it did.

7
Q Could you briefly describe the participation

! that the Highway Pat :al had in that development?

9
A The Highway Patrol provided input as to the

! 10
-

! locations for the detours and through a series of meetings.
|

11'

O With whom were the meetings conducted?,

|

| 12
' A The meetings were with the other participahts

([]) 13
in the planning and the Wilbur Smith associates.

14
Q Did you examine the routes and the trafffic

15
; control locations that were selected?
I 16

_ A Yes, I have. - .
'

~

17

O And as that plan was put in final form, did the

Highway Patrol approve of the routes and the traf fic control

locations?
20

A Yes.

Q Hav y u developed any standard operating
22

pr edures or SOP's in connection with the evacuation routes ?
23

:
A Yes, we have.24

25 Q And are those SOP's now filed?x

.
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4V[' _D 1 A They are in the stage of final development, some

O'
2 very final things, which have nothing to do with the

3 operational parts of the plan.
fs

U
4 O Do I understand then that you could now perform

5 your role --

6 A Certainly. Yes, uh-huh.

7 Q And when will those SOP's be completed?

8 A Within two weeks.

9 Q Could you describe for the Board and the

10 '

parties the communications system or network that the

11
California Highway Patrol has, and obviously we are

12
particularly interested in that system as it relates to

( (~~. %-) 13
SONGS and any potencial use of it during an emergency.

14
A Internally we of course have our CHP radio.

15
We have a microwave system like a telephone. We have the

16
publia: te lephone . We have now the yellow phone, which is

17
*

a direct line between all the participants in the -- in this
18

event.
19

Basicall5f that is it. We have other direct
20

lines with other agencies, depending on which agency it is.

Q Turning now to the operation of the Highway
22

() Patrol's responsibilities in the event of an emergency,
23

which would require evacuation or planning for that. What
4

() is the principal role of the Highway Patrol in the event of
25

.

.- - , .
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57q g an emergency?

)i
''

2 A Our principal role would be traffic control.

3 Q And how would you perform -- let me start back
k,m)

4 a step. How would you receive notification of the need for

5 traffic control?

6 A We would receive notification in the beginning-

7 through the yellow phone from Southern California Edison.

8 Q And then what would the next step be for the

9' Patrol?
'

10 '

A Well, as you know, there are four levels, the

11 first I think is called an unusual occurence. At that level

12
we don't do much of anything except become aware that

([w-) 13
something has happened, and notify our areas. The second

14
level I believe is the alert level, at which stage we would

15
establish our emergency operations control centers, and we

16
would place the personnel involved on standby. I think the

17

third is the site emergency, at shich stage we would move
18

our people actually into position at the various points, and
19

along with CalTrans, and the fourth, I think is called a
20

general emergency, at which point we would actually put the
21

plan into ef fect.

() Q Do you coordinate your efforts in traffic

i control with Caltrans, the California highway --
'

) ^ *P"# * " ##"*E " "*
25

.

, ,, ,-,- .r- 'T-
'
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72 1 0 The Transportation Department.6

'w]
2 A Yes. Yes, of course.

3 Q And do you do that on a regular basis outside of
,-

k_3)
4 any need for that kind of coordination in the event of an

5 emergenc:r at SO!IGS7

6 < A We would with Caltrans daily, and of course in

7 any major rerouting of traffic, we ook them to take over the

8 manual directions with signs and barricades and so forth.

9 Q And does the border division have an emergency

10
~

operations center?

11 A We establish the emergency operations center at
|

| 12
| my headquarters, which is in San Diego. At that point, t;e

( (~)h 13
also have a communications center, which is in normal%

14
operations, so we have full access to all manner of

15
communications, and our staff.

16
Q And ,do you also disperse any of your personnel

17 -

to any of the other emergency operations centers, if they
18

are to be set up?
19

A We send a representative to each emergency
20

operations center, yes.
21

| Q Your communications center, which you mentioned
1 22

() a moment ago, I take it that operates 24 hours a day, seven
23

days a week, year. round?

| (;) A Yes, it does.
,,

-

|
i

_ .
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. ([1) 1 Q And the centers as you have described them, the
%J

2 communications center, and the emergency operations center,

3 are they capable of continuing operation over an extended
7(d

s

4 period of time?

5 A Yes, they are. There are four communications

0
centers in the division. One is at my headquarters. The

,

other is in Santa Ana. Both of those are large. Then I,

8
have one in Indio and one in El Centro.

9
Q Are the procedures that you would employ in

10
'

responding to a radiological emergency dif ferent from those

11
procedures that you would use in other emergencies

12
reqdiring traffic diversion or evacuation of people?

' ( (~') 13
''

A Not really, no.
14

Q Do you have any rpecial equipment that would be
15

required in the event of a radiological emergency, as
16

opposed to other types of emergencies?

A I tPink the only thinc I can think of would

be that each of ficer would be equipped with a dosimeter, and

we have some -- some radiological monitoring equipment,0.

which we would employ.
1 21

22 Q And you have that equipment at the present

O*

23 time?

24 A Yes.
>

'N 25 Q Are your patrol cars equipped with

.
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8 1 loudspeakers which could be used to inform the public of

0) 2 information they might need in the event of an emergency?s_
,

3 A Yes, they are.

() 4'

Q And do you have any other equipment such as

5 aircraft, which have loudspeakers, and could be used to notify
6 the public in the event of an emergency?

7 A Within my own division, I have one fixed-

8 wing aircraf t stationed in El Centro, which would be brought
9 over and used if time and weather permitted. There are also

i

10 other resources at my disposal from the Los Angeles area,
11 helicopters, mainly.

12 Q And these have loudspeaker a, 'pment?

; ({} 13 A Yes, they do.

14 0 In your opinion, Chief Killingsworth, do you have
:

15 sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the role that
16 has been assigned to the Highway Patrol in the event of a

17 radio' logical emergency at SONGS requiring an evacuation?

18 A Yes, I do.

19 Q Just one last point. There has been some
,

20 suggestion that the Highway Patrol had some concern with the

21 time estimates prepared for the Applicants. Have you ever

n 22 expressed any such concern?
U

23 A No.

24 Q Are you aware of any such concern on the part of
'

25 the Highway Patrol?

__ __ _ _ _ _ .



82739 1 4 - I am not,

) 2 Q Have you generally reviewed the time estimates

; 3 prepared by the Applicants?

() 4 A Yes, I have.
,

j 5 0 And can you describe for me your reaction to those?

| 6 A They appear reasonable.

| 7 MR. ROGIN: That would terminate your direct
;

8 examination unless the Board has quetions; the Intervenorsj

;

7 may cross-examine.

10

11

f 12

i

! C)
'

14

i
'

15

16'

i
_. .

-

! 17
l

|
18

1

: 19
.i

20,

> 21

: (:)
u

!

- 24
)

; '~ ~ 25
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;
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/['N.tp44-1 1 JUDGE KELLEY: We'll probably have questions
V

2 later, but not ntw. Mr. McClung?

3 MR. MC CLUNG: Yes. .Thank you.7-
''' 4 CROSS EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

6 Q Turning to your educational background, sir,

7 could you please -- do you have any experience or educa-

8 tional coursework with respect to umergency planning?

9 Could you describe, perhaps --

10 A I think, as I mentioned, I was commander of

11 the department's planning and analysis division for two

12 years.

13 Q Was that in Sacramento?

14 A Yes.

15 Q Could you describe your duties in thatposition?

16 A The division included operational planning and

17 long range planning and data processing, principally, and

18 I was commander'of the operations within that division.

19 Q Did that division have specific planning respon-

20 sibilities as far as evacuation or similar c pes of ~ a r-j

21 gencies?

12 A That division was responsible for the prercra-

23 tion and the maintenance of virtually all of the standard

24
'} operating procedures, special orders, and manuals that the,

25 department employs, which do include emergency operations

b3
x,

e
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'?') 2 1 of all types.
L'

2 Q Did you participate in the formulation of any

3 manuals or brochures with respect to evacuation?
7_

4 A Not evacuaticn specifically, no.

5 Q Did you participate in the' formulation or pro-

6 duction of any manuals or other materials with respect to

7 clearing of traffic accidents from the freeway?

8 A Certainly.
.

9 Q Could you describe briefly the standard operating4

to procedure for removing an accident vehicle from the freeway?

11 A Removing an accident vehicle?

12 O Yes. An accident situation as far as the CHP,

13 is concerned.

() 14 A Well, do you mean just the removal? We call a

15 tow truck and remove it if it's a small vehicle.

16 Q Pardon me. I mean dealing with the situard.on

17 where there is an accident on a given freeway route --

18
~

MR. ROGIN: Are y'ou speaking of traffic diversion?4

19 I'm not sure I understand the intent of the question at this

20 point.

21 MR. MC CLUNG: I'm sorry. The question is vague.

22 WITNESS XILLINGSWORTH: Let me just say this,

23 that handling traffic ..ccidents is our day-to-day job.

24
-[ } ,Nhether it is one that has closed a complete freeway or one

25 that doesn't bother traffic at all because it is off the

O j .
~

.

_.
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[J
^'

i 1 freeway, it is something we do every day..

2 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

3 0 Thank you. I'll address that later. I appreciategs
'

4 it. With respect to -- once again, I'm still at your tenure

5 in the planning department in Sacramento -- did you at that

6 time review at any time the time it would take to evacuate

7 any given area if there were some type of emergency?

8 A No.

9 Q Could you please tell me what specific training

to that you've had that you are relying on with respect to your

11 opinion that the timing generally in the Wilbur Smith study

12 are accurate?

13 MR. ROGIN: Do you mean training and experience?

Os_/ 14 Are you trying to be as narrow as the question as stated was?

15 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah. I'm just trying to get at

16 the actual training or experience which he has had which he

17 considers qualifying him to make those estimates.

18 WITNESS -KILLINGSWORTH: I looked at the figures
-

19 given, the distances or the geographical areas involved and

20 then the vehicles involved and, just based on my experience

21 with moving traffic from fairgrounds, race tracks, and that

12 kind of thing, fire scenes, they appear reasonable. I

23 couldn't say that they are exactly right on, but they seem

() 24 reasonable to me. They seem well within the bounds of

25 probability.

f3
QJ
-

,
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f(} 1 BY MR. /IC CLUNG:

2 Q Have you participated, sir, in any evacuations

(-) 3 of -- in emergency situation?
v

4 A People under my command have, yes.

5 Q Have yot. as a commander participated in any

6 evacuation?

7 MR. ROGIN: I'm sorry. I don't understand the

a question. You mean him personally out on the street directing

9 traffic as opposed to directing his officers in that connec-

10 tion?

11 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, I believe from his previous

12 response he hasn't participated out in the street. He stated

13 that people under his ecmmand had participated. I was

(( 14 wondering whether in a command sense he had participated.

'

15 MR. ROGIN: I thought he had already indicated

16 he had, but --

|
17 MR. MC CLUNG: I was trying to get him to clarify

..

Is that answer. Maybe he had.

19 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Yes.

20 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

21 Q Could you teil me briefly which evacuations you

22 have participated at a command level in? .

23 A Well, let me say this, that there are 700

() 24 uniformed men under my command and things are. going on all

25 the time which are just considered normal everyday operations ,

f

V
.
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'( ) 1 So we have participated in evacuations with respect to fires.

2 Within the last several months there were evacuations be-

-

)
cause of forest fires that we have participated in. Now we3

4 do that only in assisting the sherriff or, if it is in a

S city, the police department.

6 Q With respect to the evacuation in the forest

7 fire situations which you have mentioned, what specifically

8 was your role?

9 A I did not have a direct role.

10 0 Did you participate in any way in the decision-

11 making process related to the evacuation in that forest fire?

12 A No. My only participation would have been in the

13 deployment of the people, the training of the people, and

14 that's it.

15 0 What forest fire are you speaking of or forest

16 fires?

17 A There were a series of forest fires, if you will

18 remember, not long ago in the Orange County and Riverside

19 County areas which required some evacuation.

20 Q Approximately how many people were evacuated in

21 those emergencies?

22 A I could not say. Theywere not large numbers.

23 Q Are there any other evacuation scenarios which

() 24 members under your command have participated in within the

25 last two years?

-
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[*z 1 A No. I -- well, I can't think of any specifically ,

'sJ
2 There were some during the heavy rains of I think about two

3 years ago when there was some preparatory evacuation con-

O 4 templating a possible rise in the San Diego River, which

5 never occurred.

6 Q Did you participate in any ordering or command

7 decisions with respect to that evacuation or preparatory to

8 that evacuation?

9 A Yes. Not in a direct sense, but yes.

10 Q Could you explain your role in that evacuation?

11 A Again, my role is one of overall commander. Let

12 me explain to you thatunder my command there are ten offices

13 and each one of those is commanded by a captain. They are
(~8
(_) 14 the operational commanders, so I am not involved in the

15 operation -- I mean in the direct control of the officers

16 in the field. They are. But I control them.

17 Q So would it be fair to state that you personally

18 have never had any direct participation in any evacuation

19 in your career?

! 20 MR. ROGIN: I object to the question as argumenta- -

21 tive and misstating the testimony. He's already testified

22 what his experience has seen in that regard.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: I'm going to allow the question,

(^N 24 with the caveat that I think this line of questioning is
xJ

25 approaching -- I think its productivity is just about

CE)
'

s-

-
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' ]) I exhausted. But I will allow that question.

2 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Exy.:se me. Would you

3 repast the question?7-)
\_/

4 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

5 Q Would it be fair to state, sir, that during your

6 employment with the Highway Patrol that you have not partici-
7 pated in a direct way with any emergency evacuation?
8 JUDGE KELLEY: Do you mean direct personal way?

9 MR. MC CLUNG: Direct personal way.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Out in the field, so to speak?

11 MR. MC CLUNG: Or command.

12 MR. CASEY: I assume nov we are including all

13 27 years of Chief Killingsworth's experience, not just --
m/ 14 MR. MC CLUNG: I am.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Now we are confusing the question,
16 I think. Let me have a try, okay, and then you can fill in.

17 This may be redundant to prior testimony -- I realize that --
'

18 but your role in evacuations, actual evacuations, I gather
19 it has not been out in the field; that's rather the people
20 underneath you. Has it been direct in the sense that you are

[ II in the command post calling the shots in the sense ths'c you
22 are giving direct orders to the field, or is it more removed

23 than that?

() 24 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: I guess the best thing
i

25 that I can think of that would relate to this would be the

()
,

., -_ _ . - _ - - _ . -.
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'}( I donday night ball games at the San Diego Stadium, which I did

2 personally supervise, which involved a tremendous number of

3 people in and out, coming in at five o' clock at night when th as,,

V
4 rest of the traffic was trying to go home. That I have

5 , participated i!1, in the planning and the execution.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Directly out in the field?

7 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Yes.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

9 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

10 0 Is there a CHP office in Orange County?

11 A There are three.

12 Q Could you tell me where their locations are?

13 A One is in Westminster, one is in Santa Ana, and

( 14 one is in Capistrane

15 Q Could you explain to me the reason why the

16 easrgene, control center for the CHP is going to be located

17 in San Diego?
'

18 - A That's where I am. That's where my office is.

19 There will be representatives in the EOC's in Santa J.na and

20 in San Diego and in -- there's one in Capistrano, I believe.

21 Q Is there any other reason why it was located in

22 San Diego other than the fact that that's where you are?

23 A No. That's normally where the EOC would be for

() 24 the division, would b,e right there.

I Q Does your division include Orange County?

s

|

_ _
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( 1 A Yes.

2 Q Oh. My mistake. I'm sorry.<

.

3 A You have to remember, too, that much of thi:

4 takes place in San Diego County. As far as the Highway

5 Patrol is concerned, half of it is in San Diego County, of

6 the actual operation.

7 ///

s

9

to

11

12
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O 24

25
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7)klt y Q Is the jurisdiction -- or does the jurisdiction of
v

2 the Highway Patrol go beyond freeways onto surface streets?

~N 3 A Yes, we have responsibility for all surface
(D

4 streets outside of incorporated cities.

5 A' Could you tell me how many patrol cars will be

6 available in the County of Orange on a day when an emergency

7 requiring evacuation might take place?

3 MR. ROGIN: I think that question is a little+

9 vague. Maybe he can be more specific, daytime, nighttime,

weekend. To predict the emergency in advance would be a10

benefit, but I don't think we can do that.yy

MR. MC CLUNG: Sure.
12

4

JUDGE KELLEY: Can you narrow it a bit?'

13
i .,_s

MR. MC CLUNG: Yes.--

34
!

BY MR. MC CLUNG:15

16 O On a normal operating-day during the day -- let's

start with that.17

yg A Well, you are talking about people or cars or --

39 O Cars first.

A Just cars? Well, there -- let's see, I have20

300 vehicles in the division, black and whites, and Santa Ana
21

ffice there are 37, and -- well, actually the three areas22

that are involved in this operation are not, to begin witn,
23

(') the three in Oceanside -- two -- I mean -- excuse me, in
24

Orange County -- Santa Ana and Capistrano are involved, and25

o e'
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Ko 1 then Oceanside, which is in San Diego County, is involved.

2 So Oceanside has 31 black and whites, and Capistrano has 20.

! /')s(_ 3 Now, that is total. That is all that they have. Those are

t
'

4 the cars, and they have a lot more people than that.

5 To say how many people would actually be available

6 would just depend on -- now if there was nothing else going

7 on, and this is an estimate on my part because I don't have

8 their schedule, but let's supposing it was at three o' clock

9 in the afternoon, I would expect in total that we would have

10 say around 40 cars would be working.

11 Q And how many personnel -- how many pecple would

12 be operating those particular --

13 A That -- about that --

| 14 0 -- vehicles --
!

15 A -- same number, one per vehicle.

16 Q One per car?
i

17 A Yeah, uh-huh.
_j

18 Q How many motorcycles would be available at that-

j 19 same period, if any?

20 A The Santa Ana office operates 14 motorcyles. If

21 it were a weekday at that time the probability is that they

12 would all be available. They work days and typically week-

23 days. Then I have 10 motorcyles in San Diego that could be
'

O 24 brought in also.

25 There is nothing to prevent me from bringing in

,.

-

!
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1 people from anywhere in the division, plus outside the divi-.

2 sion if necessary.

() 3 Q Now, take another time of day, just to get a

4 comparison for us, how about at about 12 midnight, or there-

5 abouts, could you respond to how many cars would be available

6 at that time?

7 A Well, probably 10 to 15 cars, again, that is an

8 estimate. Each of those cars would have two officers.

9 Q So approximately half as many at night, would

10 that be a fair statement?

11 A M-hmm.

12 Q And with respect to motorcycles?
,

13 A None.

O
14 Q Ncne at night? Do you think -- or do you think

15 there would be any change in the time required to evacuate

16 people at night with respect to the day?

17 A Well, just using I guess what I would consider my

is common sense, at night you would have the advantage of nearly

19 everybody being home with their family, so from that point of

20 view, I would think that the evacuation could go much faster

21 at night and you would cot have the other traffic to contend

12 with, so people would be able to move about much easier. It

23 would be easier to set up the blockades because there wouldn't

' (~T
(_/ 24 be as much traffic. It wouldn't take as many people.

25 Q Do you have a provision for calling un people in

(s
-

--__
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_

'u 1 an emergency situation --'

2. A Yes.
j

() 3 0 -- to get up to full staffing if --
|

f 4 A Yes.
|

| 5 0 -- was necessary?

6 A Certainly. Yes.

7 Q How would you do that?

8 A By telephoning. -

| 9 Q By telephone --

10 A M-hmm.

11 Q -- to the residents?
.

12 A Yes.

13 Q Okay. Thank you. Do you have provisions for-

14 blockades that you will use in event -- for traffic diversion

15 in the event an evacuation becomes necessary?

16 A Yes. That is our primary role, yes.

'
17 Q What types ou blockades do you have for traffic

._

18 diversion purposes?

19 A Are.you speaking of some physical object, or

20 what are you --

21 Q Yes, if you have such.

22 A No, we don't use -- we use an officer with flares

23 and the car and traffic direction, and we replace that as

() 24 soon as possible with Caltrans people and equipment, barri-

25 cades, cones, signs, so forth.

}
;m
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1

\
x.J 1 Q Is it correct that you as the CHP are responsible ;

I2 also for traffic control points, the designated traffic con-

U,
,

1 trol --

4 A Well, that is what I am talking about.

5 Q Oh, It is my understanding from review of the

6 plans that there is a couple different types of traffic con-

7 trol, and let me ask you, isn't it correct that there is --

8 there are traffic control points where you might manually

9 offer traffic control? Officers might manually direct the

10 flow of traffic?

11 A The plan calls for us to assume manual control

12 and then, as I said, to be replaced by Caltrans. Now, we

13 would stay there and enforce the detour, but the actual

14 moving of the vehicles would be done by barricade; and signs,

15 rather than by an officer signalling.

16 Q Okay, I am trying to distinguish between two

17 distinct responsibilities, One, I think, is what you h_ ave .

18 just described as traffic control. The other one is the

19 t::af fic diversion.

20 MR. ROGIN: Iaam not -- I guess that is a ques-

21 tion as it was asked, although I think there is some confu-

22 sion, because I think diversion and control as used here

23 mean basically the same thing. Perhaps Chief Killingsworth

24 can explain that to us. But I don't think there is a dis- ;

,

I25 tinction.

1
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( ) 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Is that a meaningful question to

2 the Witness?

3 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Not really. He

4 MR. MC CLUNG: Let me strike the question.

5 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: ,-- may be referring to,

6 there are some locations where we will not go, and Caltrans

7 will put up barricades, but as far as our involvement is
<

8 concerned, as far as the planned part of this -- cnd I think

. 9 there are ten points that we would go to, the -- we would

10 establish control, and ha replaced as soon as possible by

11 Caltrans.

12 Nou following that we would be available for

13 other duties if there were a location where for scme reason

14 there were a traffic problem, we would respond there and
,

'

15 attempt to unravel it.

16 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

! 17 Q Where are the 10 points, sir? Could you describe

18 those?

19 A Could I --

; 20 Q Yes, please.

21 A Do you want me to go to the map, or will it be --

22 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes. Please do.

23 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: a problem?--

() 24 MR. ROGIN: The one thing --

25
JUDGE KELLEY: We do get into problems here with

Om
* -

1

_ _ _ _ _ _ __
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x
.h I got, I don' t know that we need it, unless anyone thinks we

2 do.

(] 3 MR. ROGIN: I thought you didn't.

4 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Go ahead.

5 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Okay. At this point,

6 traffic which is southbound on 5 would be diverted onto 133

7 and then northbound onto 405, and the traffic to southbound'

a 405 would be diverted to northbound on five. That would be

9 one primary location.

10 South of that at Avery Parkway, which is roughly

gi in Capistrano, the traffic would be turned around. All south-

12. bound traffic would be turned around and directed northbound.

13 The same would be true at Camino Los Ramblas,

14 which is about 10 miles north of the power facility. And

t$ also at Basselon Road, which is about two miles north of the

16 power facility.

17 Then on the' south, about 10 miles south of the
,.

-

13 facility at Los Puelgas Road, the northbound traffic would"

19 be turned around directed south. About six miles further

20 south at Harbor Drive, traffic would be also diverted south,

21 and then at Highway 78, which is about 20 miles from the

22 south of the facility, traffic would be diverted from north-

23 bound five to eastbound on Highway 78.

24 So that the flow of traffic coming in from the

25 north would be diverted back to the north, and the same with
,

-
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||hk7 the speaker when you talk away from it. Is there a pointer,
y

or how are we going to handle that?2

WITNESS RILLINGSWORTH: I can just describe them.:( ,) 3

JUDGE KELLEY: Try it that way.4

WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Okay.
5

JUDGE KELLEY: T.f it is specific enough.
6

WITNESS KILLINC5 WORTH: Okay, going from the
7

north to the south, the first two points are on -- one ca
8

Interstate 5 at Highway 133, which is here. This is a blow-
9

10 up f it. This is 5 and this is 405, and this is 133. That

is in Orange County north of the facility about 25 miles.yy

MR. ROGIN: The Witness, for the record, is re-
12

ferring to a map that Mr. Roper of Caltrans brought with himy3,

( \
\ '' in response to the subpoena which indicates some, he just

34

informed me, but not all of the traffic control points that
15

will be established.
16

JUDGE KELLEY: Is that map an exhibit in evidence '

37

MR. ROGIN: It is not an exhibit in evidence.
18

We have -- it is duplicative of the freeway system which is
19

in other maps, but --20

JUDGE KELLEY: Right.gy

MR. ROGIN: -- in itself it is not an exhibit in
22

evidence. I don't know whether we can have it or not to
23

(m) 24

,

_

help the Board. We can --

JUDGE KELLEY: Given the number of maps we have
25

p
%/

-

e
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|
| k9 1 traffic coming from the south. It would be diverted south

! 2 and to the east. At one other point on Highway 74, some 30
|

| 3 miles from highway 5, there would be a roadblock established.
,

4 That would be in Riverside County.

5 MR. ROGIN: I should add for the record that the

6 map on the board, while it has different titles and headings,

7 is essentially the same map as appears in the emergency plan

8 for SONGS, which is Exhibit 51, appendix E, figures 7 (a) and

9 7 (b) .

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you.

11 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

() 12 0 Now, you mentioned that t'aere were 10 points,
I

| 13 and you only listed eight. Are there any other --

14 A One, two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight,

15 nine, ten. No, I think I covered ten. There are two on that
i

|
| ~ 16 highway 133 -- -

17 Q Oh, okay.

18 A Okay? One at Avery, one at Los Rambals, one at

19 Basselon, one at Las Puelgas, one at Harbor, one at Highway

20 78 and one on Highway 74. Is that 107

21 JUDGE KELLEY: I think that is nine.

12 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: That is nine? One, two -<-

23 Well --

24 MR. MC CLUNG: It doesn't matter. I just wanted

\ to make sure I had them all.25

__

_ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ --
- - - - - - w -
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Mdk0 1 MR. ROGIN: I was going to add that the points

2 are not in controversy or --
r /

( .) 3 MR. MC CLUNG: No, I just wanted.to --
v

4 MR. ROGIN: -- subject to any question. They are

5 identified in the plans.

6 MR. MC CLUNG: I just wanted to make sure I had

7 them all --

8 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

9 MR. MC CLUNG: The ones that he is responsible

10 for -- that is what we are trying to figure out.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

12 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

13 Q Do you have any responsibility over the trafficr,
1v

14 diversion on the Coast Highway?

15 A On the Pacific Coast Highway?

16 Q Yeah, Pacific Coast Highway.

17 A No, the Sheriff is going to handle that. Nor-
.

18 mally we handle traffic on that highway if that is what you

19 mean, yes, outside of the city. But in this instance the

20 Sheriff is planning to handle the traffic.

21 Q Yes, for purposes of this emergency plan --

22 A Yes.

23 0 -- you are not going to be involved there. You
,n
(
'/ 24 have only got so many people.'

25 A M-hmm.

v
s
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(X)1 1 0 But for purposes of your testimony, with respect

2 to the timing estimates in the Wilbur Smith study, what in-

| 3 vestigation did you perform to verify for yourself that those

4 estimates were accurate with respect to the Pacific Coast

5 Highway? Have you had discussions with the Sheriff's depart-

6 ment with respect to how many vehicles they will have availa-

7 ble, and how they will be handling the evacuation of the

8 Pacific Coast Highway?
,

|

|
9 A My people have, yes.

10 Q Have you personally?

| 11 A No.
!

12 Q Have you prepared or have your officers under

13 your control or supervision prepared for you memoranda or

O)k- 14 any communications which you have reviewed with respect tol

15 the Sheriff's capability to evacuate the Pacific Coast High-

16 way?

17 A The Sheriff's role is outlined in the County plan

18 in the Orange County plan, and that is basically what we are

19 going by. We had discussed who should handle it, and the
:

20 Sheriff agreed to handle it to relieve us of the need, be-

21 cause they would -- they feel they would have the people.

22 0 Okay. W 11 you -- you have outlined your nine

23 points where you are going to go. Are there any other points

() 24 where you were going to go to handle regular manual traffic

25 control in the event that there might be an accident, at

O

-- . _ . .
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. ) 1 various intersections and --

2 A Well, you say in the event there might.be an
,

(-) 3 accident?

4 Q An emergency at the plant.

5 A Oh.

6 Q Pardon me. Strike that.

7 A Those are the only ones that are planned at this

8 time.

9 Q All right. Have you or your men had any specific

10 training in radiological emergency?

11 A Yes. You mean in monitoring? Is that what you

12 are talking about.

13 Q I am sorry. That was a vague question. That is

)
14 what I am referring to, yes, monitoring.

<

15 A M-hmm. Yes.

16 0 Could you describe that briefly?

17 A They receive initial training in radiological
,

18 monitoring and then they receive periodic refresner training.,

; 19

20

21

:

22

23

( 24

25

:

..

---w -r
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1 Q Who gives this training?

2 A. We give it now. In the beginning, I can't recall(]
3 who gave it in the beginning, but we provide the refresher

4 training ourselves now. ;

5 Q What role will you take as a body in the

6 monitoring of radiation, should there be any emergency with

7 off-site consequences?

8 A We will supply our closer units with the
1

9 equipment, and they will provide information as needed.

10 Q Then where is the equipment, the dosimeters you
,

11 testified to, how are they located? ,,

12 A Not the -- the dosimeters are the little things they

13 wear that tells how much of a dose or radioactivity they have

14 received. The equipment is located in the offid:es.
|
t

| 15 Q The offices in Santa Ana and --
:

16 A Yes, capistrano --
|

j 17 "Q -- Capistrano?

|
; 18 A -- Santa Ana, Oceanside.
I

19 Q And oceanside.

! 20 A Uh-huh.
1

21 Q Are there dosimeters in the part of the regular

22 equipment in a patrol car?

O
,

23 A No.

0 And there is no radiation monitoring equipment24 +

O 25 that is part of the regular equipment in a patrol car?

- - - _ - - . - . _ . - - _ _ _ . _ - . _ .- -
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T6,2 1 A That is correct.
/'A
' l-) 2 O In your estimation, given the number of cars and

3 staf f that you have set forth earlier that you will have ready
,

4 to respond in the event of emergency, will it require all thoso

.5 cars to begin the initial traffic diversion?

6 A Will it require all of the cars to begin? I

7 don't know what you mean by initial. You mean to man every
'

8 one of the nine places?

9 0 Yes, to man tha nine posts. Would you send them

10 a ll out, is I guess my gu. ' + ion.

I

11 A I -- possibly. I am not sure I can ant:ver that

12 precisely- Each of the areas that I have mentioned have their
!

(]) 13 own specific plans calling for the exact number of people that

14 they will. send, and I don't have those plans with me, but

15 those plans are well within their capabilities.

16 0 Is it my under -- a rik e that.

17 Will there be separate command centers at these

18 various local offices of the CHP making their own decisions

19 with respect to the sending out of officers?

20 A They will be sending the of ficers at my

21 direction.

{]) 22 0 okay, I am not clear then on what you just said

23 about the plans of the various of fices.

24 A They have formulated specific plans as to how they
~

25 will handle these -- these control points, the number of
-

,

|

_ _ - _ ___
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3 1 people they will need and so forth.

i,

)'
2 Q, Have you reviewed those plans?

3 A No. This again is something they do frequently.

() 4 We frequently shut down an entire freeway for from a few
,

5 minutes to several hours, so it is not something that is -- j

6 we rarely do. It is a common occurrence.

7 Q Do you know, or as part of your specific plan,

j g do you have provisions for providing officers to help in the

9 avant that there may be accidents or other types of'

:
i

; 10 emergencies on the roadway?
!
'

11 A certainly.

12 Q During evacuation?

~ (]) 13 A Let me say this, that the Santa Ana office, which

i 14 has 100 traf fic officers ave' lable, is only responsible for
i !

i 15 two control points, so there are a lot of people available
;

i
16 to do other things.

*
-

_ _

17 San Diego, which has 110 officers, is not:

i

18 involved in any of it. They don't have any commitment to,

)

i 19 these traffic control points, and they are available. We
'

!

20 have a lot to draw from.,

1 .

i 21 Q What provisions are there for communication
!

22 between the CHP and 'Caltrans?{)
23 A Some of their vehicles are equipped with our

,

i

24 radios, and then we' of course have the telephone, and thenj q.
| v
| '" 25 I may be mistaken, but I believe they will have the yellow

,

. . . _ _ - - - . - . . .. - . - - . _ - , - . - , - - . . . , . . _ . _ , , . , _ . . - . - . . . . , _ _ , .
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4 I phone as well. True or false? No, f a ls e . Strike that.

..

( 2 0 In the event of an emergency, or as you state, you

3 do this all the time in conjunction with Caltrans, do you

() 4 notify the local organization at Caltrans, or do you -- where

5 do you send your notification in the normal emergency requiring

6 traffic diversion?

7 .\ We ll, it is generally the foreman. The working

8 foreman that gets -- that implements whatever we ask for.

9 Q So, in the event of a radiological evacuation type
.

10 emergency, how would you coordinate your efforts, then,

11 ongoing, through communications with Caltrans? Would that be

12 through the radios that they.have?,

| (]) 13 A Some of their vehicles do have radios, yes.

14 And other than that, we -- if we didn't have those ,

i 15 we would be communicating with their dispatch center, and they

16 with ours, and that is how we would communicate.

17 0 Could you tell me if you -- whether or not you are

18 connected to the Control One system for Orange County?4

19 A Yes.

20 Q The communication system?

21 A Uh-huh. We are. Our Santa Ana Of fice is

22
[}

connected directly, yes.

23 0 Is your office in San Diego connected?

24 A No.

'

25 JUDGE KELLEis You mean directly?

. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,
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5 1 BY MR, MC CLUNG:
,

|

k_m) i

-

2 0 Directly, yes, sir.

I3 A No. No, but through the Santa Ana office, which

O 4 we have several means of communicating with.

5 Q You referred earlier to the yellow phone.
,

6 A Uh-huh.

7 Q Where would that be in your organization

8 located?

J 9 A Yes, a good point. We would have yellow phone

,

10 communications with control One. As I understand, we have a

11 yellow phone'in each of our offices, and that yellow phone
2

12 connects not only to the power facility,, but to every other

() 13 participant, that is why I thought Caltrans was involved.
I

14 They are not, I guess, but -- so we would be able to ta3k to

15 Control One on the yellow phons.

I
16 .0 So each of your offices has a yellow phone, is

17 that correct? Or at least Santa Ana, and --
1

18 A Santa Ana has a yellow phone. My dispatch in

19 San Diego has the yellow phone. Yeah. And then the EOC's

20 have the yellow phone, which would include Control One. Then
.

21 also there will be hard copy receivers for transmitting of
,

(]) 22 lengthy messages.
,

13 JUDGE KELLEY: It may be clear in the Exhibits or

() 24 even the prepared testimony. I don't think the transcript
,

25 is clear as to just what a yellow phone is.

1

, - - - - ._ __.
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,6 1 MR. ROGIN: It has been explained by I think a
'

.

2 couple of witnesses ar.d Mr. Pilmer will be explaining it in

3 detail, but it is' the dedicated phone system connecting the ::

( 4 principal responsa agencies and the Highway Patrol, f or !

| 5 example, with each other. Mr. Pilmer deals with it in his

i 6 direct, and can explain it further if .there are any questions
|

| 7 remaining.

l
} 8 JUDGE KELIIY: He will connect up this
4

} 9 particular phone?

!
1 19 MR. ROGIN: He will attach it, yes, s ir .

I

11 JUDGE KULLEY: Okay, fine. Go ahead.

12 Are we -- where do you stand? Should we take a

(]) 13 coffee break, or do you want to finish'up, or --

j 14 MR. MC CLUNG: No, I am sorry. I have a , ways to

1
15 go.;

1

l 16 JUDGE KELLEY: All right, why don't we take a
i

.

*

) 17 break for 15 minutes.

18 (Brief recess);
.

j 19 JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record and resuming
i,

j 20 Mr. McClung's cross examination of Chief Killingsworth.
'

21 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

[]} 22 Q Once again referring to your conclusion that you -"
;

; 23 in your opinion that the Wilbur Smith study time factors are
:

24 accurate, to the best of your . judgment. I want to refer{)
| '~ 25 specifically to the fact that the Wilbur Smith study sets forth,

I

I

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ . . . _. - ._- - . . - . _ _ .-
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'7 1 30 minutes as a time frame in which all the traffic control

O 2 goints wi11 be see ug, and do you reca11 that specific time

3 estimate in the Wilbur Smith study?

O 4 ^ No. That is -- excuse me, wou1d thae be 30 minuteu

5 from what point?

i 6 Q Oh, from the initial notification of the -- the --

7 that the evacuation might be the necessary protective action

8 until the time when the actual traffic diversion points will b,. o

9 set up. Do you recall that time estimate?

10 A No, but 30 minutes sounds weil within the realm of

11 probability to me. Now, it would be much faster if you were

12 talking about going through the four stages of -- you know,,

) 13 from unusual occurrence to alert to site emergency to general

14 emergency. If we went through that, people would already

15 be there, and when they said go, it would be a matter of Ljust

16 a very few minutes.

17 Now, if you skipped the first three steps, and

18 said, now we have to do it immediately from scratch, it would

19 take a little longer, but again, 30 minutes would be certainly
20 possible, plus the f act that there are two key diversion,

21 points. Well, three actually, counting these two separately,

22 but once the southbound diversion is implemented, and then

23 the northbound, at Highway 78, now, there you have effectively

24 stopped most of the traffic from coming. The rest of it is in

25 .the middle now, so -- and you would get them out, so again,

wr - - -- y
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8 1 if for some reason there were not as many people as you would

) 2 like to have, you could still effect a aeasure of control with
'

3 fewer people uz.sil you got those there that were needed.
<

() 4 Q How many officers are gaing to be used at the

5 control point at the highway 133, 4 05-5 juncture, these two
'

6 control points there?

7 A I don't know specifically how many we plan to use

3 there,.

9 Q Do you know how many are planned to be used on the

10 highway 787
i
a 11 A No, I don't know specific numbers.

12 0 Would it make a difference in the time required to

(]) 13 dispatch officers to those locations if more officers were
! 14 reqdired than less officers?

4

15 A No, not the 133, because as I said, those are the

! 16 only two control points that are the responsibility of the

17 Santa An'a office, which has the largest number of mea of the

18 , three areas we are talking about, so those s ,uld certainly be

i 19 no problems, and carrying that on, if there were problems

20 with securing people for any of the other control points
| 21 within orange County, we would use Santa Ana people rather

22 than Capistrano people. And on the South, if si had any

13 problem with oceanside officers, manning those points, we

i 24 would bring in San Diego officers, 30 I think we would have an

25 adequate backup even on the short term.

;

l

. - - . .- . . - . , - - . - , . . . - . .
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9 I Q Do you think that the officers from the point

n)(- 2 that you -- your body, your group is notified, to the point -

3 chat they are dispatched to the various traffic control

4 points, do you think that they could get there in 15 minutes?

5 A No doubt that -- dependina upon the given

6 situation at the time. Some would be there in five minutes.

7 Some might be right there at the time. It is hard to say..

} '

8 But 1,5 minutes would be -- if it were -- went according to
1

9 plan; and then using the people that are in the areas that we

! 10 ' are planning to involve, 15 minutes would be possible,

11 certainly.;

12 Q Have you participated with Caltrans in4

II( ) 13 determining specific problem areas, either on the Coast

i 14 Highway or the Interstate Highway System, where accidents
;

j 15 might occur in the event of a fullscale evacuation?
.

;

j 16 A I don 't know that we have conf erred with Caltrans
i 17 on that point. We would expect there to be some accidents .

18 If we were to block off 'the freeway, there are probably. going,

19 to be some rear-end collisions, which will have to be dealt

20 with, depending on the seriousness of those collisions.
4

21 Q Have you made any special study with respect to

(]} 22 this, where potential accidents or bottlenecks might take,

23 place, in the event that an evacuation was ordered?

24 A I could only -- well, I don 't think it would be[}
-

25 necessary to conduct a special study. I think that we can

.

O

_ . . _ . . _ .
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10 I presume that at those points where we slow traffic to turn it

2 around, we are going to have a backup, and that there is
'

1 3 going to be some conflict. Now, our usual procedure is, given

-( 4 the people to do the job, we use what we call a round robin,

5 where we slow traffic by means of a patrol car that won't let

6 them pass, and then the control car brings them into the

7 blockage at a slower speed, an ever-decreasing speed, to pre-
8 vent rear-end collisions.

. 9 Nov,- that we would do, given the number of people
I
j 10 that it would require.

2 11
;

| 12
:

()
] 14

. 15
:
i

: 16
i . _ __.

j 17
!

18

19
; -

'

20

21

22
, C:)

23

24
(:)

25

. . .
_ _. .. -- _
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/''') 7- 1 i Of course we would use sig alerts with the
\J '

2 radio stations immediately, advising the public by means

,e 3 3 of the regular ~oroadcast radios that there is a block and
()

4 that they should take alternate routes or stay off the

5 road or whatever.

6 Q Do you know if the local plans that you refer

7 to -- and what I mean by " local plans" is the plans in the

8 respective branch offices which are going to be implemented

9 sending out the specific officers to the specific traffic

10 control points -- do you know if Caltrans participated in

jy the formulation of those plans?
i

12 A I don't know. These plans are very basic,

13 straightforward plans. They're not -- they don't require

() a great deal of consultation.14

15 0 Well, I was :ust trying to understand. You're

16 going to be doing this with Caltrans and you've only got a

17 finite number of officers and they've got a finite number-
'

13 of equipment. I was trying to get out whether or not your

19 decisions on how many officers and equipment to send to a

20 specific site at a specific time where there might be an
.

21 evacuation, whether or not, you know, you had conferred with

22 Caltrans to divide up the labor or to divide up the

23 equipment.

() 24 A Well, again, this is something that is done

25 frequently so it is,not something that you need to do a

O
../
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(~') 2 1 study on; it'. something that is everyday.
' L/ -

2 O Well, you would agree that this is a little bit

3 more than everyday whenyou evacuate an entire ten mile area.73
V

4 MR. ROGIN: I think the question is getting a

5 little argumentative. What we are talking about is a

6 setting up of certain traffic centrol locations and I think

7 that's what the witness is describing.
,

8 MR. MC CLUNG: I apologize. I don't mean to be

9 argumentative. He has referred several times to it being an

to , everyday thing and I'm trying to ask him whether it is an
11 everyday thing -- maybe it's obvious -- where they are,

; 12 ' 'acuating an area of this size is an everyday occurrence.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: You want to restate your question?
O
\_/ 14 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

15 0 With the understanding that it is an everyday

16 occurrence to set up road blocks and to divert traffic,

17 you would agree, though, that this number of roadblocks that
e ap+

18 you are going to have to set up in this particular case and

19 the magnitude of the traffic diversion, given an evacuation

i 20 scenario, would be out of the norm or out of the ordinary.

21 A I agree. Yes.

22 0 You referred earlier to the radios, some of the

23 Caltrans people have radios which are connected. Can an

(]) 24 officer directly talk, communicate to Caltrans officials

25 through that radio broadcasting system?

I)m

f

,
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(33 1 A No. I don't believe so. The officer would go toV -

2 the dispatch point, the dispatch point wou? d go to the

3 Caltrans unit,n

b
4 Q But the dispatch point car directly communicate

5 with the Caltrans people?

6 A Yes. And also, now if we are talking about

7 af ter this thing gets going, then Caltrans will have their

8 representative at the operation control centers, as we will.

9 They can talk face-to-face, if need be.

10 Q To your knowledge, have you considered whether

11 there might be any possible effect on your communications

12 system given radiation release into the environment, whether

13 that would have any effect on your microwave transmission?

14 A I'm not gaulified to answer that.

15 Q I'm just asking if it has been considered by you

16 in the development of your plans.

17 A I've never read anything that would indicate that

18 was a problem at the' levels we are talking about.

19 Q I was asking you whether that was considered.

20 A No.

21 Q Okay. That's the simple response. Will the

22 California Highway Patrol, in various plans that you have

23 outlined, have any responsibility for communicating informa-

] 24 tion to the people who are evacuating or people who don't

25 know whether they should be evacuated or not?

O
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'[G
N, 4 1 A That's not a primary responsibility. It is a

2 secondary responsibility. If needed, we will do that. Yes.
C

3 If called upon by the sherriff to do it, we will do it.7
'

i ''
4 Q With respect to your responsibilities in terms

5 of the radiological monitoring function, how will you communi -

6 cate information that your men pick up with respect to this

7 monitoring activity to the people that have to make decisions

a with regard to.the use of that material?

9 A The officer would communicate the information to

10 his radio in his car back to the control center, his control

11 center, which would then pass the word along to any of the

12 other control centers involved, including the one at the
4

13 plant.

) 14 Q And with respect to the plans that you have

| 15 developed for your department andthe various local department.s,
i 16 are there specific elements addressf 7 what your men will be

17 doing with respect to radiological monitoring?
~

13 A Our role in that respect is strictly secondary.

19 We're going to have the equipment and if asked to use it,
,

.e will. But it is not arr primary responsibility.20 w

21 Q Will as part of the -- I'm trying to get out

12 what you do have in your plan. Is it planned, duni, that some4

'

23 of the vehicles given a radiological emergency will go to

/~'s 24 the places where **e equipment is located and. pick thatO.

25 equipment up before they are dispatched to the various

-
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J 'l 3 traffic control points?
(v

2 A No. I don't think that's the way it would work.

3 Probably it would work -- now again, depending upon the
O

#
4 sequence of events. If the events were to occur as outlined

5 in some of the plans with the four separate staces, there.is

6 time to do a lot of things. On the other hand, if it's a

7 hey, we've skipped the first three, we're going to number
4

8 four rightnow, then the equipment would be brought to them

, 9 and that would take a little longer.
!

10 Q All right. Is there a plan or is it part of the

33 plan to have equipment, to have transportation equipment on

12 a stand-by basis to get this radiological equipment to the

13 officers in the field?

() 34 A This is something we do repeatedly, for example,

| 15 if let's say we need a camera at the mene and-we don't happen
* 16 to have a camera there. We take the camera, and so forth.

17 So we have other units. We have supervisors that can perform

13 that function.

19 Q With respect to dosimeters and any -- will the

20 officers be given dosimete::s before they are dispatched to

21 the traffic control points?

22 A That is the plan, yes.

23 Q Where would they go to pick those up?

24 A Well, again, that depends upon the sequence of{}
25 events. If we take the worst case, somebody is going to have

0
-
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1 to take them to them. If it's what is foreseen then there

2 would be any number of way.s of them getting them.

3 Q Let me be more specific then. Is this equipment,_s

U
4 located at the various headquarters that you referred to

5 earlier?

6 A Yes.

7 Q So in the event there was time they could g o back

8 and pick those up before they were' dispatched to the traffic

9 control?

10 A That's true. Yes.

11 Q But if there was not time they might be dispatched

12 directly to the contro. -- I mean traffic control spots, is

i 13 that correct?

O i4 A Yee.

15 Q Is there any provision in your plan for continuing

16 maintenance and calibration of radiological monitoring equip-

17 ment?
~

18
-

A I cannot tell yos in specifics regarding cali-

19 bration. I know that the equipment is maintained. I could

20 not tell you how of ten. I don't know.

j 21 Q Do the officers involved have any special pro
'

22 tective clothing that they might use in --

23 A No.

24 Q Does the training that they receive in radiologi-{}
25 cal monitoring have any part of that training the effects of

-
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(') I radioactivity on -- the health effects of radioactivity?
t->

2 A Yes.

/~ 3 0 What would be the CHP's role, if any, with
N3

>

)
' - 4 respect to confirming that an evacuation has in fact taken

5 place?

6 A Well, the evacuation is the responsibility of the

7 sherriff's department and, again, we would take on whatever

8 missions the sherriff's department asks us to take on, given

9 the number of people to do what he asks. So if that were a

10 role he wanted us to play, we would do it.

11 Q So you are on standby to help the sherriff in

12 various functions of the sherriff with respect to the --

13 A Basically, the whole operation is a local opera ,

'

14 tion, as we see it. And we are acting in assistance to the

15 sherriff's office.

16 Q Do you have any plcns then specifically to aid

17 in confirmation?
..

! 18 A No. No written plans, no.

19 Q That's all right. You don't necessarily have to.

'

20 I'm just trying to get at what you have. With respect to

21 re-entry of the evacuation zone after the evacuation has
,

| 12 taken place later, and fixing up the situation and getting

23 people back to their homes, do you have any plans at all in
,

,

() 24 your specific plans to aid in that function?
>

25 A No. j

(~) !,
3-
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(,) 1 Q With respecu to security, shutting down the area,

2 if you will, after an evacuation has taken place and moni-

{s^')
3 toring to krop things from looting or other types of behavior

4 like that, do you in your local or your general plans have

5 any matters or points addressing that problem?

6 A That's a secondary responsibil.ity, again,

7 assisting the sherriff.
>

8 Q So you don't have any specific plans with respe t.

9 to that.

10 MR. ROGIN: You mean for this purpose as oppcsed

11 to their general operation as police officers?
-f

12 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, these men aren't generally

13 -- they're not police officers, I don't believe.

O 14 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

15 0 You're not a ceneral police force, are you, in

16 the CHP?

! 17 A Ue have full peace officer powers. Our primary
. . .

;

18 responsibility is traffic.
~

19 Q Okay. I won't pursue that further. Have you

20 been consulted or were you consulted in your conversations

21 with either the Applicant or the local jurisdictions or

22 Wilbur Smith Associates in what your opinion should be the

23 size or shape of the emergency planning zone?

() 24 A No, not that I know of. No.

25 Q Could you describe what you take to be the

O
-

. - - - -
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(') 1 emergency planning zone, the general boundary of it?
U

2 A As I ur.derstand it, it is a ten-mile radius.
-

gs 3 Q Did you have any meetings personally with anybody
i

~

4 from Wilbur Smith or the Applicant or the local jurisdictions

5 wherein you discussed the creation or the drawing of the

6 boundsry line for the emergency planning zone?

7 A No.

8 Q With respect to the time estimates, again, that

9 you have concurred with that are contained in the Wilbur

10 Smith study, would your opinion as to any of those time

11 estimates, either in the capability of evacuating completely

12 or the initial staffing of the diversion points, change if

13 there were an adverse condi cion such as bad weather?

() 14 A If thar: 'f:&e extremely bad weather, talking

15 about a hurricane or floods or something like that, cer-

16 tainly it would affect the time it would take.

17 Q Okay. In your opinion as an officer and a long-
~ '

18 time member of the force in Southern C'alifornia if there were
19 net a sever hurricane but a rain, let's say, do you think

20 that would significantly impact upon the flow of traffic?i

21 A Well, we'll have to get more specific and say
4

22 how does that affect the highways. If it washes out highways

23 then that is one thing; if it doesn't, then you could maybe

(} 24 take a little longer. I think people would move more cau-
,

25 tiously perhaps in the rain -- hopefully they would.

.
.
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. .

() 1 Q Okay. Short of any catantrophe -- I'm just

2 trying to get at the regular rain, normal kind of Southern

3 California rainfall which doesn't wash out anything --
(v~}

4 MR. ROGIN: I haven't -- excuse me. I thought

5 you were done.

6 MR. .bE: CLUNG: Go ahead.

7 MR. ROGIN: I haven't been objecting because-I

8 thought we could get through it faster if I didn't. But

9 there are separate time estimates for adverse ~ weather and

to now t he way the questions are going I think it is getting

11 rathe- confusing as to which estimates we are talking about.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: I think that's a helpful clarifi-
t

!. 13 cation.
,

\- 14 MR. MC CLUNG: Thank you very much, Ed. I'm
'

15 referring to the specific 'thne estimates that are referred

16 to for adverse weather'conditibns. In -cther words , he

17 generallycin the beginning statement'and.through his testi-

18 mony he testified that he agreed or concurred in all the2

19 time estimates.

20 MR. ROGIN: He said he thought they were reason-
4

21 able. But my point was when you are asking him questions

12 now I want to be specific if you are asking him about v. nether

23 he believes the adverse weather time estimates are good for

() 24 adverse weather as opposed to the non-adverse. weather time'

25 estimates being accurate for adverse weather.

. mar

4

t
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/') 1 MR. MC CLUNG: Thank you..t js

2 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, another concern here I think

(~} 3 is that you can ask under adverse weather effects how fast
ss

4 one can evacuate, but I think you ought to establish first-

5 perhaps by a question whether this witness is really familiar

6 in detail with different time estimatas for different

7 weather conditions and road conditions and, if he is not,

!

8 he's just not and we wouldn't tie it then to the study.

9 MR. MC CLUNG: Thank you.

10 BY MR. MC CLUNG:;

11 Q Are you f amiliar with dif ferent time estimatesj

12 for use of the highway under adverse weather coaditions?

13 A No, I'm not.

(
14 Q Are you familiar with or do you recall the-

15 various time estimates for adverse weather conditions that

16 are contained in the Wilbur Smith study?

17 A I don't believe I saw those. The ones I have
_

18 seen are strictly just normal conditions.
1

19 Q Okay. Thanks.

20 A Give the times from within I think the two-mile
.

21 radius and so on, building up to the entire EPZ.

22 ///

23

() 24

25

)
; _

'

. . - . _ _ . _, _ _ _ . . . . _ _ . _ _ _ _ - - . _ - . .
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:II._ \~kl 1 Q Did you personally participate in the May 13th

2 exercise at San Onofre?

() 3 A No.

4 Q Did people under your supervision participate in

5 that?*

6 A Yes.

7 Q Did you or your men make any written reports to

8 you with respect to their participation in that FEMA review

9 process?

10 A Yes.

11 Q Could you tell me briefly what their conclusions

12 were with respect to capability of the CHP as demonstrated in

13 that review?

14 A No problems. The one thing that came out of our

15 review of the exercise -- one change tF-t we would make, and

16 this is something that we would have done anyway in the event

17 of an actual occurrence, would the establishment of the EOC

18 at my headquarters. 'We did not do that during this. exercise

19 We see that as something we should have done, and would do in

20 any future exercises and most certainly would have done or
,

21 will do in the event of an actual occurrence.

22 Q Have you participated in the ongoing attempts to

i 23 update and revise the plans of the various local response

() 24 organizations since the exercise?

25 A No.

O
.
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(3 1 Q Okay, just a few more questions here. Is there
|x,;
!

2 any provision in the local plans or in your general plans for
.

(~/)
3 staggered evacuation for evacuation of certain sectors but

s_
4 not others?

5 A I don't -- I can't answer that question. Our

6 response is the same regardless. The Highway Satrol does

7 those things that I have shown you as far as the control

8 points are concerned. We do that regardless of.whether there

9 is going to be an evacuation, I guess. When they say it is

10 a general emergency and to implement the plan, that is what

11 we do.

12 As far as any other information, say, that is

', 13 given to the public, broadcast or the use of the warning sys-
'

14 tem was concerned, we won't have anything to do with that.

15 0 would it make an effect -- would it affect what

16 you and your men would do as far as doing the traffic diver-

17 sion?
. - . _ _ .

18 A No.

19 Q Will your men and the CHP play any role in the

20 traffic -- transportation assembly points that are provided

21 in the Wilbur Smith study?

22 A Well let me just say again, we will provide what-

23 ever assistance we are asked to provide within the limits of

() 24 our resources.

25 0 I think that answers tLit. Is there -- or are

O
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(
\.d I there any provisions in your contracts for the people that

2 work -- the officers that work for the CHP which would

() 3 restrict in any way their going into an area which was radio-

4 logically contaminated?

5 A No.

6 Q Do you --

7 A We really don't have contracts in the way that

8 you are speaking --

9 Q Okay.

10 A At this point at least.

11 Q Thank you. That is helpful. Do you have any
a

12 provision in your plans which sets forth any restrictions on

g your men's capability of going into an area which is radio-13

j 14 logically contaminated?

15 'MR . ROGIN: I don't want to interfere, but I don'-:j

16 understand the question and the use of the word capability.

!

17 at that point. .

7
3

-

.

* 18 JUDGE KELLEY: It is unclear to me.

) 19 MR. MC CLUNG: Okay.
|

| 20 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

21 Q In the -- I will make a specific reference, and

i
- 12 perhaps that will clarify my concern -- I don't have a page

23 number, but in the Crange County plan, the Sheriff -- under
i1

24 some of the duties of the Sheriff, it is stated there that,

25 in no circumstances shall the Sheriff be required to go into )

()
. .

't

. . . _ . . . . , - . -. ,



8319

) y any place where there is high risk due to radiological con-

tamination, and I was wondering if in your plans you had any2

similar caveats or restrictions on where your men might go in
3

4 the event of an emergency?

A We don't have anything written in that respect,
5

but , can say this, that if we would not send men in where6

there was an extreme risk to their safety, but beyond that7

8 there is no problem. We would have to rely on the information"

and advice of the people expert in this field.9

MR. MC CLUNG: Thank you. I have no further ques-gg

tions.yy

JUDGE KELLEY: Do you, Staff?
12

MR. HOEFLING: No questions, Mr. Chairman.
13

JUDGE KELLEY: All right.34

JUDGE HAND: Chief Killingworth, I have one
15

question. In your border district, other than the plans that
16

reliste to San Onofre, are there any other plans in place that
37

contemplate anything of' this scale where there might be
18

mass evacuation?19

WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Well, we have plans --
20

each area operation has plans with respect to earthquakes,
21

fires, tidal waves if they are along the coast, floods, and
22

so forth, so I could -- yes. It is contemplated there could
23

(") just be this kind of evacuation unless -- let's say in the
24v

case of dams breaking, where large amounts of water would be
25

(Oa
_

. , - _ _ . -, . - . - _ .
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)5 1 descending on the city within a few minutes, yes.

2 JUDGE HAND: Are you generally familiar with those

(^} 3 plans?
x.s

4 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Well let me say this, yes.

5 .But our role is usually the same -- pretty much the same

6 regardless of the emergency.

7 JUDGE HAND: I appreciate that. Why are those

8 other plans in place? What has been the source of that kind

9 of planning?

10 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: The source?

11 JUDGE HAND: Is it done individually by district

12 in the CHP, or is there some masterplan for the state as a

13 whole?

n' 14 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: There is a master plan,''

15 yes. It begins at the very top. There is a master plan for

16 most emergencies which are in general terms only, and then

17 further down the chain of command we go, the more specific

; 18' the pJans become, until they actually become a working docu-

19 ment.

2G JUDGE HAND: But was there anything unusual in

21 the planning that you were involved in, or that your unit

22 was involved in in relating to tra needs of San Onofre and it.s

23 requirements that there be a plan?

() 24 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: No, sir.

25 JUDGE HAND: Are you aware of any case in the

/~34

V
|

x-

. . .
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] 1 state of California where indeed there was a major evacuation

2 that the CHP became involved in? And I don' t mean just try-

() 3 ing to be sure that a few rural residents were out of the

4 way because of the advance of a forest fire. I mean some

5 . major eme 1ency where some thousands of people perhaps had to

b be moved.

7 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: I am going just from my

8 memorv which is not that great. But going back to the floods

9 in Eureka back in late 50's or early 60's whenever it was --

10 that was a big operation and I am sure there was a lot of

11 evacuations and rescues and so forth.
.

12 JUDGE HAND: I am under the impression from some

13 recent headlines and articles in the newspaper that there was
,. 7,
v

14 some emergency in San Francisco very recently which required

15 a fairly major evacuation. I won't attempt to cite the num-

; 16 ber, but I believe it ran into the thousands. Was the CHP

17 involved in that, or perhaps you don't know. It is well out
_

18 of your district.
,

19 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: I don't know.
.

20 JUDGL HAND: Fine. All right. Thank you.'

21 JUDGE KELLEY: Youspoke earlier about the fact

22 that the Sheriff's office was going to take care of the

| 23 Paci fic Coast Highway , and I believe also indicated that

) 24 you had jurisdiction outside of unincorporated areas, but

25 that your function was primarily with traf fic. Those comment s

Ov



.

8322

n

k.) 1 just raised a question in my mind about how the jurisdictions

2 of the Sheriff's people and yours have overlapped. I take it

,- s
3 they do, and how that gets sorted out --(_)
4 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: In this specific instance

5 the jurisdiction is not. overlapping. It is just a matter of

6 agreement, prior agreement that they will handle those points,

7 They are going to handle some other points with incorporated
.,

8 cities and so it is an extension of what they are already
,

9 going to do, and it is just a matter of them saying -- hey,

10 we have got the people to do this, and as saying, well, we

11 might not, so why don't you go ahead ard handle that. It is

12 just --

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Do they, for example, have anyg-
V),

14 authority over traffic in the interstate highway inside

15 their county?

16 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: They.-- that is not their

17 responsibility and they do not work traffic, however, they

18 are police officers and as such they can issue citations and

19 perfc _ traffic work. It is incidental to their other duties

20 JUDGE KELLEY: It think the real question here is

21 do you see any potential for confusion over who is supposed

12 to do what in a situation like this between your people and

23 the Sheriff's people?

'

24 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: No, I don't. What we

25 have done is to take the Orange County plan and the San Diego

O'us |

i-
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-s

(_) 1 County plan and extract the parts of that plan which deal

2 specifically with us, and to ,rPs our own mini-pla., so to

(^ 3 speak. It does not include those locations, so we don't in-
L }/.

4 tend to do that and they do. That is the best way I can put

5 it.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Thank you. A trivial

7 question -- can you hear a loudspeaker from a helicopter?

8 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Yes. And from a fixed

9 wing. I personally witnessed that.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Some kind of focused sound --

11 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: M-hmm.

12 JUDGE KEL ?Y- -- that is almost aimed at where

13 it is going?

N' 14 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Yes. We use the loud-
,'

!

j 15 speakers with the fixed wing frequently to assist motorists.

16 We have asked them is everything okay, and they look up and

17 through band signals we ask them to make we can communicate.
-

_
.

18 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. We had some testimony from

19 a prior witness concerning what he would expect in an evacua-

20 tion situation involving radialogical accidents, and it was

| 21 to the effect that he thought that people would be very calm

| 22 and deliberate and cooperative and that would aid in the

23 carrying out of an evacuation. And my question is, from

() 24 your professional experience, in a situation like this where

25 you are dealing with a radiological release where by

(G_/

- . .
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m
:AL ) I hypothesis there is this invisible cloud coming toward you,

2 would you expect on the highways panic, speeding and so on,

/~') 3 or how do you think people as a whole, as a crowd, would(s
-

4 behave themselves?

5 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: I think as a crowd they

6 would behave themselves reasonably well. I am sure there

7 would be some speeding and reckless driving and whatever.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Any more tnan whac you would expect

9 in some other kind of evacuation situation -- forest fire?>

10 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: No. We recently had
'

gi occasion to evacuate an area over around the Arizona border

12 in connection with a cloud of noxious gases which could not

13 be seen, and sometimes it is a bigger problem to get people

'' ( )
,

14 excited enough to move when it is something they can't see
>

15 than the opposite.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: That soundt like an interesting

17 example. Could you expand on t, hat a little bit. What hap-

' '

pened in this cloud of gas evacuation? How many people --18

19 what were the circumstances?

20 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: It was a truck carrying --

21 I think it was nitric acid. It developed a leak and it was

12 stopped. The leak then formed a cloud. This was what we

23 term a hazardous material spill. We responded. We blocked

24 the highway. We had other agencies working with us, including

25 the Sheriff which was responsible for evacuation. This was

' (~).

.Y'

,
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( )10 1 in Blythe, so we are not talking atout tremendous numbers of

2 people, but it was 117 degrees.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Blythe is a small town?{}
4 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Blythe is a very small

5 town, yes.

6 MR. ROGIN: ~In the desert.

7 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: It is in the desert. It

8 is right near the border on Interstate 10. This cloud was

9 moving across the river and over into Arizona, so there was

10 an area -- I think it was Aronberg where there was some evac-

11 uation. There was a large trailer park where there was evac-

12 uation. Everything went smoothly. The only problem we had

.

was that the press came in several loads of helicopters from! 13

'

14 all over the country.
J

i 15 JUDGE KELLEY: About how many people would you
!

16 say, roughly, were evacuated?

17 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: A few hundred at the most ,

1, -

18 JUDGE KELLEY: A few hundred from a relativelyI

i

19 small area?

20 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Yeah.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: But their reactions were -- I
r

'

12 guess you have indicated -- fairly calm and cooperative, if

23 anything reluctant to leave?

() 24 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: Yes, that is -- some

25 people don't want to leave, and I think our position would be
1

O
+-
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] 11 1 that once we have told you and we have explained to you,

2 then we are going to spend our time on the people that will

3 leave, rather than on the ones that won't, at least at the| q
Q.,

4 outset.

5
.i

i
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j ('; 1 JUDGE KELLEY: That's a question that I think
V

2 we looked at before. Evacuation under the plan is voluntary

3 and if somebody just wants to stay they can stay.,

(~)
4 WITNESS KILLINGSWORTH: As I understand the plan,,

5 that is the position they are taking. I could be wrong

6 about that. In our particular case, we would take the

7 Position that this is an area where the public is not allowed

8 and we would feel that we had the authority to order them

9 out. Now if somebody says I'm not leaving or a group of

10 people say I'm not leaving, then I guess you have to make a

33 choice as to whether you are going to spend your time dealing

12 with that small number of people or with the mass of people

13 that you can better spend lour time alerting.

()'

14 JUDGE KELLEY: I thshk perhaps with another

15 witness or perhaps through counsel in some fashion we can --

16 is there a short answer? Is evacuation iaandatory, Mr.

17 Pigott, in your view?

13 MR. PIGOTT: Evacuation in the normal sense would

19 not be under penalty of law.-

20 JUDGE KELLEY: That's what I mean.

21 MR. PIGOTT: There are provisions within the
,

22 California codes I believe when certain peace officers
i

23 determine certain areas to be too hazardous, they can then

f')T 24 enforce a moving out. But that is not contemplated in these
u

25 plans at this time.

O&
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[,$1( 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Not under the plans as written.
(-)

2 MR. PIGOTT: That's correct.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. That's fine., ,_

U 4 I believe that's all I have. Do you have re-

5 direct for this witness?

6 MR. ROGIN: No, we do not.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you very much, Chief

8 Killingsworth. We appreciate your appearance very much.
~

,

9 (The witness was excused.)

10 MR. ROGIN: Our next witness, we would call
i
'

11 David H. Roper.

12 Whereupon,

13 DAVID H. ROPER

() 14 was called as a witness herein and, after being first duly

15 sworn by the Chairman, was examined and testified as follows:,

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION

17 BY MR. ROGIN:

18 Q Would you state your full name and' address,

; 19 please?

20 A David H. Roper. My business address is 120 South

21 Spring Street, Los Angeles, 90012. i

12 Q Did you receive a subgena in this action and

23 are you appearing in response to that subgena today?

24 A I did and I am.
J w

25 Q Can you please state the name of the organization

.
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(~)T
1 for which you work and your title?

%

2 A The California Department of Transportation,

. 3 known as Caltrans. I'm Deputy District Director in charge

4 of operations in the Los Angeles District, which covers

5 Ventura, Los Angeles, and Orange Counties.

6 Q And could you briefly describe your general,

7 duties and responsibilities, please?

8 A My responsibilities have to do with the traffic

9 aspects of the transportation business, analyzing traffic

10 flows on state highways and conducting the operation of the

11 state highway system.

12 Q And could you briefly describe for us your

13 formal education and training?

) 14 A Yes. I have a bachelors degree, bachelor of
i

15 science in civil engineering,from Arizona. I have a masters

j 16 degree in civil engineering from the University of Southern

i 17 California.
~

18 Q Could you trace for us your employment background

19 briefly?

20 A Yes. Primarily my entire employment career has

21 been spent with Caltrans. I've been with them 30 years.

22 In addition, on a part-time basis I have taught at the

23 university level in various universities throughout the LA

() 24 Basin.

25 Q I identified on the record a map which appears
i

v

, -
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'

/~' I be. hind you today entitled San Onofre Nuclear Generating(,-)
2 Station, SONGS Emergency Response Plan. Is that a map that

3 -- I don't mean prepared in the sense of drawing all the73
C/

4 streets on, but the yellow and red markings on it, was that

5 something that you did?

6 A That was prepared by people under my supervision.
,

7 Q Could you briefly just describe what appears on

8 the map, because it is not in the record, just so the record

9 reflects what we've been looking at?

10 A Yes. Essentially it shows the closure points and

11 the diversion points on the freeway system. This would be

12 those po.'.nts located to the north of San Onofre. It also

13 shows on it the alternate routes that would be set up, the

() '

I4 diversionary routes that would be set up, and also some

15 information relating to our maintenance organization and

16 where our maintenance stations in 'e Orange County area

17 are located.
. _

18 Q Was Caltrans involved in the development of the

19 evacuation routes to be used in the event of an emergency at

20 SONGS?

21 A Yes, we were.

22 Q Could you please describe that involvement for

23 us?

() 24 A That involvement was in the form of several

25 meetings, several discussions, primarily with representati es
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(_,)
,

1 of Wilbur Smith and Ass'ociates, Mr. Brothers and his people.
2 We had several meetings where we reacted to a prel.minary

/~T 3 plan that had been prepared and then follow-up meetings in, (-)
4 which those plans were modified based on some comments and

5 observ ations we had, some suggestions we had.

6 Q As the final routes and traffic control points

7 appear in the plans do they meet with your approval?
|

4 A Yes, they do.

9 Q It's been stated a number of times today by

10 Chief Killingsworth that you worked with the Highway Patrol

11 on a regular basis involving traffic diversion and traffic

12 movement. Could you describe from your perspective the work

13 that you do and how you communicate and coordinate with the

()i
14 Highway Patrol?i

15 A Yes. And this is perhaps -- well, it is more

16 intensive in the Los Angeles area and more formalized in

17 the Los Angeles area than it is in some of the other areas
_

18 throughout the state. ~But we have a team approach, we have

19 a traffic operations center established in which both the

20 Highway Patrol and Caltrans are partners. They man that

21 operation cfa.er jointly on a day-to-day basis. We have

12 procedures set up where our people as well as Highway Patrol

23 people as well -- when I say "our people" we are really

() 24 talking in two general areas. One is a maintenance area and

25 one is a traffic engineering area - where our people will

Ouj

_ _ _ _ _ _ y-- -
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/

(,) 1 meet on the site of a major incident with the Highway Patrol
4

2 people, establish a command post and manage that incident

(~') 3 scene. In addition to that, we have the more ordinary, I'll
V

4 call them, routine contacts with the Highway Patrol dealing

5 with all sorts of traffic problems that may come up on a

6 day-to-day basis.

7 Q You have an emergency operations center estab-

8 lished. How much of the day does that operations center

9 -- is it opened and manned?

10 A That ope 24tions center is opened 16 hours a day

11 seven days a week.

12 0 And is it adjacent to or nearby a communications

13 center?,

14 A Yes. It's adjacent to, right next door *o it.

15 Q And does the communications center operate around

16 the clock?

17 A Yes. It's 24 hours aday, seven days a week.

18 Q And are there capabilities to bring in additional

19 people to man the emergency operation center if that becomes

20 necessary or advisable?

21 A Yes.

22 Q Do you have existing procedures to perform the

| 23 functions you have described in working with the Highway

24 Patrol in establishing trtffic diversion points when required?

25 A Yes. We have those procedures that are in a lot

|
-

|

__ _ - - -
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,-) 1 of different forms and, at the present time, we are drawing
(_/

2 those together into an operating procedures manual.

3 Q Can you describe for us, please, the communica-
,

(j
'

4 tions that you have available in dealing first within your

5 own organization, from your communications center to your

6 trucks' radios, if there at any, that sort of thing?
'

7 A Yes. We have a complete system of -- it's our

3 own microwave system of on-top repeaters and we have back-

9 up systems to that to cover our entire' district. We have

10 three or four different frequencies that we can operate on

31 for our traffic personnel and our maintenance personnel.

12 Q Does Caltrans have existing procedures for by-

13 passing particular intersections or overpasses in the event

| () 14 that they become not passable b y traf fic?

15 A Yes. And this is something that is somewhat

16 unique to the Los Angeles region. We have gone through our
'

17 entire district and said to ourselves what would we do with

13 traffic if the freeway were to be blocked at this point.

19 We have developed some 3300 maps of alternate routes where
,

20 we would divert traffic off the freeway, take them onto

21 local surface streets. Those maps include the signing that

12 would.be required, the manpower that would be required not

23 only on the freeway system, but on the surface streets.

r~i 24 0 Whan you mention signing do you mean signs that
V

25 would be on trucks or otherwise available for viewing by

(1)
'
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(~ I the public?
V)

2 A Yes. Our emergency response teams, our traffic

3 people are equipped with changeable message signs that areg
(''/ 4 mounted on trucks, both bulb-type signs and a vel,cro-type

5 sign.

6 Q Turning now to the function that you would play

7 in the event of an emergency at SONGS requiring evacuation

8 of traffic control, how would Caltrans receive notice of such

9 an event?

10 A Two sources. One would be through the Orange

11 County EOC. The second source would be through the Highway

12 Patrol.

13 Q Do you have copies of the plans and the evacua-

() 14 tion routes at your offices?

15 A Yes.

16 Q And what would be, then, your response if you

17 were asked to set up traffic diversion procedures or loca-
-

18 ~ tions?
_

19 A Again, I would split that response into two

20 general areas, one a maintenance response and one a traffic

21 operations response team. On the maintenance side, tise word
4

22 would go out to our maintenance people in the Orange County

23 area that they were to previde the assistance and the backup

('T 24 to the Highway Patrol in not only blocking the freeway but
V

25 diverting traffic off the freeway. This would mean substi-

O
O
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I tuting cones and barricades for the Highway Patrol vehicles(';)
%-

2 and flares that would be set out on a short range basis.

3 On the traffic response side, our units would roll, our

4 sign units would roll, our sedans would roll, and meet the

5 Highway Patrol and there a command post would be set up out

6 in the field where the maintenance, the traffic, and the

7 Highway Patrol enforcement disciplines would be present.

8 Q The equipment that you mentioned, cones and

9 barricades, is that some special equipment or is that equip-

10 ment you would use for other purposes?

11 A That's routine equipment that's used for a

12 variety of purposes and is also maintained at each of our

13 maintenance stations for traffic control.

() 14 Q With the possible exception of a number of points

15 which might be involved, would your procedures for responding

16 to an emergency at SONGS differ from your procedures in

17 responding to other types of emergencies?
.

~

18 A No. It would be very similar.

19 Q Am I right that District 11 of Caltrans starts

20 at the San Diego County - Orange County border and goes

21 south?

12 A That's correct.

23 Q And do you have procedures to coordinate your

[}
24 activities with District 11 of Caltrans?

25 A Yes.

.
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r^ 1 Q In your opinion, do you have sufficient equipment^

%,]
2 available to perform the functions defined in the plans for

3 traffic diversion and the maintenance of the operations you

(_#h'- 4 described?

5 A Yes, we do.

6 Q And do you have sufficient personnel to carry

7 out those plans and procedures?

8 A Yes.
.

9 Q Have you had occasion to conduct any exercises

10 wherein you presumed some loss of normal communication, such

11 as telephones, to determine your capabilities to respond to

12 an emergency?

13 A Yes, we have.
s

14 Q Could you describe those for us, please?

15 A Recently, the office of emergency services, state

16 office of emergency services, conducted an earthquake

17 exercise -- this was on February 2, which was the 10th
~

18 anniversary of'.the Sylmar quake. "

19 JUDGE KELLEY: Which earthquake was that?

?,0 WITNESS ROPER: The Sylmar - San Fernando earth-

21 quake. Ten years ago. Part of that exercise, in which an

22 earthquake was simulated and all stat _ agencies and many

23 local agencies participated in the exercise, it was assumed

(J~T
24 that there was no telephone communications and we further

'

25 made an assumption that our microwave towers on mountaintops

O
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'-(~N 1 would either be down or out of alignment. We 1onducted anu)
2 exercise *.o see what kind of radio communications we would

3 have. We have many units in the field with mobile capa-r3
V

4 bilities, mobile radios. And so we fell out one evening and

5 had our traffic people who have these units home at night

6 fall out and we were able to with mobile units cover the

7 bulk of our district without having to go through the central

8 and mountaintop repeaters.
1

9' Q And that includes Los Angeles, Orange, md

10 Ventura Counties you are now speaking about?

11 A That's correct.
:

I 12 Q How long did it takc to establish those communi-

13 cations and make preparations to take action?

)i 14 A Well, we went through a test where each person

15 right on down the line transmitted and every other person

16 listened to see if --

17 (At this point in the record there occurred a power

IU failure in the hearing room ind the Chairman recessed the

19 hearing, off the record, at 11:42 a.m. until 1:00 p.m.)

20

21

22

23

(d'N 24

25

- -
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O 2 <i:oe p.m.>

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record.

4 Comment about our progress. We have scheduled

|
'

5 three subpoenaed witnesses today. We have finished with one.

6 We have just gotten into the direct of the second.

7 MR. ROGIN: I should add that it is almosti

;
4

8 completed.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. The point I wanted to make

10 very simply is that we think that particularly with

11 subpoenaed witness J, we should stick to the schedule as

12 long as it seems reasonable in the first place, that we have
.

Q 13 set up, needless to say it applies to subpoenaed witnesses of

14 all parties.

15 We then would propose to get through and finish

16 with the three a day that we have set up pretty much for this

17 week, absent some very unusual cause where one witness
,

18 perhaps becomes especially critiical or covers a lot of very

19 important material.

'
20 From this vantage point, it doesn't seem that we

21 have that situation, so I would like all Counsel to bear that

22 in mind, and it really means a direct, and it especially

23 means cross, when your witnes,ses come up, it is going to mean
.

24 the : Applicants more than anybody else to -- we will all pay a

25
; little attention to the clock with a view to finishing up with

. _ . - _ _ , __ __ __ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ . - . _ _ . . _
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27 1 the day's scheduled witnesses . I think with that kind of an

() 2 approach, we don't have to get the time 1Luits, but we are

3 prepared to if we need to, in order to stay on that kind of a

() 4 s chedule . Okay.
:

; 5 MR. ROGIN: I would like the reporter to perhaps

6 play back, if we could, if we still have the tape here, the
I

7 last answer --

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes, could you pick up where the

9 witness left off on his direct, so we could catch "the threads?
~

10 (Whereupon, the previous question and answer were -1

11 played back.) - -.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Are you ready now?
_

' (} 13 THE REPORTER: Yes.

14 JUDGE KELLEY: Go ahead.

15 Whereupon,

16 DAVID ROPER

17 resumed 'he witness stand and, having been previously dulyt

18 sworn,by the Chairman, was examined and testified further as

19 follows:

! 20 DIRECT EXAMINATION -- RESUMED

21 BY MR. ROGIN:

22 Q If that is sufficient for' the witness to pick up
23 his answer?

24 A Yes, it is, and if I might continue on, we,

(
15 conducted a test where each of as in turn transmitted, and
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3 I then each in tura listened, and then we filled out a report to

( 2 see who could hear whom, and through that we establishedi

3 that with very few exceptions, we could cover the entire

D)(_ 4 district or the bulk of the district with our mobile
,

5 communications.

6 Q Earlier in your testimony, you indicated that you

7 had a degree in civil engineering. Are you a registered

I 8 professional engineer in California?

9 A Yes, I am . I am a registered civil engineer, and

10 registered traffic engineer.

11 O In the event that during an evacuation or prior
.

12 to an evacuation, there were some problems caused by, say, an
.

'f) 13 earthquake, or another type of phenomenon that caused damage

14 or potential damage to highway overpasses or bridges, do you
i

15 have any plans to be able to investigate the extent of that

16 damage ?
. -.

j 17 A Yec, we do. We -- as a - *just a matter of course ,

18 we would have maintenance people go out, inspect the damage,
d

19 make a judgment on what is usable, what is not. From that we'

20 could then place into operation the traffic control

21 alternative routes as needed.

22 o Do you have the capability, given a suf ficient

13 amount of time, obviously, to build around some obstruction?

24 A Yes, we do. We can do that either with our own'

25 maintenance forces, or we can go an emergency contract.

_ _ _ , _ . _ _ - . _ - . - - --
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4 1 Q; Would it be possible in examining overpasses and

() 2 bridges on highways to make some prediction about which of

3 them would withstand an earthquake of a given magnitude, a

() 4 two or a three in that -- I don 't mean limited to that range,

5 but could you make a prediction in advance of which structures

6 might have problems?

7 A I think you can make a prediction. I think that

8 it is a very difficult area to deal in. Obviously there are

9 so many variables associated with earthquake forces. You can

10 make that prediction, but I am not sure that a -- short of a

11 very, very intensive study that that pret:. - ion would,

12 necessarily hold true.

(]) 13 Q Would you be required to investigate these

14 structures in any event to determine what actually happened

"

15 af ter an earthquake or another disaster of that type?

16 A Absolutely.-

. .

'
17 Q And you mentioned earlier that you had maps and

| 18 decisions already made about how to circumvent such a -- or

19 bypass such a blockage, is that right?

20 A That is correct.

21 Q Have you ever expressed any concerns with the

22 time estimates that are contained in the Wilbur Smith *

,

23 studies for the evacuation, in terms of their reasonableness? )
1

24 A No.0 .

25 0 Are you aware of any other persons. within

. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ . - _ . _ -_. -
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5 1 Caltrans who has expressed any concerns of that type?

O 2 A no, I am noe.

3| 0 And based on your review of them, and in a I

O 4 9 a r 1 en , ao you rina en to de re oa 81 =1 e 2

5 A Yes, I do.

| 6 MR. ROGIN: He have no further direct.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Very well.

8 Could I just ask one question at this point?
/

9 You referred to an earthquake, I believe initially as the6

10 Sylmar earthquake, is that what you said?

11 WIT:lESS ROPER: That is correct, yes.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: And when I think I asked you then,
~

] 13 and you said it was San Ferdando, San Fernando Valley, is that

14 where this was?

15 WITNESS ROPER: It was at the upper end of the

16 San Fernando Valley, near the community of Sylmar.
.

| 17 JUDGE KELLEY: I see. That is one -- I thought
'

18 Mr. Pigott through his witnesses had made us familiar in

19 detail with every earthquake in California in the last 100

20 years last month, that one I don't remember. Is that one in

1 21 the record?

'

22 MR. PIGOTT: How s oon they forget.
,

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Very good. Touche.

1

24 MR. P::GCerT: The San Fernando '71, yes. It might |<O,

'

25 have been referred to in terms of Pacoima, whicn was the

.. __ . ._ .



6 1 Pacoima Dam.

2 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. That refreshes my

'
3 recollection, as we say.

] 4 MR. PIGOTT: There was a Pacoima Dam record that

5 We --

6 JUDGE KELLEY: With a very high acceleration?

7 MR. PIGOTT: Yes.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: See, I didn't forget at all.

9 MR. PIGOTT No.

10 WITNESS ROPER: That was our big one.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. Okay. Well, cross-

12 examination by the Intervenors?

' t' 13 MR. PIGOTT: Excuse me..
; '

14 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.
.

15 MR. PIGOTT: Once again we are, as you can see

16 from the direct, getting close to this area of examinations of

17 earthquakes under the SSE. At some time, I think it would

18 probably -- or hope it would be appropriate for a statement

19 of counsel.

'

20 I have read the transcript, portions of the

21 transcript from Saturday. We have had Mr. Brothers coming

22 back on, and I have contemplated before bringing back Mr.

O
23 Brothers if that is necessary that I be allowed to give the

24 Board an explanation of how we have approached thisO'

V
25 examination of earthquakes and emergency planning, because

. , .
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7 1 I have never set forth in any brief or any memorandum, and it

'

' (]) 2 is not.. explicitly . covered in any of the testimony, so at some

3 time, I would like the opportunity to explain at least the

(]) 4 thought processes that the Applicant has gone through in
,

: 5 addressing that question.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: When you say in addressing this

7 question, do you mean in response to the Staf f's request that

; 8 you do certain things with reference to the earthquake hazard?

9 MR. PIGO" T : Yes, and also as that fits into what

10 I understand to be the general concerns of the Board.
4

11 JUDGE KELLEY: This may be a good time right now,

12 this witness has already testified to some extent about

13 earthquakes. Do you think this would be an appropriate point?

14 MR. PIGOTT: I think it might, yes.
1

.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Are you prepared to --

16 MR. PIGOTT: Yes.
1

17 JUDGE KELLEY: -- make such a statement now?
*

18 MR. PIGOTT : Yes.
l

19 JUDGE KELLEY: Why don't you go ahead, all right.
t

20 MR. PIGOTT: I think the Board will recall that

21 as we have discussed this whole area, the Applicants have

22 taken the position that the consideration for emergency,-

(/'

23 planning purposes should be directed to an earthquake below the

24 SSE level, and the reasons for that are numerous, but the firs -

O
25 and obvious one is that if we address an SSE or below, given

- -. _ _ - - . . - . . . _-___ . - .
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8 1 that the SSE is appropriately derived, and the regulations havn

(]) 2 required us to design and construct for that level of

3 earthquake, we are by definition not dealing with a
1

'

(]) 4 radioactive release -- release of radiation as a result of the
5 earthquake . That is a first thing.

6 So, and the second thing is that -- is not as

7 direct, but has to be borne in mind, is that under the

3 regulations, the occurrence of an earthquake at the OBE level,

| 9 approximately one-half safe shutdown earthquake, requires that

10 the plant be shut down, and that it not be reopened until

11 such time as the NRC allows a reopening.
J

12 So, what we 3.re dealing with, we feel when we

13 are looking below the SSE level, is a question of damage(}
*

14 assessment, of communications -- well, we are looking at the

15 damage to the highway, damage to communications, and our4

16 ability to assess that kind of damage.
i

17 I don't believe that we are looking at a

18 coincident event, where the earthquake happens, as there is

19 happening a release of radiation from other -- some other

20 normal -- I shouldn't say normal, but previously contemplated

21 cause within the design, so we are not into a coincident

22 event situation.

23 What we believe we are looking at, given this

24 situation, is whether or not it is appropriate to continue

25 operation, or to start up, given in effect something between
;

, _ _ _ _ __ _ _ . . .
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9 1 the OBE and the SSE, and we feel that what. we are looking at,
O.. 2 therefore, is to what extent has the -- has the area been so

3 damaged that continued operation should perhaps be withheld

4 because of a degraded emergency planning capability?

5 And the ability to gather that information,
,

6 obviously, and make those kind of assessments. That is why

7 we don't feel that we have to go directly to an SSE to

3 evaluate what its damage would be per se..

j We feel that if we can understand the emergency9

10 facilities that are necessary to go through an evacuation,

11 what we have to determine is whether or not those facilities

12 have been so degraded that given an incident, evacuation is,

() 13 no longer a feasible alternative. Now, that goes ' to Mr.
'

14 Brothers' testimony.

15 Mr. Brothers then tells us that when you make your
'

16 assessment, there is a certain point -- we don't have to go

17 through the whole area, but there is a certain level of
I'

18 damage, a certain kind of damage, beyond which evacuation is
!

19 just not a feasible way of protecting the public, and that

23 probably would take place in the event of an SSE, but it could

21 take place just generally speaking at a much lower level,

(]} 22 depending on which of the critical facilities are knocked

23 out.

(]) 24 But what the consultants are doing on evacuation,

25 et cetera, and -- and as Mr. Roper has just stated on and will
_

- , ., - - .- - , m , g.- - - - - - - - -m .
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A
() 2 look at below .the SSE level, is whether or not the area

'

3 surrounding us is in such a condition that given some kind of*

() 4 a radiation release, we would know what . kind of emergency
'

5 procedures are available to us, and the one we are focusing

6 on right now as sort of the critical one is at what point can

7 you no longer look at evacuation as a feasible means of

3 protacting the public. You would go to sheltering or whatever

9 there is available.,

10 But that is the approach we have used, and. given

11 that approach, which, you know, somebody can argue whether or
:

12 not it is valid, but given that approach, we therefore do not

(]) 13 consider it necessary to go out and make a specific study of:

14 the level of damage resulting from the postulated SSE.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Is that it?

16 MR. PIGOTT: Yes.
_

17 JUDGE KELLEY: I think it is very helpful for you
.

18 to provide that kind of a statement, to put this in context,
19 because we do find ourselves looking at information for

20 different purposes, and it is helpful to know why.

21 That sounded to me to be consistent with the

22 Staff's instruction as to what you ought to look at. In your

23 view are you following the Staff 's instruction, or do you'

O differ with the Staff in this regard?24
t

25 MR. PIGOTT: No. We believe that that does comply

. . ._ - _ . _ _ .--
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11 1 with the Staff's most recent request to us on this, in this

() 2 area, yes.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: I am referring to a memorandum |

() 4 from Mr. Grimes, I believe, at some point earlier, to consider

5 this and that and the other?

6 MR. PIGOTT There was a letter in December, and

7 then a clartiying letter several months later, and this I

3 believe responds to that clarifying letter.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: I don't know if it is fair, Mr.

10 Hoefling, to ask you on the spot to respond whether you
1

11 agree, but could you say right now whether or not you think

12 Mr. Pigott's approach to this is consistent with what the
.

[{} 13 Staff has asked of the Applicants, or would you rather think

14 about it?

15 MR. HOEFLING: No, I can speak to the approach
,

16 that has been outlined by Mr. Pigott. It is generallyc

17 consistent with what the Staff is looking for, basically an

13 evaluation of the kind of a situation that one woulo have

{ 19 following an earthquake, in the context of damage assessment

20 or capability of various arteries to provide evacuation, to

21 be factored into decision making and protective action

22 determinations.

23 Now, as far as the specifics of the study go, I
:

24 can ' t speak --

O!

25 JUDGE KELLEY: No, I am not asking for that, but

;

- , . - - . - . .- , , ,_ - , _ . - . . . . ,_,
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12 1 rather his outline of their approach.

(]) 2 MR. HOEFLING: Yes, t is generally consistent

3 with what we had requested. |

(]) 4 MR. PIGOTT: I believe Staf f 's letter goes a'

5 little further, and it is not really a part of this, but they

6 were also looking at the continued ability to supply
.

;

7 necessary materials and personnel to the site, which is

3 beyond the scope of what we are hearing here, but that is

9 also included in that letter.;

!
a 10 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Obviously, and the

'

1

) 11 Intervenors may or may not agree that this is a proper

; 12 approach, and this is not -- this is two parties to the case
.!

}{]) 13 stating their view of what is proper, and you can argue

1

; 14 whether it complies with the regulations of the Atomic Energy

15 Act, or whatever else applies, but to put in context what is
!

! 16 being put forward, I think it is helpful.
_

So I think we can go ahead then Nith cross. Is17
1

18 this -- Mr . McClung, is this your cross?
;

! 19 MR. MC CLUNG: Yes.
I

i 20 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine.

1

21

()'

23
'

i

24.()>

! 25

i

,

. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - . . _. . _ - - _ _ _ _ _ _ .- -, . - _ - . . . -
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|

(~31 kl y Q Mr. Roper, you mentioned in your direct examina-
V

tion a couple of emergency type drills and other things that
2

w uld help aid you in forming -- making plans as far asn 3

evacuation and otherwise. I was wondering, have you partici-4

paced in your experience either directly or indirectly in
5

6 any evacuation type scenarios in the state of California?

7 A No, other than handling traffic as a result of

some moderate evacuations in the Malibu fires from time tog

time.9

0 W uld the Malibu fires be the only example then
10

of evacuation --yy

A That --
12

0 -- in which you participated?
.. 13

A That I have participated, yes.y4

0 Could you describe briefly what took place in
15

tha t situation?
16

A Well, as I tecall, as the fires were spreadingy7
'

the Sheriff's department and.polici~ng~ agencies called foryg

certain evar:uation and at the same time we were involved in
19

the closing of Pacific Coast Highway through the Malibu area20

and the rerouting of traffic. Our role in that was primarily
21

one f traffic diversion and handling the traffic volumes
22

that were reaching'us.
23

^""" ***"'" Y " " ""' "" " * ~'*'* ""^ ""'** '"O 24 :
|

that instance?25

bIa.

.- -
-- .,p,,
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(-]2 1 A I don't know what the number was. It was -- I

2 would say a relatively small number, perhaps a couple of

() 3 hundred people, something like that.

4 0 And what was your role specifically in that

5 evacuation?

6 A Our role was that --

7 0 No, your role personally. I am sorry. Your

8 role personally.
'

9 A My role personally was only that people under

10 my supervision, the incident response team, was involved.

11 Q Were you -- or did you particpate directly in

12 making any command type decisions or sending out of personnel

13 under your supervision during that evacuation?

14 A I personally did not, no.
!

15 Q Did you perform any review in any way of how

16 the evacuation transpired in that event?

17 A None other than a routine review of activities
,,

.

18 of people who report to me, but no specific review of just

19 what took place there. -

20 Q Are you aware of any other evacuation type emer-

21 gencies in which Caltrans participated?

12 A The one that comes to mind has to do with the

23 San Fernando or the Sylmar or the Pacoima earthquake in which

24 a large number of people were evacuated --
.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Do you know the magnitude of that

I
. - _ _ . ._ _.
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I') 1 earthquake?(s
2 WITNESS ROPER: I believe it was in the seven to

-m 3 seven and a half rate --
A,

4 JUDGE KELLEY: If that is accurate, I am afraid

5 .you are out of our range. We are trying to stay beneath the

6 SSE, which as presently established is -- well, that gets a

7 little foggy, but anyway, I would say prob aly there wasn't

-

8 any seven. I believe the Applicants say seven in this part

9 of the proceeding, and so does the Staff, correct?
4

to We don't have any of our seismologists here at

11 the moment. And Mr. Pigott, you wouldn't know, I am sure.

12 In any event, if you are right that it is over seven, then

13 I think you are off into what we will call the Board's issue.
, ,

14 Right?
,

15 MR. ROGIN: Yes, the SSE is seven.approximately,

16 but the assumption -- I don't want to open this up, but --

17 JUDGE KELLEY: I don' t think we do either.
. . . . .

18 MR. ROGIN: I have been told through reliable

19 sources that that was a 6.3.

'

20 MR. HOEFLING: That is the understanding of the

21 Staff, Mr. Chairman, that it was about a 6.4 earthquake.

22 JUDGE KELLEY: \'e a h , sevens have beer awfully

23 rare in California in the last 50 years, I believe. Assuming

(]) 24 it is a 6.3, what is the source of our information here?

25 MR. ROGIN: Somebody whispered it in my ear. I

O*

-

;

_ _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ _ _ _ _ . - i
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r~s
( ,1) 1 don't know where the original source is.

2 MR. HOEFLING: Staff got that from the district

3 manager. That may have some worth.
,

4 MR. ROGIN: Well, we can confirm that, and we

5 . would have no objection to talking about the planning or the

6 evacuation, because I think that is in a sense independent of

7 the size, if there were questions that were to be asked about

8 that. So, I think --
!

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, I guess that is right. I

10 just wanted to establish that. On the understanding that it

11 is probably under seven, and with your qualification, why

12 don't we go ahead, Mr. Mc Clung, if I haven't muddied your

13 water too much. Restate your question.

14 MR. MC CLUNG: Actually, thank you for clarifyingi

15 the event for us.
'

16 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

''
Q Referring to that particular emergency situation,

18 'ould you sh'ow'us on the map up there, if you know, approxi-

19 mm sly the area that you were concerned with for evacuation

20 purp, es?

21 Well, perhaps I can explain it better. It was

12 the area in the San Fernando Valley immediately below the

23 Van Norman Dam. The evacuation was the result of concerns

() 24 that the dam was going to fail.

25 Q Do you recall approximately what the quantity
.

_

4
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's

k( ) 1 of people we' are talking about that were evacuated in that

2 instance?

~'T 3 A 80,000 people, below the Van Normal Reservoir.
(V

4 That is the information I have here, and I am reading from a

5 report that Caltrans prepared reviewing the activities as a
4 result of that earthquake.

7 0 Is that an official document of Caltrans?

8 A Yes, it is -- as I say, a document that was pre-

9 pared by Caltrans, and as such is a public document..

10 Q What is the date and title of that document?

11 A I don't have either one of those. I have some

12 excerpts having to ao with traffic management from that docu-

13 ment.

()
14 0 Could you provide the parties in this proceeding

~

15 with that information -- if you could send it to me in the

16 mail or something?

17 JUDGE KELLEY: Which information exactly are we
_

18 asking for?
.

19 MR. MC CLUNG: The title and.the date o.f that4

20 document.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: You have exerpts, you say, from

12 the document?

23 WITNESS ROPER: Yes, I do.

() 24 JUDGE KELLEY: What is the document itself? Is

25 it a memorandum or is it a pamphlet or what?

O

f

- , - - - , , , - - , . - - - - ,- _ , .,
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1 WITNESS ROPER: It is a report. What I have here

2 are pages 45 through 49, which cover the traffic aspects of

h 3 it, and yes, the document can be provided to the parties. j

i 4 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Could you give us -- I ;

! t

| 5 . don't know if we need the whole document. Excuse me, Mr. -- !

|
t 6 MR. ROGIN: I don't think we do. Apparently the

7 Witness has brought what he considered to be relevant to his

8 testimony with him, and perhaps we can have copies of that

9 distribated. It -- again, it sounds to us like discovery

10 that is going on at the inappropriate time and --

11 JUDGE KELLEY: It is discovery, but it is here

12 and it is pertinent and it is not very much trouble.

13 MR. ROGIN: I have no objection.

14 JUDGE KELLEY: So if you can provide it, the

15 title and then just a Xerox copy of the pages that you are

16 referring to.

17 MR. ROGIN: I didn't mean to indicate I had an
,

18 objection to --

! 19 JUDGE KELLEY: I understand.

i 20 MR. ROGIN: -- what he had. I thought that would
.

21 be helpful. But the rest of it seemed to go beyond --

22 JUDGE KELLEY: No, the whole report, I don't

23 think we need.

24 MR. MC CLUNG: I never --.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: You didn't ask for it. I'

;O

- - -- _- - - _
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(_) 1 understand that. You only want the title of the report, but

2 we will provide the pages plus the title.

(]') 3 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

4 Q I think it would -- it might be helpful if we --

5 to understand that evacuation of that area if we can locate

6 it on the map and refer to the major arteries which you used

7 in that evacuation.

8 MR. ROGIN:' We have pointed -- it might be help-

9 ful because the Witness cannot point at the map and speak

10 at the same time.

11 WITNESS ROPER: Let me pinpoint it first.,

12 MR. ROGIN: Mr. Roper --

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Excuse me. It is important thatI

dgs
14 you continue to speak into the mike.

15 MR. ROGIN: Mr. Roper, perhaps -- you do have to

16 speak into the microphone. You might point it out and then

17 sit down and describe where you were pointing.

18 KITNESS ROPER: Okay, the area I pointed out was

19 immediately below the Van Normal Dam. It woul.d be westerly

20 of the San Diego Freeway, north of the Ventura Freeway, and

21 it centers about a main surface arterial Balboa Street.

22 Caltrans' role in that was that at the same time we were

23 looking at major damage on the freeways at the intersection

24 of the San Diego Freeway, the Antelope Valley Freeway, the

25 Foothill Freeway, and the Golden State Freeway, and we were

,

. - _ . .
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[~*'u

(_J. I looking at alternate routes around those significantly

2 damaged areas, a major evacuation was underway which was

() 3 further clogging alternative routes, and in particular Balboa

4 Boulevard it is, could then not be used as an alternate route

5 . to the freeway traf fic, because it was needed for the evacua-

6 tion.

7 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

8 Q What role in the evacuation did you take 'with re-

9 spect to the traffic diversion function? I understand your
.

10 testimony that you participated a great deal in assessing

11 the damage to various freeways and things like that. With

12 respect to the Ventura Freeway and the 405 freeway there that

13 you have referred to which surround the evacuation area, what(,

14 particularly did you do with respect to traffic diversion at

15 any -- on those particular arteries?

16 A There wasn't a great deal, because that is in an

17 area that is well-developed with a grid pattern of city
.

surface streets, and the bulk of the evacuation was18 streets,

19 taking place on the city streets. As I say, it impacted us

20 in that the use of those city streets as an alternative for

21 freeway traffic was no longer feasible.

22 Q Do you know approximately from the time of noti-

23 fication or order of evacuation of that particular area how

( 24 long it took for the bulk of the people to be evacuated from

25 that area?

!-

. -
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|

Y\
'wj9 1 A No, I don't. 1

!

2 Q Were there any other significant evacuations which

() 3 Caltrans participated in that you are aware of?

4 A No, none that come to mind.

5 Q Did you have any personal participation in the

6 evacuation or surrounding the evacuation of that earthquake

7 t'st you have been referring to?

8 A No.

9 Q Could you explain how you will be notified in

10 the event that evacuation becomes necessary?

11 A Several ways. One would be through the Highway

12 Patrol. The second one would be through the emergency opera-
~

'' 13 tion center of Orange County, thirdly I would expect that our

i 14 own people in the field, our maintenance forces would get

15 word that an evacuation -- or that -- yes, an evacuation

nat word would be relayed on down to16 was to take place, ar. o

17 _our operation w qit ,cd our communication centet.
_

! 18 Q Could you describe how you would be notified, or

19 you think that you would be notified by the Highway Patrol?

20 A Again, a number of ways. Our traffic operations

21 center has direct radio linkage with che Highway Patrol ,

l

22 communications ce,ter. That traffic operation center is

23 manned not only by Caltrans personnel, but Highway Patrol

24 personnel. Telephone communication obviously available, and

25 in our traffic operations center we have a CRT, which is tied

O
_

-- _-_- - 2__
__
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. i

f

( ,%0 1 to the Highway Patrol headquarters, and we can get, and do

2 get, printouts and CRT displays of any activity that is going
~

3 on within the Highway Patrol's area, any activity of a traf-

4 fic nature.

5 0 Where is the traffic operations center?

6 A It is located in our headquarters in 120 South

7 Spring Street- Los Angeles.

8 Q How does one communicate between the traffi.c

9 operations center and the outlying maintenance stations?

10 A Right adjacent to the traffic operations center,

11 and it is nothing more than a glass partition, is our communi<-

i 12 cation center, which carries all of our channels and is our
i

13 main communications link with all of our maintenance field;?
,

,

14 employees.

15 Q And what type of communication system is employed

| 16 by that center?
!

17 A Radio.

18 Q Microwave?

19 A Microwave.
1

20 Q How would your organization be notified by the

21 Orange County officials in the event of emergency?

12 A Telephcne.

23 Q Regular telephone?

O 24 ^ res.

25

/~N
\) ,

.s -
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T12-Ig 1 0 Uhat 16 hours of the day is the traffic operations
'A
l._) 2 center manned?

3 A six a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

('M(_) 4 Q Are the various centers, maintenance centers,

5 manned on that same schedule?

6 A No, they are not.

7 0 What schedule are they manned on?

8 A Now, when you are talking of the maintenance

i

9 centers, you are talking >f our field maintenance of fices?

10 Q Yes.

11 A Those are manned on a more working day basis

12 with -- then certain people on call-out of f hours.

.[ m( )
'

13 Q In a situation where an emergency took place

'

14 after the closing time of the traffic operations center,

15 could you explain to me the process of communication from the<

16 point where it comes into the communications center to the

17 point where you actually have personnel dispatched to the

18 scene?

19 A Yes, the dispatcher in the communications center,

20 the one that is open 24 hours a day seven days a week, has a |

21 ca ll-ou t list and a fan-out chart of both maintenance and

22 traffic operations people. That disp tcher would contact
{v~}

13 those people by telephone. In addition, our traffic

{} 24 operations people that are on call, and with equipment at

~

25 home, are equipped with beepers.

.

-
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2 1 Q By beepers, you are referring to a device which

() 2 is triggered by some type of microwave transmission from
;

3 your communications center, or --

() 4 A I am not sure just how it is triggered, but in

5 an emergency, that beeper can be triggered. It is the

6 device you wear on the best, and it says call your office in

7 effect.

S Q Is that triggered by the dispatcher, or who

9 triggers -- who would trigger that beeper?

10 A That can be triggered by the dispatcher in the

11 communications center, or in the traffic operations center.

12 0 Have you done any estimates for the time

(( ) 13 required to get a response to an emergency in that situation

14 where it is an after, hours type of response?

15 A Yes, we are doing this on a day to day basis,

16 responding to traffic accidents or other emergencies on the
.-

17 freeway system.
~

-

| Ig Q In your opinion, would the f act that an accident
|

19 or you were needed ta respond to an emergency after hours,
1

20 would that significantly impede the time that it would take

21 for your organization to respond to the. problem?

22 A No, in fact, it may in some cases improve that, j

23 because one of the things that we have done in selecting
|

gs 24 members for our incident response team is to select those
L)

15 people on a geographic basis so that we have the bulk of our
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-3 1 district covered, and our standard operating procedure is then

I~') 2 to call the person nearest to the incident, so in those cases
v

3 where you had an off-hour incident, and that person was home

( }) 4 with the equipment, and when I am talking about equipment, I

5 am talking about the truck with the radios, with the signs,

6 that kind of equipment, that person would actually be closer

7 in both distance and time to that incident than if they were

3 on duty downtown L.A.

9 0 Are the personnel required pursuant to their4

10 employment agreements or otherwise to be on call during the

11 night?
.

12 A Yes, they are.

~

(v~}
13 0 So 9,eople that were equipped with beepers would,

14 probably have them at their side during an emergency of this

15 sort?

'

16 A Yes, and they would be available.
"

17 0 The witness f rom the Highway Patrol has testified

18 that in the onset of the emergency which might require

19 evacuation, that they would respond to approximately nine

20 traf fic diversion points surrounding the ten-mile evacuation

21 zone at the plant. Which points would you agency respond to

22 in the event of a radiological emergency which requirede

23 evacuction?

(- 24 A I would answer that looking again at two different
\J,

25 functions, two dif ferent disciplines, one the maintenance

,

y,, - _ __ , e
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24 1 function, which would be primarily to relieve the traf fic

.

n
\l 2 officers of the need to set flare patterns, and maintain

3 flare patterns, and block highways with vehicles and manpower

V) 4 and so on.

5 From a maintenance standpoint, I think the -- thera

6 would be a response to every one of those points, as needed by

7 the Mighway Patrol, to set more permanent closures, and so on,

3 and relieve Highway Patrol personnel for other duties.

9 From a traffic standpoint, we would respond to

10 those points where major diversion would be expected, and that

11 would be two points to the north of the plant, one of those

12 points being southbound 405 or San Diego freeway at route 55,

'( ) 13 and the second point being southbound route 5, the Santa Ana

14 freeway at route 55.

' 15 At those points, we would place signing to get

16 voluntary diversion from those southbound routes onto north-

17 bound 55, out 91 and down 15 around the plant site.

13 So, from a traffic standpoint, we would respond

19 to those two sites.

20 In addition, two more sites on southbound route

21 405 and southbound route 5 at route 133 where the actual

{} 22 closure was taking place.

23 On the south of the plant, there would be a

(} 24 similar response by maintenance people at the closure down

'

in San Diego County. San Diego County does not have an15

. _ . , . . .
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[ 1 incident response team as Los Angeles does, but the

k_n) 2 maintenance forces and the maintenance response would be there
e

3 Q To take a -- and this may be too specific,

() 4 possibly, for you to answer, but please do the best you can.

5 On a daytime basis, approximately how long would it take for

6 your operation, your traffic diversion operation, to set up

7 their signs:on the route 55 points that you referred to

g earlier, from the time when you received the notification to

9 do so, from whatever organization natifies you?

10 A It is going to depend on what time of day,

11 whether that is peak hour or off peak hour, but essentially

12 what we are taiking about is the travel time in a daytime

'v) 13 setting, a travel time from downtown Los Angeles to those'

14 sites.

15 Again, depending on the traffic conditions, you

16 are talking something on the order of under an hour.

17 Q So for purposes of your traffic diversion signs

lg that you will be setting up, and a voluntary diversion at

19 those specific points, your equipment that will be necessary

20 will be brought down at Los Angeles at a -- is that a peak

21 time or an off peak time, your estimate of approximately an

(-} 22 hour?
v

13 A of f peak time would be probably in the range of

/^; 24 45 minutes, it was heavy peak, slightly over an hour. But yes ,

LJ

25 that equipment, those signs are mounted on pickup trucks.

;

m
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6 1 The other signs are located in the backs of sedans, and so

/~~N
() 2 essentially it is -- it would be rolling f rom Los Angeles

3 during the day.

() 4- I might add, too, in the voluntary diversion

5 area, of course, as soon as we received word, as with the

6 Highway Patrol, we would be working on Sigaletts, information
i

7 to the media, in our operations center. We have teletype

8 setup with approximately a dozen radio stations, where we can

9 put a teletype directly into the radio station. They have

10 the equipment in the stations to receive our teletype, is what

11 it amounts to, and we are doing that on a regular basis on

12 major traffic accidents.

r'(X) 13 0 Okay, now referring to another specific point,
_

14 the junction or the -- what is sometimes referred to as the

15 Golden Triangle, the 133, the 5 and the 405, approximately

16 how long in the daytime situation would it take for you to

17 respond to that particular area, from the time of initial

18 notification?

19 A Again, depending on the exact time, and therefe.+

20 the precise traffic condition, I would say we would be

21 talking in the range of an hour to a maximum of an hour and

22 a half.
("]N

,
.

%. |
23 0 And those two figures would be an off peak to a

24 peak. type of situation?{}
25 A Something on that order.
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7 1 O with that particular traf fic diversion point,

g
(J 2 would the equipment and signing also be coming from Los

3 Angeles ?
'

/"3
( ,/ 4 A Yes, it would. There is also a' capability of we

5 have some signing equipment in our maintenance facilities.

6 It is not a changeable message sign per se. Rather, they are

7 what we call arrow boards, the flashing arrows, and so on.

3 We have several of those in our maintenance function, and

9 those are out in the maintenance yards.

10 0 In the plans as you have them to date, are you

11 goi'ng to be sending any of your personnel or equipment to any

12 traf fic diversion points along the Coaat, the Pacific Coast

O 13 nisa-er?

14 A No.

15 0 In formulation of the various plans and

16 procedures for what you will do at the two specific itraffic
. -.

17 diversion points that we talked ,about, the 55 freeways and

13 at the Golden Triangle, which I have referred to before, have

'

19 you had any consultation with -- and by you I mean both
,

20 yourself and the people in your employ, with the California

21 Highway Patrol in order to coordinate your activity with

22 them?

23 A Yes. Also, with others that were developing the

(~)T 24 plan. The meetings, many of the meetings that we had with
x

25 Wilbur Smith and Associates were attended also by the
i

1

_ ___ _ - . . _ . .
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8 1 Highway Patrol. Our input was -- while it was an |
() ,y
k/ 2 independent input, I think it was a coordinated input, by the

i

3 Patrol and ourselves. I

, /~'t
(J 4 0 I think that is. very helpful. Did you have any

*

5 meetings directly with the Highway Patrol?

6 MR. ROGIN: You mean independent of the meetings

7 that other people attended?

8 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah. In the -- I just -- I.
.

9 understand his testimony that there were meetings when a

10 nuber of different response organizations came, and Wilbur

11 Smith Associates was there, and you were doing general
'

12 p lanning .

|( 13 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

14 Q And what I am wondering is after those meetings,

15 and wher you got down to the specific plans of what exact
,

Pe.e

equipment and manpower you are going to send to these various16

17 places, whether or nat you Nad discussions with people over

18 at the California Highway Patrol?

19 A I don't recall any specific meetigs. I wou ld

20 expect that we had discussions with them, and one reason I

|
21 say that is that the traffic operations center patrol

(']]) 22 personnel are housed in our offices right in my units, and so

23 certainly there is plenty of opportunity for an exchange of

(]) 24 discussion, and certainly something as significant as the

25 evacuation of a large area as we are talking about here, I
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9 1 would expect would be the subject of some discussion between

() 2 those people and my people.

3 Q Thank you. With respect -- you mentioned earlier

.m
(s,) 4 in your testimony about an exercise or drill which you

5 condacted under order or pursuant to questioning by the

6 Office of Emergency Services, to test your communications

7 system, in the event that your communications were disrupted

8 by an earthquake. Did that drill, that particular drill, take

9 place this year?

10 A Yes, it did.

11 Q At what time, approximately?

12 A Approximately two or three -- three months ago,

' ({}) 13 something on that order, and that drill was not forced upon us .

14 That drill was our idea.

15 0 What was the role of the Office of Emergency

16 Services in the drill?

17 A They h'ad none.

18 0 Oh, okay.

10 A Only that it came about as a result of the

20 earthquake exercise that the Office of Emergency Services

21 had, but out of that exercise, we added another assumption,

22' and that is no radio capabilities, no microwave capabilities,
(J-)s

23 and imposed that on ourselves, and ran a test of our own

p 24 capabilities in that area.
RJ

25 Q When you did that drill, you stated briefly
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10 1 earlier the assumptions that were mado, you know, knocking

) 2 out the transmitter in the mountains, what types of means of

3 communication were used?

()'
4 A Car radios, mobile units .

: 5 Q Mobile units . Did that drill test any other

6 aspect of your ability to respond besides a communications

7 aspect? Or was that purely a communications drill?~-

i 8 A That was communications.

9

10
:

I
11

i
12

) I3i

14:

1
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|

1 16

~|
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,
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1 Q Do you intend to have any -- or have you had any

2 driils with respect to actually getting people and signs and

3 equipment to the various points where traffic diversion willr-
(_)3

4 take place in the event of an emergency under consideration?

5 A A drill to those sites specific.or a drill of our

6 capabilities of getting to a site?

7 Q I think getting to a site would be very important .

8 A We haven't scheduled any drills bacause we are

9 doing it all the time, so our drills are real life situations

10 of responding ',o major traffic accidents, major incidents

11 all over our district.

12 Q Could you explain to me where -- I take it from

-, 13 your testimony that there is more than one transportation

(Vn 14 district --

15 A That is 'orrect.

16 0 -- that 1 involved in the emergency planning

17 zones for these plans? Could you explain to me the two --

18 there are two districts, is that correct? _

19 A That is right.

20 Q Could you explain to me in a little bit more

21 detail what you call these districts and where the dividing

12 line is? Perhaps you could indicate on the map, if it is

23 on the n.'p, where these two districts are divided.

(~} 24 A Yes, the two districts you are involved with,

25 district seven and district 11. District seuan covers
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. _ .

#Thu

(_) k2 1 Ventura, Los Angeles and Orange Counties, and its head-

2 quarters is in downtown Los Angeles. District 11 covers

('}
3 San Diego County, Imperial -- I am trying to think if it is

v
4 all of Imperial County -- the b'1.k of Imperial County and

5 part of Riverside County. And its headquarters 10 located

6 in San Diego.

7 Two organizations are very similar in nature in

8 terms of functional organizations. Capabilities in the

9 traffic response area are greater in the Los Angeles area --

10 Los Angeles district.

11 Q So the boundaries of those particular districts

12 are the county lines, is that correct?

13 A Essentially yes.
, -[ )
,

'' 14 Q Does the San Diego, I will call it, district,

15 which is district 11, have the similar type functional traf-

16 fic center and emergency communication -- or communications;

17 center? Do they have_those particular things?

18 A They don't have that to the degree ~that Los

19 Angeles does. They do not, for instance, have a traffic

20 operations center that is operating 16 hours a day. They

21 do noo have an incident response team with the changeable

22 message signs, that capability. They do have a similar

23 maintenance organization and a similar communications system
,

() 24 within that maintenance organization.

25 In their traffic function they also have a j

/~T |v
|

~.. . - ..
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3 y communications ability. In other words, traffic has ak3
V

2 separate frequency, and they have that capability, but they

3 don't have the response team that L.A. does.
I't' s' Q How is their communication between your two'

4

districts?5

6 A The only common -- now I will talk about radio

7 communication. The common radio communication -- some of

g the maintenance units in both districts near the border

! 9 between the two districts will have each other's frequencies,

g That is very limited in order that there isn't a lot of

intereference between -- traffic between the two -- I amyy

talking about communications -- traffic between the two
12

districts. So there are some limited number of units in
- 13
n() 34 maintenance that have those cross communications capability.

j 15 other than that, we are both on the state-wide microwave

16 network, and of course then there are the telephones.

17 0 By telephones you mean the regular public tele-

*
is phone, is that correct?

19 A That is correct, yes.

20 0 Do you have any special tie line or communica-

) 21 tions link between your office in L.A. and the district 11

22 office which is in San Diego, I take it?

23 A Yes. We also have our leased line, our ATSS line

24 between all of our district offices and our headquarters..

'

25 Q Could you explain briefly the state system that

i-

.

_ _ , _ , , - - ,- , v' w ---e7
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cm
(_) k4 1 you spoke of? State communications system.

2 A That is a system that Caltrans maintains, has

3

(v~}
the capability of contacting, tieing together all of the

4 district offices and the l'eadquarters office. It is essen-

5 tially a microwave network.

6 0 Is that system used for anything else besides

i 7 Caltrans business?

8 A I' don't believe so, but I am not absolutely sure,

9 Q Does San Diego County organization have their

10 own special plan or specific plan to cover a radiological

11 emergency?

12 MR. ROGIN: Do you mean a Caltrans San Diego

13 operation?7-

C/ 14 MR. MC CLUNG: That is what I meant to say if
:

15 I didn't say that. The Caltrans San Diego district.

16 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

17 Q Do they have a special set of operating proce-

18 dures or a plan in place?

I9 A I don't know.

20 0 Would the plan and procedures that you have in

21 place today cover San Diego County?

12 A No, we would cover our district, as I have

23 pointed out. I do know the San Diego district has the

(')
(_/ 24 maintenance capability. As I also pointed o.ut, I know they

25 do not have the traffic response capability that Los Angeles

(~) |
wi

'
_ ._J
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/l kS 1 does.'v
2 Q Is there anything in your plan or operating

3 procedures where you would act to notify or provide informa--

ud
4 tion other than traffic diversion to the people who may be
5 evacuating in the event of a radiological emergency?
6 A None other than traffic typo information through

i 7 our Sigalert Network, through our traffic advisory network,

8 that I described earlier, to get information to the public

9 on routes to take, traffic and highway conditions as they

10 are leaving the area, and also for those who might have been
11 contemplating going into the area diverting around and set-

12 ting up diversionary routes, informing them of diversionary
13 routes and so on.

O
k/ 14 Q In Orange County, specifically Orange County,

15 how many of your maintenance offices do you have?
I 16 A We have one regional office which covers most

17 of Orange County, essentially all of Orange County, and
18 within that region, if i may count-for a moment, my map4

19 would indicate we have eight maintenance areas that are en

20 there.

21 Q I won't hold you to the exact number. And these

12 maintenance centers, offices, are as I can see where you
23 pointed on the map, how Tre they indicated on t he map?

(~) 24 A They are indicated on the map by.a green dot.v
25 The regional office is indicated on the map by a green star.

i

)(_/
.

<

.

,_ -n , - -'
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/~; k6 1 That is the regional office. And the dots which indicate
%-)

2 an area are dispersed throughout the region.

3 Q Now you have testified briefly to this before,(m,
'v'

4 but at those offices, is the traffic maintenance equipment

5 located, or is most of it driven home to various employees

6 at night?

j 7 A At those offices maintenance equipment is lo-

8 cated, and that maintenance equipment includes some traffic

9 handling equipment, c,nes, barricades, and some arrowboards,

10 that kind of equipment. The traffic response team equip-

11 ment, and I am talking of pick-up trucks equipped with

12 truck mounted signs, sedans that are loaded with signs,

13 are over on the traffic side of the family, and those are
,f

14 taken home by individuals at night.

15 The maintenance equipment, light equipment,

16 pick-up trucks and sedans, is taken home at night by main-

17 tenance personnel.
...

18 Q Approximately how many men and trucks will be '

19 dispatched to the golden triangle diversion point in the

20 event of an emergency there?

21 A At each of the four points I spoke of, the two

12 diversionary points -- or the two points at route 55 and the

23 two points at route 133, at each of those points we would

( }) 24 expect to have probably two trucks and two sedans of a traf-

25 fic nature. In addition -- and I am not prepared to say jus:

O
:

)

i
i
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({}k7 how many maintenance types of vehicles would be there, but1

2 several trucks.

- 3 0 1s there any provision in your plans or in your - -

'''
4 as they currently exist, which would preclude your people

5 and machines going into areas where there is a high risk of

6 danger of radiation?
1

7 A Yes, I think we would have to rely upon experts

8 in that field to tell us whether it was safe to send per-

9 sonnel in or not. Certainly we are going to operate with

| 10 the safety of our employees in mind, and we are not about

11 to send them into an unsafe area knowingly, an unsafe area.

12 Q And am I correct in assuming that as a secondary,
J

13 or maybe tertiary aspect of your responsibilities in the

14 event of emergency, you might have to do radiological moni-

15 toring, is that correct?

16 A That has been spoken of as a responsibility of --

17 potentially a responsibility of Caltrans, yes.

18 Q But at the present time you are not prepared to

19 deal with that type of situation?
d

20 A That is correct. We are not

21 Q Do your men receive any radiological response

22 training with respect to the actual -- cr potential hazards
~

23 of radiation?

(~T 24 A No, other than some of our people in materials
N/,

25 receivo some radiological training because they are using

OU

.

-, .w -- - , - -
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(^) k8 i radiological equipment in their testing procedures, but none
us

that would'be related to this kind of an event.2

rs 3 Q Do you hrte as part of your equipment now any
( )
'~'

4 dosimeters or special radiation equipment, protection equip-

5 ment to be used by your men as they respond to a potential

6 radiological emergency?
.

7 A No.

8 Q Are there any plans for you to get any such

9 equipment?

10 A Not at this time.

3 Q Is it one of your responsibilities or has it

been discussed as one of your responsiblities to aid in12

13 confirmation -- by confirmation I mean to determine whether

('JN\_ j4 or not the people within the emergency planning zone have
'

15 been evacuated?

16 A No.

17 0 Is it part of your responsibility or has it been

is discussed to be part of your responsibility to aid'in any

19 way in the process of reentering the evacuated zone or

20 arranging for traffic patterns to reenter the zone when it

21 is decided that the hazard is past?

22 A Only discussions I guess to this extent that

23 when the hazard is passed, the roadblocks will be lifted'

() 24 and the signs will be taken down.

25 Q Following up on a couple of more questions

O
yi

, . _ . _
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1

i

( ) k9 1 relating to complicating factors, you discussed briefly some

2 aspects of "the earthquake evacuation that you described,

3 some aspects of earthquako planning. Do you as part of-

mj
4 your records in Caltrans maintain any seismological data

5 as -- in terms of to withstand capability of various over-

6 passes and structures?

7 A There are none that I am aware of per se, and I

8 guess I have to qualify that a little, because as a result

9 of the San Fernando Quake I spoke of earlier, a review of

to all of our structures was made, a detailed review, and as a

11 result of that a program was initiated to install what are

12 called earthquake restrainers on the bulk of our -- or

13 virtually all of our structures. These earthquake restrainers

14 are meant to tie together the columns and abuttments and

15 the decks of the structures to keep the columns and abutt-

16 ments from moving and the deck simply slipping off and fall-

17 ing, as happened in the San Fernando quake.

18 So to the extent that those studies were done,

19 I am sure there are records of intensities of earthquakes

20 and the impacts of those intensities on our structures.

21

22

23

(2) 24

25

O

_ .
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T14. lg 1 Q That is very helpful. The -- then, in that

,.,

T ,/ 2 particular earthquake, I recall a specific, at least one -m

3 specific three-way overpass, which I think was -- I believe

( 4 was under construction did collapse in the manner I referred

5 to.

6 A That is correct.

7 Q And can you describe what took place in that

8 particular -- just that one particular bridge?

9 A Yes, and this is my understanding. I did not

10 observe it or actually take part in that event, but

11 essentially what happened, and this was a very high structure

12 that was a hinged structure, and there were two spans

( ) 13 supported by a column, and on that column there were seats,

14 and the deck simply sits on that seat, and can move back and

15 forth on that seat, and that is a design to allow for

16 expansion and contraction of the deck surface.

17 As the wave from the earthquake'came across that

| 18 structure, one deck would go up, and that column would move,

19 and the deck would sit back down on the seat, and the wave

20 could be observed ging across the next deck, and seeing it

21 ripple as it went across, and on one occasion, the wave

22 went across, the deck went up, the column moved, the deck;

23 came down, and the column was still out of alignment, and the

(] 24 deck crashed, and then as the wave continued, the other deck
\_/

25 went up, the other column moved the other way, and the other

_



2 1 deck also fell, and then the column went over.
,

\> 2 Q Now you described a study that was made of various

3 overpasses, and some corrective actions that were taken to,
,

(-)>
7

4 I take it, existing overpasses, at or af ter that particular

5 earthquake.

6 A That is correct.

7 Q Is there anything contained in the design or the

8 structure of new overpasses that were built since then that

9 would protect against this particular hazard, to your knowledge?

10 A Yes, earthquake restrainers are part of our

11 design, though, and all that earthquake restrainer does is in

12 this example, it would tie that column and that deck together

) 13 so that there would still be room for expansion and

14 contraction, but that this phenomena of one slipping off the

15 seat and dropping would not be allowed to tal;e place, it

16 would be tied together.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: Are we close to a break point?

18 How much more have you got?

I19 MR. MC CLUNG: I don't know, Your Honor. It may

20 .ke me as much as a half an hour more. I don't know what*

21 , ime it is.

('] 22 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, it is just about two thirty. |

%J \

23 I would suggest a ten- to 15, no more than that, minute

]) 24 break. And I think consistent with our desire to get these

.15 three witnesses finished, that you had better finish up with

1
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3 1 this one shortly after the break, in view of where you are,

?~T
\l 2 and perhaps compress your presentation somewhat.

3 MR. MC CLUNG: Okay.
,m
I) 4 JUDGE KELLEY: Let us take a break of ten tom

5 15 minutes. No more than that.

6 (Brief recess)

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record. Mr. McClung

g will resume his cross-examination.

9 MR. MC CLUNG: I just want to say at the outset

10 that I appreciate the Chairman's admonition, and I will

11 endeavor to complete this cross-examination as soon as

'

12 possible, but I do believe -- I have done an estimate of the

() 13 time it would take to cross-examine the various witnesses,

14 , and our time for the remaining witness is a much shorter

15 amount of time, and so I am quite confident that we will be

16 able to get through the three witnesses for today.

~

This particular witness, I do have several more ~

17

18 questions that I want to get into, and I don't --

19 JUDGE KELLEY: You think you need more time with

20 this witness; but you have much less with the next witness?

21 MR. MC CLUNG: Much less with the next witness,

(]) 22 Y=S-

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, we will see where it goes .

{} 24 I understand your point, and --

25 MR. MC CLUNG: Please feel f ree to interrupt and
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=4 , I tell me that I am going too far.
|

() 2 JUDGE KELLEY: Oh, I will.
l

3 MR. MC CLUNG: I know.

) 4 JUDGE KELLEY: But go ahead.

5 MR. MC CLUNG: I just wanted to preface it with

6 that remark.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

1

8 MR. MC CLUNG: And so you knew what I was doing.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

10 BY MR. F. L5UNG:

11 Q In ". di rect testimony, you discussed certain

12 maps which are in ex. cence which you have developed for

() 13 alternative roadways, in the event certain alternate routes,

14 in the event that certain major freeway systems I take it are

15 incapacitated for whatever reason.
,

16 Have you brought any of those maps with you
,

17 today?
,

18 A Yes, I have a number of those. In fact, on north-

19 bound route 5, and northbou nd route 405 between the juncture
|

20 of those two routes, and up to route 133, I believe.

! 21 Excuse me, up to route --

; 22 0 557{])
23 A 55. |

(~N 24 Q Could ym2 show us one of those maps, just forO
25 the rec 7rd?

_- _ - _--________.
._ , -. ..
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5 1 A Sure. <

(G 2 O Are any of these in evidence? I guess they are_)

3 not.

(' ,/ 4 MR. ROGIN: No, they are not.

5 WITNESS ROPER: I brought these along as examples

6 of the type of mapping, the kind of information that we have

7 developed throughout the entire system in District Seven.

8 (A pause)

9 MR. ROGIN: Let me provide to Counsel for the

10 Intervenors a set of the copies. If he wants to examine

11 specifically about them, maybe we can take them @ art. I

12 gather there is only one copy of each of these, so --

;(j) 13 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine.

14 WITNESS ROPER: This is the Santa Ana Freeway.

15 He has the -- I believe those you have are the San Diego

16 Freeway down in the lower right-hand corner, should identify
.

17 them.

18 MR. ROGIN: I have supplied to the Board what I

19 understand to be different maps, but examples of the same

20 type of thing, is that correct?

21 WITNESS ROPER: That is correct.
<

22 MR. MC CLUNG: Do I take it, then, there is no

23 copy so that he could explain one of these maps just briefly

24 to us?p)x

15 MR. ROGIN: I don't know if you want one

w
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6 1 particular interchange explained. You could give him that

(~)
(_/ 2 map and he could explain it. You can provide it back to him.

3 I thought you wanted to look at it.

4 MR. MC CLUNG: I did first.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Now, for the record, we are looking

6 at a number of maps of highway interchanges. They have not

7 been and I do not really expect them to be offered into

8 evidence. They are .just by way of illustrating this

9 witness's testimony about interchanges, correct?

10 MR. ROGIN: That is my understanding.

11 MR. MC CLUNG: Is it all right for me to proceed?

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

(() 13 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

14 0 Okay, with respect to the map that you have on the

15 top there, that first map, could you explain how the map

_ 16 works, and how the alternate route works, and how you would

17 use this map in case there was a blockage?

18 A Yes, what we have done is gone through our

19 freeway system, and we have assumed that there would be a

20 closure at a particular point. We have then looked at the

21 ways to detour traffic, freeway traffic around that

22 particular site, and depending upon the numtAr af lanes{}
23 c los ed , and the estimated duration of that closure, we have

f'} 24 either taken all traf fic of f the freeway onto alternate
a

25 routes, or we have used the remaining lanes on the freeway
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7 1 past the site.

[) 2 Whatever from a traffic engineering standpointv

3 appeared to offer us the greatest capacity past that site.

( )) 4 In those cases where we were removing -- where we would
!

5 remove traffic from the freeway, we have designated both a

6 primary and secondary alternate route. It is delineated on

7 the map.

8 Also delineated on that map are manpower

9 requirements along that alternate route, either Highway

i
10 Patrol or local police, city or county police, that would

'

11 supplement traffic control devices along that alternate

12 route.

' (]) 13 Also included on the map are any stop signs, any

14 signing of the alternate route that would be required. Also

15 the persons and telephone numbers of key individuals who

16 have a part in implementing that particular alternate route.

17 Now, the way that map would be used, 'obviously -

13 we cannot look at a possible incident for every point on the

19 freeway, but we have taken key ones, and as I indicated in

20 my earlier testimony, we have over 3,000 maps covering our

21 district where we have done this.

22 Our incident response teams have these maps. We
t

23 have the capability in the traf fic operations center of-

g%.)
calling up the map that is applicable to a specific site.g 24

25 That information is transmitted to the incident

-. _-
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8 I response people, and to the California Highway Patrol.

,

() 2 Also delineated on this map -- well, it isn't

3 delineated on the map, but as a procedure, our maintenance

([) 4 people, California Highvay Patrol Of ficers, and our incident
J

5 response people will meet at the site, and will establish a

6 command post at the site, and it is that command post that. ther,
,

7 has the responsibility and the authority to manage that

3 particular; incident until that command post is relieved of

9 that responsibility.
,.

~

10 The first thing our traf fic response team would

11 do is to run the alternate route, and make sure that in

12 fact it is still capable of carrying traf fic, that there

]) 13 hasn't been a construction job or what have you taking place.

14 At that time, they would also place signs along

15 the alternate route, either simple signs that are strapped to

16 telephone poles, or to street signs or to whatever, that
i

17 simply say "Fr eway alternate," a reassurance sign so people

13 know they are on the right route to bypass and get back onto

19 the freeway, so that in that sense, the map becomes really

; 20 the device that at least sets the tone for the management of

21 the scene, and provides to our people a foundation from which4

22 to make any changes to meet the particular conditions out0,i

13 there.
,

24 O Thank you very much. What part of your

25 organization performs that particular rerouting with the use
,

. - . . - .- ._. , . - . _ - - . - . . - . . - - . -
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(.
() 2 A The incident response team.

3 O Do they come from the Los Angeles office?

O 4 ^ vee, eher do.

5 0 Approximately how long would it take for an

6 incident response team to reach the area of the Golden

7 Triangle in order to reroute traf fic there?

8 A This is the -- what we had talked of earlier,

9 depending upon the time of day, the Go' den Triangle area

10 would probably during the day would be something on the

11 order of one to one and a half hours, depending on traffic.

12 If it happened to be at night, there are members

( 13 of our team who live very close to the Colden Triangle area,

14 who would be there probably within a matter of 15 or 20

15 minutes.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Excuse me, Mr. McClung. Let me

17 inte-rupt for a point of clarification for the record.

13 With regard to the maps that you have just

19 described, and I think that they do -- that they are useful

20 maps f roni the standpoint of understanding what you do, subject

21 to hearing any objection from the parties, I think it might )
22 be useful to put these maps in the record at thfs point, not

23 for the truth of what it states, if you will, but rather as ar

24 example of the kind of maps the witness is talking about.

25 MR. ROGIN: We have no objection at all to that.
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10 1 Let me ask the witness if he has copies he can leave with us

()'
2 or if we can make copies to provide.

3 WITNESS ROPER: I can leave these. We can

([) 4 provide all the copies you want, within reason.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: I don't even know that it, looking

6 at them, that it matters that the very same map get in all

7 ten copies or whatever number you need. How many do you

3 need?

9 THE REPORTER: Ten.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Ten? Since they all illustrate
,

' ll the same thing. Don't they illustrate the same thing?

12 WITNESS ROPER: It is a standard form.

(} 13 JUDGE KELLEY: Right, it is a standard form. And --

34 but I think it wo' ld be useful. This would not be evidence.

15 This would be an aid to understanding the testimony, and we

16 would like one of the maps to be -- it may be a little tricky --

17 folded into the transcript at this point. Thank you.

13 (Whereupon, one of the described mapa was bound

19 lato the transcript)

20

21

22gS
\) i

23

'

C)
u

___ ____ __ _ _ _ _
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1 MR. ROGIN: We will supply copies. Shall we give

_.

() 2 it a designation of Board Exhibit 1, or something like that?

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Let me go back, and in the

() 4 interests of keeping or practice uniform, Mr. Beoletto, you

5 are a veteran of San Diego. Wasn't it our practice not to

6 provide exhf oit numbers as to this kind of material, but

7 rather to f dentify it, and if it went in the record, if it was;

8 a page or two, it went in the record.

9 MR. BEOLETTO: I believe that is right, and it
!
|

; 10 was --

I
'

11 JUDGE KELLEY: It wasn't numbered as an Exhibit.

12 It was simply used to accompany the testimony.
,

} 13 MR. BEOLETTO: My recollection is consistent, Mr.

14 Chairman. I believe that was the practice in San Diego.

i 15 JUDGE KELLEY: I would rather stick to that
4

16 practice. That isn' t to say that something like this
. _

17 cou ldn ' t come in as :an Exhibit, but I do."'t think it has to,

18 and so I think we will treat it that way. Is that clear to,

19 the reporter?

20 T!!E REPORTER: Yes.
1

21 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay, thank you.
.

22 MR. BEOLETTO: Mr. Chairman, to make it clear, are

23 we copying this into the bound transcript?

24 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes, that is what I am asking the

25 reporter to do.

.
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1 WITNESS ROPER: Mrc Chairman, here -- this set is

-

() 2 a smaller scale, and it might be easier to handle. Same type

3 of information.

() 4 JUDGE KELLEY: The reporter will appreciate that

5 very much. Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. McClung, I am sorry.

6 MR. MC CLUNG: Thank you.

7 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

8 Q Now, chece particular maps, I don't know how

9 familiar -- there is over 3,000 of them, so obviously you

10 don't know where every one is, but I am going to ask you

11 about a couple of specific points, and perhaps you know,

12 perhaps you don't know. Is there a map for the intersection

() 13 surrounding Canino de Las Rambles, in right around where

14 Highway 5 and the Coast Highway join there?

15 A No, there are not a set of maps there. Our maps

16 extended to just below the junction of routes 5 and 405, the
. -

17 Golden Triangle. Beyond there, while we do not have maps,

18 we have that same capability, it is just -- since there are so

19 many fewer alternate routes, our personnel are familiar with

20 them.

21 Q Okay, I think you have answered my question, but

gs 22 just to clarify for my sake, then, below the Golden Triangle,
%-]

23 there is no significance mapping?

24 A That is correct.

25 0 The state of the actual gridding, you referred to
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1 when you referred to the earthquake evacuation at the

() 2 sylmar earthquake, you said that there was a good deal of

3 surface street grid in that, which bore a good deal of the

O 4 evacuaeton ee thee time.

5 Now, could -- what is the state of the gridding

6 below the Golden Triangle and throughout the emergency

7 planning zone?

8 MR. ROGIN: There are maps of that area. I think

9 the question is so broad to speak of anything below the

10 intersection of highway 5 and 405, that that question is

11 impossibly broad.
,

12 JUDGE KELLEY: What is the state of the -- and I

h 13 missed that word?

14 MR. ROGIN: I will rephrase the question. I

15 think it was too broad.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

17 MR. ROGIN: Could you --

13 BY MR. ROGIN:

19 Q Do you have a means to compare relative gridding

20 of certain areas?

21 A Yes.

22 O Do you have a standard where you say a certain

23 area has a certain amount of gridding, or something like that?

24 A No.
}

25 MR. ROGIN: In the interest of time, I think if he

. _ ._ . _ _ ,
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| 1 is interested in specific intersections, he could ask about
t ,o
'

\~/ 2 them, but to talk about relative gridding and standards I

3 think is so broad it is.inot going to be of assistance in this
(
(_) 4

-

proceeding.,

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Is the record clear as to what

6 gridding is?

| 7 MR. MC CLUNG: Perhaps not.
|

8 MR. ROGIN: I guess the record would have to speak

9 for itself.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Not to me, I must confess. The
.

11 term Ogridding," could you explain that?

12 WITNESS ROPER: It is my term, so I better

/ ~N
t 13 explain it, I guess.

14 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

15 WITNESS ROPER; The way I referred to it, of course,

16 was the existence of a grid of streets which existed in the

17 San Fernando -- does exist in the San Fernando Valley, and

18 which was used extensively by the public in the evacuation

19 below Van Ormand Dam.
I

j 20 We don't have any standards of gridding, or any
'

21 measurement of gridding. Obviously our way of determining
'

(} 22 how much gridding, or how many alternate routes are there is

23 to look at a map and go take a look at the area.

(:) 24

25
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'~'

L.);T15 kl 1/ JUDGE KELLEY: Do you need at least four inter-

| 2 secting streets or roads before a grid can exist?

3 WITNESS EOPER: I -- I --! rs
(_)r

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Just in the visual sense of --

5 WITNESS ROPER: Yes, I guess for a grid to

6 exist yes, but I think.the significance in terms of using

7 surface streets for alternatives is -- does an alternate

8 route exist, and an alternate route can simply be a parallel

9 road with no grid.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. So the term is not pre-

| 11 cise, it is just sort of a descriptive term?

12 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

| 13 JUDGE KELLEY: Could you repeat your question,
4

N/ 14 orido you want to?

15 MR. MC CLUNG: I will try one more time, and if

16 I can't do it then I will pass that question.

17 BY MR. MC CLUNG:
1 -

| 18 Q Do you think the relative absence of gridding --

19 strike that. Is there a relative absence of gridding in the
|

20 emergency planning zone?

21 MR. ROGIN: I would have the same objection.

12 We have already now had an explanation that that isn't par-

23 ticularly the key question as opposed to parallel streets

(]) 24 and it is so broad that I don't think it can be answered

25 by the Witness in the whole area in the emergency planning

O
,

-
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, . .

( ,) k2 1 zone.

2 JUDGE KELLEY: I will overrule the objection.

3 It is an area that -- well, I will let the Witness give it
O.r's

9 a try.

5 WITNESS ROPER: I think that there is -- I guess

6 I am hesitating because of the term gridding. If you are

7 asking are there alternate routes, then I would say that

8 there are alternate routes, not to the degree that there

9 are alternate routes in the San Fernando Valley, because

10 we are dealing with areas that are developed differently

11 and to a different degree.

12 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

13 0 Thank you. That is sufficient for my purposes.-

-(
14 Were you consulted -- was Caltrans consulted in any manner

15 in the determination of the size or the actual boundary line s

16 of the emergency planning zone?

17 A No.

18 0 What do you take to be the outside boundary of

19 the emergency planning zone?

20 A It is my understanding that it is the ten-mile

21 radius with some adjustments to include complete communities,
,

12 for instance Dana Point.

23 Q Is that the extent of your knowledge on the

() 24 boundary of the EPZ?

25 A Yes.

.
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|

) k3 1 Q Were you ever asked -- strike that. Is there --

2 what provision in your plans is there for -- in the traffic

3 diversion aspect of your plans, what provisions are there
G(~N

4 for allowing people to go back in the emergency planning

5 zone?

6 A We don't have any specific plans for that. Once

7 the roadblocks are set up, then the management of those

8 road blocks, the policing of those roadblocks would be the

9 responsibility of the Highway Patrol or police agencies.

10 Q So you don't have ongoing supervision of the

11 traffic diversion points?

12 A Yes, we have ongoing supervision of the traffic

13 diversion points to make sure that the devices are still

U 14 operational, the changeable message sign vehicles have peo-

15 ple with them, but if somebody runs through barricades, we

16 have neither the authority nor the responsibility to appre-

17 hend that person..

-
- . .

38 Q Thank you. With respect to -- does Caltrans

19 have supervision or development and the building of roads,

20 roadways in California?

21 A Yes, we do, on the state highway system.

22 Q And Ifighway 5 and liighway 405 and Pacific Coast

23 liighway, would those be part of the state highway system?

O 24 ^ Thet is correct- rher ere.
25 Q Did -- how does the state highway system, and

k
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I
gggk4 I am referring to now specifically the Coast Highway, the

2 Highway 5, and -- if this is too broad, please tell me. It

3 is too broad. How has the state of the Pacific Coast High-

4 way aspect of the state system changed if at all since 1972/

5 MR. ROGIN: I-am sorry. Maybe I am missing
'

6 something, but I have no understanding of what that means

7 in connection with this proceeding.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: What is the thrust? I am not

9 sure I apprehend it either. What is the thrust of your

10 question?

11 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, there is testimony of

12 MR. Pilmer with respect to certain corrective measures that

13
, , were taken with respect to rulings in the construction per-

/ 14 mit stage of this proceeding which took place approximately

15 around 1972. There were rulings made and they are mentioned

16 in the testimony of Mr. Pilmer with respect to the state of

17 the roadways at that time, and what I am trying to find out

18 from an expert in the roadways is if there have been any

19 char.ges made since that time which would expand the capacity

20 of those roadways.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: Changes of what kind?

22 MR. M C CLUNG: Additions of lanes, subtractions

23 of lanes, additional routes,
i

() 24 JUDGE KELLEY: So what if there have been? |

25 I menn, my point is, there are so many lanes today on the

,



8397 |

r- k5 g highways. That is a fact. What does-it matter whether

| G]
they have been added since 1972?

2

MR. MC CLUNG: As addressed in the testimony of
3

Mr. Pilmer, he states that the -- certain aspects of the4

roadway system have changed, and I am trying to -- I am try-! 5

| 6 ing to elicit --

| 7 JUDGE KELLEY: Is that in the section of his

testimony where ho goes on at some length about the back-8

9 ground and devcJ.opment of emergency planning for SONGS?

MK'..MCeCLUNG: No, it is not in that section,
10

'

Mr. Chairman. It is in another section where he talks;y

about the appeals board and the licensing board rulings and
12

the construction permits stage and how those particular
.

13

rulings he refers to have been fixed up since that time,14

MR. ROGIN: Mr. Chairman, there is testimony tog5

16 that small degree in Mr. Pilmer's testimony, but if

17 Mr. McClung is interested in whether the roadway now meets

( is the concerns, he could go back and look at that record and

look at the roadway. We don't need to ask an expert how
39

|
| 20 many lanes there are on the freeway or take the time of

this proceeding now to do that. It seems to me there are
21

22 alternative ways to satisfy his curiosity.

JUDGE KELLEY: I frankly don't see much point23

24 in the question. I will make my own objection. Go ahead.

25 ///

O\g

.

.
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( 'l k6 1 BY MR. MC CLUNG:
s/

2 Q IIave you reviewed the traffic flow nun,bers that

3 are in the Wilbur Smith testimony? Strike that. Wilbur
'bs
,

4 Smith report on the evacuation time estimates?

5 A I personally have not. My people have.

6 Q And is it -- in your opinion, then, or can you

7 form an opinion then about the reasonableness of those

a traffic flow rates?

9 A I believe I can.

10 Q Are they rea'sonable in your opinion?

11 A Yes, they are.

12 Q Did you personally participata in the FEMA

13 drill or exercise of May 13th?,

' f3'

14 A No.

15 0 Did your organization participate in any way?

16 A Yes.

17 Q Could you describe that participation briefly?
..

18 A Yes, that participtu$ ton was by both our main-

19 tenance people and our traffic response people. They re-

20 sponded as a part of the exercise to a call. They actually

21 traveled to the field. The Ilighway Patrol and maintenance

22 and traffic response units did in fact meet in the field

23 and simulate barricading of the highway.

() 24 0 Were any problems disclosed in your operation

25 or notification procedures during that drill?

O

. - -
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,r's : A No problems from the standpoint of being capable
\_] k7

2 to respond and in fact responding. There were some communica-

3 Lions problems in the conduct of the exercise itself.
,

4 Q Could you describe briefly what you mean by

5 that?

<; A Yes. The word we got was that our people were

7 to go out and meet the Highway Patrol people, our maintenanc e

a people, our traffic response people, and that they would

then be relieved and that would be the termination of our9

jo part of the exercise and they did not get relieved. The

yy word never came down and we had some people in the field for

12 a full day. But we were there.

_ 33 MR. MC CLUNG: That is all.
,a

(_) 34 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. Staff?

15 MR. HOEFLING: No questions,.Mr. Chairman.

16 JUDGE JOHNSON: Yeah. Mr. Roper, I believe you

17 indicated that there are something of the order of 3,300 of

13 these -- ,

19 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

20 JUDGE JOHNSON: -- assorted maps in the whole

21 series. And then later on there was a comment, if I recall,

22 thet when an incident response team responds, it has with

23 it the r.ecessary maps. Does this mean that each team has

24 the whole file of 3,300 maps, or is each incident response
{{}

25 team assigned to a particular area, and therefore has a

O
%.i

.
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/~ k8 1 subset of that -

(-)/ I

I
2 W7FNESS ROPER: We have attempted to make a

3 determination of who would logically respond to an incident,s

't(V
4 where, and provide subsets to those folks. I mentioned

5 too that we have the capability in the operations center to

6 call up on a video screen any one of these maps and then

7 that map can be - '_the alternate route on that map can be
i

a described by radio from the operations center to a unit that

9 doesn't have a map.

10 JUDGE JOHNSON: So it is not really necessary

11 then that each particular unit have every map it might con-

12 ceivably need?'

13 WITNESS ROPER: That is correct.-

14 JUDGE JOHNSON: And these are indexed then in

15 such a way that you have no difficulty pulling out the one

16 or ones out of the entire set --

17 WITNESS ROPER: That is correct.

18 JUDGE JOH SON: And roughly how l'ong does'it ~~

19 take you to find one?

20 WITNESS ROPER: A matter of a minute or two.

21 Punch in the number and wait for it to come up.

12 JUDGE JOHNSON: Okay. So they are appropriate-

23 ly indexed?

() 24 WITNESS ROPER: Yes, Ma'am.

25 JUDGE JOHNSON: I believe you indicated some

O
|

|

4
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( ') k 9 3
time back, perhaps in your direct, that your SOPS are being~

ss
Put in standard format at this point?2

. , - - 3 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

4 JUDGE JOHNSON: Tnere are probably quite a few

of them when one considers the multiciplity of responses you
5

6 must make in the everyday conduct of your job. Is that a

7 fair statement?

JUDGE JOHNSON: Yes, Ma'am, it is a fair state-
3

9 ment, although, even though we are responding to a host of

types of incidents, our kind of response is in many casec10

identical.gg

JUDGE JOHNSON: All right. What is the degree
12

of familiarity that each of your response teams must have
- 13

(f~h with an SOP that says do such and such under such and such(/ 34

conditions? Does he have to pull it from his file, read it
15

line by line, as a cookbook, or is he sufficiently familiar16

with it that he can use it for reminder purposes only?
17

gg WITNESS ROPER: I think the latteri Our respons e

team members are, first of all, experienced traffic engineers,
j9

so they can analyze traffic on:the spot. They.are backed
20

up by the capabilities of the operations center, and in many21

cases information regarding traffic flows are taken elec-12

tronically from the street or the freeway into the opera-
'

23

24 tions center. That can be relayed back out to the team,()
25 so they can make a traffic engineering judgment. They are

0

-
- .
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s

~

kl0 g familiar with the alternate routes. They are familiar with(v';

2 the system that we have out there, and they are familiar

7- 3 with the procedures, so the SOPS are a matter of making
(>)

4 these procedures a matter of record, something that can be
referred back-to to refresh memories, but in the day to day

5

6 operation, the experience, judgment, knowledge of that in-

7 dividual that is leading the team is key.

JUDGE JOHNSON: In other words, your SOPS are
8

a documentation of how you do your job all the time?9

WITNESS ROPER: That is correct, yes.
10

JUDGE JOHNSON: The CRT displays that you have3;

in your control center, what happens to -- let's start over12

on that one. If you lose power in your control center as13

C/T g4 we did here ju;t before lunch, does that affect your display

15 capability?

16 WITNESS ROPER: We have our own emergency power

17 supply within our building that we would immediately saitch
.

gg to, and the power needs of the CRT would be met. I am

39 hesitating because I am not sure of the transmission line

20 needs. If the transmission lines went down, we would not

21 have that capability on the CRT. We would have that capa-

22 bility through voice communication or either radio or tele-

23 phone.

() 24 JUDGE KELLEY: Excuse me. Can we go off the

25 record for just a moment?

(.Off the record discussion.)
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gggtp#16 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record. Go ahead.

2 JUDGE JOllNSON: Okay.

3 I'm not altogether convinced I understood your,

4 last answer, so let's try something else. If the power

5 goes off you say you do not -- you will have your CRT's but

6 you will not necessarily have your transmission lines, that

7 you will have to use radiocommunication.

8 WITNESS ROPER: Yes. What I was trying to point

9 out is that while we have an emergency power supply and the
10 power needs of our CRT may well be taken care of, but if we

11 have lost our transmission capability then we would not have

12 the CRT operative ~and we would have to rely on radiocommunica--

13 tion.
,

l 14 JUDGE JOllNSON: You would have to go to your hard
'

15 copy maps also then.

16 WITNESS ROPER: I'm not sure I understand the

17 question, ma'am.
.

18 JUDGE JO!!NSON: You indicate ~d that in your control

19 center you can pull up on the CRT's the duplicate, if you

20 will, of these maps, some of which we have here in front of

21 us. And if you lose your transmission you cannot use your
12 CRT's for getting that image out to the field?

23 WITNESS ROPER: No. We --

( 14 JUDGE JOllNSON: Or you can't bring it into your
]

j

25 control center?

v
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()2 1 WITNESS ROPER: No. We are talking two differentv

2 CRT's,

ex 3 JUDGE JOHNSON: That's what I was afraid of.b
4 WITNESS ROPER: One CRT is the unit that is tied

5 into the computer at the Highway Patrol headquarters;nd it is

G that CRT, from that CRT that we get information on any
7 incident underway in the field. We can call that up and it

8 is identical with that which is in Highway Patrol headquartern.
'

9 The second display is self-contained within our own organiza-

10 tion and it's a matter of calling up a microfiche of this

11 map and having it displayed. So as long as we have power -

: 12 we can call that map up. You a're also correct in that we do
13 have hard copies of these maps in our operations center.

(O 14 JUDGE JOHNSON: You just answered my next

15 question, I think. But let me try it anyway. You say you

16 display a microfiche copy.

17 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

18 JUDGE JOHNSON: That means that there is no in

19 the conventional sense computer memory connec;id to these
20 CRT's?

21 WITNESS ROPER: To the latter one, that's correct
.

12 The only computer memory would be in identifying, if this is

23 a computer memory, in identifying the identifying number on

(]) 24 the map and that the right map comes up.
25 JUDGE JOHNSON: The point of this is I was |

O

.
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3 i wondering if you lose your file if you lose power. Some(]%s

2 systems can, as you know.

3 WITNESS ROPER: We will not on our alterndte
(,,\

,

1

'~#'

4 routes. Well, let me qualify that. We would lose that

5 capability if we did not have our emergency power supply.

6 We would lose the capability of calling up that microfiche.
:

7 But we would not lose the capability of looking at the hard

8 copy in the operations center and relaying that information

9 to the field, where necessary, by radio.

| yo JUDGE JOHNSON: You have demonstrated, I believe,

j 33 that you can maintain communication by radio lacking relay

12 towers, and so on and so forth. But,your backup power supply

13 for your operations center, is that diesel or storage battery

14 or what?

15 WITNESS ROPER: I believe it's diesel. But I'm

16 not absolutely --

| 17 JUDGE JOHNSON: You have every reason to believe

- 13 it is re11able?

19 WITNESS ROPER: Yes, ma'am.

20 JUDGE JOHNSON: And it is tested?

21 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

12 JUDGE JOHNSON: I think that's all I have, Mr.

23 Roper. Thank you.

/~T 24 WITNESS ROPER: Yes, ma'am.
: (./

25 JUDGE HAND: Mr. Roper, you made some reference

O
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'^'

b) I earlier to the retrofitting er fixing that's being done on

2 some of the overpasses to try to avoid this collapse business

3 related to earthquakes?f-s
O

4 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

5 JUDGE IIAND: Does that include bridges or is that

6 strictly overpasses?

7 WITNESS ROPER: No. It is all bridges, all

8 structures.

9 JUDGE HAND: 'All right. Fine. And if we go

10 specifically to the EPZ and the area in the EPZ and the main

11 evacuation routes as they have been designated of taking care

12 of this problem we are all discussing, do you have any idea

13 whether those are all now fixed? Are all the overpasses,
/ /"T
k/ 14 have they had this retrofitting applied?

15 WITNESS ROPER: I'm not aware, haven't looked at

16 it specifically in the area that we are talking about. In
i

17 our district -- and I'm talking the Los Angeles District --
..

18 that retrofitting program is now something on the order of

19 95 percent completed. There are still a few that are left

20 to be done.

21 JUDGE HAND: And that would essentially include

22 all of the EPZ?

23 WITNESS ROPER: No. That would include the

() 24 Orange County portion.

25 JUDGE HAND: Down to the Orange County.

!

.
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(~]T
I WITNESS ROPER: And I am also aware that that

\~

2 retrofitting program has been carried out also in other
.

3 districts. I don't know the degree to which it has beenf3
\ ,)

4 completed in the San Diego District.

5 JUDGE HAND: Down as far as your district goes,

6 then, down to Orange County, do you have a date you could

7 anticipate when all of these fixes will be in place?

8 WITNESS ROPER: I'm not aware of any specific

9 date.

10 JUDGE HAND: How long has it taken to get up to

II -- did you say 90 or 95 percent? -- how long has that been

12 going on?

13 WITNESS ROPER: That program was initiated after
,D

p r

\_/ 14 the '71 quake. It was probably on the order of two or three

15 years before in fact the contracts -- designs were completed

16 and contracts were let to begin it. So it has probably been

17 something on the order of seven years in the mill.

II JUDGE HAND: Do you have a round number of the

19 number of overpasses that in fact required attention?

20 WITNESS ROPER: No. Only that it is hundreds.

21 We are dealing with hundreds of miles of freeway.

12 JUDGE HAND: Yes. And do you know, do you have

23 a number that relates to magnitudes of earthquakes which

(} 24 presumably this fix applic.+ and does it take us up to

25 magnitude 2 or 4 or 7 or what?

rm
%)

M
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(~) 1 WITNESS ROPER: I am not aware of such a number. 1

'O
2 I might explain. I am not a structural engineer. I have not

3 been involved in that part of our emergency preparedness.
b,_s

; 4 But certainly we have structural engineers in our organiza-

5 tion who have analyzed it.
!

6 JUDGE HAND: Well, to your knowledge, would someone'

!

7 in Caltrans have an answer to that question? Is there in;

a fact a number up to which you are now trying to fix all
,

| 9 overpasses, an earthquake magnitude number that is being used
|

| io as a guideline in this repair work?
|

| 3; WITNESS ROPER: It would be my expectation that
!

12 there is a number, yes.

I
. 13 JUDGE HAND: But you don't know who has the

14 number?

15 WITNESS ROPER: I know the unit within the organ-

16 ization that would have the number.

17 JUDGE HAND: Tell me the name, then, of the part
-

.

13 of Caltrans that might have the number.

; 19 WITNESS ROPER: It would be our structures design

20 unit.

21 JUDGE HAND: Structures design unit. All right.

22 I think that answers the questions I have. Thank you.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Let me just get it straight,

'

(V~)
24 Mr. Rogin. As I understand it now, the present witness

25 happens to know something about earthquake damage and exper-

O
|

_

h
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1 ience, but I don't understand that you called him for that

s-\
.

2 specific purpose.

| 7,) 3 MR. ROGIN: That's correct. Well, we called him,
|

''
4 as Mr. Pigott explained earlier, to explain what would happen

5 in the event of an earthquake in terms of damage assessment
|

6 and the capability to deal with rerouting traffic around a

| 7 bridge or an overpass, as the witness explained. That

j 8 doesn't get into so much a forecast of which ones might fall
1

9 in a particular earthquake as much as the after event,;
:

| 10 planning and carrying out those plans.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: I understand that, but he's not

| 12 here for extent of damage testimony, am I correct about

13 that?7

14 MR. ROGIN: That's correct.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Do you anvision somebody who would

16 address that?

| 17 MR. ROGIN: Not -- outside of the' scope of the
| -

-

~18 Board's su esponte issue, we --
~

19 JUDGE KELLEY: I'm not suggesting necessarily

20 you need it. I'm just asking.

21 MR. ROGIN: No, we had not. Because in our view,

12 as Mr. Pigott explained, the concern that was expressed by |
l

23 the NRC Staff and the planning that we think needs to be

() 24 done is that type of planning that the witness testified to.
r

25 We were not intending to call a structural engineer to predict

o
L./

.
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(~) I which structures might fail or not fail. !

U
I

2 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. You've answered my questior
'

3 It isn't to say that some question may not remain, but for
,b
-

4 now, okay. The maps that you talk about and we have samples

5 up here, the diversion maps I'll call them. Mr. McClung

6 asked you whether such maps had been prepared south of the

7 Golden Triangle I think was the question and your answer was
8 that they had not. Now the Golden Triangle again is where?

9 WITNESS ROPER: The Golden Triangle is that

to triangle which is bounded by the Santa Ana Freeway, the San
.

11 Diego Freeway, and essentially Laguna Beach or Laguna Canyon

12 Road or 133.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: It's not very far from here, is, , .

14 it? A few miles?

15
|

WITNESS ROPER: A few miles south of here.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Right. An'd it is well north of
17 the EPZ?

18 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

19 JUDGE KELLEY: For the facility.

j 20 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: When you say there are no maps
12 below that does that go all the way below to the !!exican

23 border or below in your district?

() 24 WITNESS ROPER: It is below in our district and,

25 to my knowledge, District 11 has not prepared such maps.

V("%

!
- _ .
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(''/) 1 JUDGE KELLEY: IE that San Diego County? ||
x- ;

'

2 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.
i

3 JUDGE KELLEY: So no maps exist for variousrw

b
4 interchanges and intersections in the EPZ?

5 WITNESS ROPER: That's correct.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Then I guess I'm a little unclear.

7; other than finding the maps interesting, what bearing do
|

| 8 they have, if any, on evacuation of the EPZ?

9 WITNESS ROPER: I think a couple of points that
:

10 the maps do make. One, I think they give some feeling for

11 the level of preparedness of Caltrans to respond to an

! 12 emergency on the freeway system to freeway closures. That
!

13 is one point. Above the --

'

14 JUDGE KELLEY: But as to that point, I mean what

IF bearing does that have on this case? Our focus is on the

16 EPZ area.

17 WITNESS ROPER: I think that above the junction
~

18 of routes 5 and 405 where a lot of this diversion is going

19 to be taking place -- in fact, all of the diversion is going
i

| 20 to be taking place -- it means that we are prepared to keep
!

21 traf fic moving in that area in order that evacuation traf fic

22 can come up into that area.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. It would have that bearing.

() 24 You say all. You mean all the people in the EPZ? All the|

25 evacuees are going to come to that junction? 1

(')u
|
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p\
(,) 1 WirMFSS ROPER: No. Part of the evacuees are

2 going to come to that junction. Some are going up Pacific

-N 3 Coast Highway. Others are going south.(D
4 JUDGE KELLEY: Right.

5 WITNESS ROPER: But for those that are coming
.

6 into this area we are going to have within reason an

7 operating system up here to receive them. I think another

8 point I would make is that simply because there are no maps
9 south of this point does not mean that our personnel are not

10 familiar with the alternate routes available down there and
11 familiar with our system. It is just that in setting prior-

12 ities that was not one of our high priority areas at the time

s 13 these maps were prepared.

14 JUDGE KELLEY. You are saying, then, I gather,

15 that the existence of these maps and their availability is

16 not crucial to successfully diverting people around the

17 roadblock, a road blockage of some kind?

18 WITNESS ROPER: It's not absolutely -- they are

19 not absolutely essential. No. They are just --

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Because if they were, nobody could

21 get out of the EPZ,is that right?

17 WITNESS ROPER: No. They could get out of the

23 EPZ by using the freeways. Remember, these maps are only

() 24 put into operationshen there is a blockage on.the freeway.
25 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. It's only in the blockage

L
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[j') I case that they become pertinent.
u

2 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

r' 3 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Bearing in mind that you
b

4 haven't been called by the Applicants specifically for this

5 purpose, since you did refer to that San Fernando earthquake

6 and the evacuation of people below the Van Norman Dam, is

7 that the,name of it?

8 WITNESS ROPER: Yes.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Could you describe the extent, if

10 any, to which -- well, I think you said there was some --
.

11 the extent of disruption of highways by that earthquake and
-

12 what it is you had to deal with?

.. 13 WITNESS ROPER: By the earthquake?,G
l 14 JUDGE KELLEY: Right. I thought you said there

15 was. First of all, did that earthquake cause any extensive

16 damage to overpasses and bridges and the like?

17 WITNESS ROPER: It most certainly did. It wiped

18 us out is what it did. The area right near the Van Normcn

19 Dam, near the junction of San Diego Freeway, the Golden State

20 Freeway, the Foothill Freeway, the Antelope Valley Freeway,

21 they all channel through a very narrow gorge up there which

12 also has a railroad in it and a water supply in it and a

23 power supply in it and we had a major interchange up there

() 24 that was under construction. The earthquake,.while the

25 epicenter wasn't right there, it was very, very near. And

O
,
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( }) I we essentially blocked off Los Angeles from all access to

2 cad from the north with that emergency. I'm kind of proud

2,r-) to say that by -- well, that happened at six o' clock in the
v

4 morning and thct afternoon we had lanes open, one lane each

5 direction, through that mess and reestablished contact with

6 the north.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Now if you could give me a brief

8 description. Were you dealing with fallen overpaasesand

9 so on and, if you were, how did you get those lanes back into

10 operation?

11 WITNESS ROPER: We were dealing with fallen over-

12 passes, we were dealing with settlement or movement within

. 13 the fills, we had pavement that had exploded, the whole bit.

O(s' 14 We used every available route we could. We had traffic on

15 city streets, back up onto freeway ramps, back down around,

16 and just weaved our way througn. We then went in and providec

17 additional capacity and within it was a matter of a couple of

18 weeks we had -- well, it was more than that; perhaps a month ^

19 and a half or so -- we had built a six lane detour.

20 fff

21

22

23

(v~') 24

25
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'

(~)T17klg JUDGE: KELLEY: Oh, I misunderstood you. I
x-

2 thought that when you said it happened a t six o' clock some-

7-) 3 thing in the morning and then in the afternoon you had one
V

4 lane open, I. thought you said, on each of these routes.

5 WITNESS ROPER: We had one lane northbound and
i

6 one lane southbound using eserything we could.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Oh, I misunderstood you. Okay.

3 But you didn't get those overpasses back up by one o' clock

9 in the afternoon?
;

WITNESS ROPER: No, sir.
| 10

3; JUDGE KELLEY: Whatever.
!

MR. ROGIN: We would have brought a witness in
12

|

who could have testified to that.
|f/m

- 13
,

- 14 WITNESS ROPER: Those were rather massive.
|

| 15 JUDGE KELLEY: What other -- have you had any

16 other comparable experiences to the '71 San Fernando earth-
|

17 quake with extensive damage to highways and bridges and
|

| 33 problems such as the one you just described?
|

WITNESS ROPER: Well, nothing as extensive as39

i 20 the earthquake, but we c. ave had some major damage to free-
!

21 ways here. Within the past several months we had a gasoline

22 tanker explode and burn under a railroad structure that

I

crossed our freeway, and we closed the g61 den state freeway'

g3

() 24 in downtown Los Angeles area, and --

25 JUDGE KELLEY: But not with earthquakes other

| ('T
\_)!

3.-
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(O7 K2
San Fernando, '717'

y

! WITNESS ROPER: That --2

,p 3 JUDGE KELLEY: Itave you had experience as far

4 as, let's call it a small earthquake, three or four magni-

tude? !! ave you had experience with whether an earthquake5

! 6 of that magnitude close to the highway structure can take

! 7 out an overpass, let's say?

WITNESS ROPER: Generally something like thatg

9 we have no problem. It may trigger some minor slides or

p p something loose, but from a structure standpoing, three10

or four isn't going to give us any problem.yy

We have had expe:ience with traffic management
12

| and restoration in some slide situations, Pacific Coast
33._

' ( o>t IIighway and these kinds of things.34

JUDGE KELLEY: Those are the Board's questions.
| 15

| 16 Do you have redirect?
|

I 17 MR. ROGIN: I have two or three questions.only.
I

gg - JUDGE KELLEY: Go ahead.

| REDIRECT EXAMINATION39

20 BY MR. ROGIN:

21 0 Earlier you described communicat. ions that were

available, Mr. Roper, and you went through the exercise --22

described the exercise where you had assumed that you had23

(] 1 st your radio transmitters and the mountaintop facilities24

25 and demonstrated some capabilities with respect to radio

O
.
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from unit to unit communications.r~s k 3 y

U
A Yes.y

s 3 0 would that capability of that unit to unit

( )
4 communication.be sufficient for you to put your men in the'''

field for damage assessment in the event of an earthquake?5

6 A Yes.
.

7 0 And in terms of damage assessment, in the event

that road vehicles were not possible for use due to damageg

to roads, are there other facilities or other means you have9

to arrive at the scene where potential damare may have oc-
10

curred to make an examination?yy

A Yes. The main one that comes to my. mind is air-
12

craft.
13

() 0 So you have provisions to use aircraft for that34

15
purp so?

A Yes. We don't have any aircraft ourselves. We --

16

the Highway Patrol does have helicopters, and we certainly17
~

18 have the procedures set up where we can'ask the Highway -

Patrol and use their helicopter. That helicopter is not19

20 nly for traffic purposes. - It is also for emergency uses

and therefore it is not always available for traffic.21

In order to beef that capability up, we are22

Presently negotiating with the city of Los Angeles and are23

about to include an agreement where we will use a city of(~') 24
ss

L s Angeles helicopter, have it available to us on a rental25

O
r.)

.

. . ~ m
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(~)k4 i basis. We were also looking into having a standing contract
,

v

with a private flying service te provide that kind of ser-2

/~s 3 vice, either fixed wing or helicopter.
y)

4 MR..ROGIN: Thank you. That would be the ex-

5 tent of our redirect.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Roper, thank you very much.

7 We appreciate your coming. You are excused.

3 MR. ROGIN: We would call at this time our next

9 witness, Calvin Nash, and I would also like to introduce to

the Board Mr. James M. Martin, who is from the firm of
10

33 Cooksey, Colman and Howard, Mr. Nash's attorney.'

12 Whereupon,

CALVIN NASH
13. -

'l having been first duly sworn by the Chairman, was called as34

a witness herein and was examined and testified as follows.15

DIRECT EXAMINATION16

17 BY MR. ROGIN:

13 0 Will you state your full name for the record,.

lP ease?19

20 A Calvin Nash.

!

21 Q And your address?

22 A 25211 Stockport Drive, Laguna Hills.

23 Q Did you receive or were you served a cubpoena

() 24 in this action. Mr. Nash?

25 A Yes.

(O./
.
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(~)/ k5 g Q And are you appearing today pursuant-to that!

s_|

2 subpoena?

A Yes.gy 3,
'

't'~)
4 Q You work for the Red Cross, is that correct?

! 5 A That is correct.

|

6 0 And what is your title?
,

| 7 A Director of disaster services, and also the

assistant executive director.
| 3 ,

9 Q And that is the Orange County chapter?
!

A The Orange County chapter of the Red Cross.10

gg Q Could you briefly describe for us your education

and training?12
!

A Okay, I hold a Bachelor's of Science degree in
12

, ..(~)l

N- education from;the: University of Cincinnati, graduated 1975.34
!

i 15 And the second part of that question was?

l
16 Q General training that you have had, particular-

17 ly that which might relate to your role working for the Red
V.- -

| ig Cross in disaster planning.
|

A Okay. I started working for the Red Cross in| 39

20 July of 1973, August as a disaster service to military
|

families case worker for the Cincinnati Red Cross Office.21

I left that job in 1975 whereby I was transferred to Cedar12

23 Rapids, Iowa, again to the title of director of disaster

|() 24 services, held that position four years, at which I trans-

25 ferred to Orange County, California November of '78.

,0 .
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7"(5_) k6 1 I came on board here in November of '78 through

2 January, again as director of disaster services, still

/~T 3 holding that current position title, and was promoted in
A_J

4 January again to the assistant executive director.

5 Q Mr. Beoletto tells me you mentioned January in

6 that answer without giving the year for it.,

7 A Oh, okay, back in Cedar Rapids?

8 MR. BEOLETTO: The recent promotion.

9 WITNESS NASH: Oh, okay, January, '81.

10 BY MR. ROGIN:

11 Q Thank you. Have you taken specific courses in

12 the management of shelters in the area of disaster planning?
>

13 A Yeah, in the course o f my eight years of pro-
. g-)s(_

14 fessional service, if you will the Red Cross, we have a

15 number of courses that are offered to our volunteers as well

16 as profcasional staff, which range in the areas of mask

17 care, mask care supervision, which are considered adminis-

18 trative positions, damage assessment, which are relative

19 to providing damage assessment on dwellings, family.ser-

20 vices, again issuing assistance directly to individuals

21 following a disaster, and also we have courses which are

22 directly relative to directing major disaster operations

23 with respect to our operation and working concurrently j

O( / 24 within government.

25 In 1977 I was selected as a national training

O
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em
t k7 instructor for the Red Cross to go out into other chapters(j g

throughout the country, and have taught such chapters --
2

those would be the directors of the programs as well as(~) 3
Lj

4 their volunteers, if you will, within Chicago, Des Moines,

I wa, P rtland, Oregon, San Diego, Great Falls, Montana,
5

and within here in the state of California.6

7 0 Among those courses, I am not sure if -- I don't

think you-mentioned it -- I don't think you mentioned it,8

are specific courses in shelter management?9

A Yeah, shelter management. That is what we refer
10

to ask mask care, mask care supervision.yy

0 Have you had some personal experience involving
12

disasters, Mr. Nash, and the management of them?
13~n'' A Yes. In 1. ) I was actually a volunteer withy4

15 the Cincinnati area Red Cross as I was going through college ,

16 and in 1972 had the opportunity to work in Hurricane Agnes

17 in Pennsy'vania, again in the mask care function. There was

yg also an opportunity for me to make a decision that if teach-

19 ing didn't make it I would go on as becoming a Red Cross

20 Professional.
In '74 as a paid person for the red cross,

21

w rked in the Ohio tornadoes. These were the series of12

tornadoes that affected Cincinnati and Zine, Ohio. I
23

() w rked there in the city of Cincinnati, '76 in Iowa, and24

25 '77 and '78 in Iowa, relative again to a number of tornadoes
!

_

e
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/m
( ) I that hit the state. In '77 was sent to Louisiana to work
v

2 in Baton Rouge on Louisiana floods. In '79 the Texas

j'] 3 01kahoma tornadoes in Witcheta Falls, Texas. In '79
C/

4 Illinois floods, stationed in Peoria, Illinois. 1979 North

5 Dakato Floods in Grand Fork, North Dakota, and then of

6 course in 1980 a number of Southern California floods,

7 including running the job for Hemmett, the Elsinore floods
.

8 for the Red Cross.

9 Q Thank you. Let me turn for a moment to the

10 Red Cross itself. Is that an agency chartered by Congress?

11 A Yes. The Red Cross was chartered in 1905 by

12 Congress,- of which disaster services is a federal congres-

13 sional mandated program. All Red Cross offices, which num-
-3r
'l 14 ber 3,000 throughout the country, have to supply to the

15 general facilities at which they are located as well as

16 nation-wide, all services on tl.? immediate assistance

17 basis to families following any disatter.

18 0 Your role in particular now in Orange County --

19 can your describe briefly what your duties and responsibili-

20 ties are here?

21 A We have a disaster staff of four in our office,
.

22 and as the director I am responsible for supervising all

23 operation as well as preparedness aspec.s. On a prepared-

() 24 ness basis, that would entail working with the school dis-

25 tricts, cities, their day to day planning, hospitals in

r~
( >y

.
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({]) I terms of their accreditation planning, and also internally

i 2 on our own planning for recuitment and staffing of our own

3 functions during a major disaster operation.-)
' %J

4- y In the event of an emergency at SONGS requiring

5 the evacue. tion of people, what is the primary role of the

6 Red Cross?

7 A Okay, primarily we would be obviously operating

a th,e relocation center sites, any individuals needing housing ,

9 food, clothing, can obviously respond to those center sites
i

10 and then would be met by Red Cross experienced personnel,

11 and would also be met by nursing personnel stationed within'

12 those facilities to receive that aid necessary, since they

13 will not be allowed to live within their residences.
,

14 0 Were you with the Red Cross involved in the

15 selection of the reception and care centers which have been
;

:

| 16 identified in various plans, emergency plans?

17 A Yes, the County office of emergency services

18 and ourselves were responsible for working with the school -

i

|

19 districts and college districts involved in setting up the

20 relocation sites.

21 Q And as selected they meet with your approval

! 22 and satisfaction?
|

| 23 A Definitely.
;

|(') 24 Q Turning for a moment to the area of communica-

25 tions, do you have a direct line with what is commonly

|

|
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r^T .i known as communications one, or the communications network
Lj -

2 in Orange County?

3 A Yes. We have a -- in Orange County we actually, -);
'#

4 have six facilities, two of which are located in the city of

5 Santa Ana, one of which is a blood facility that is operated

6 24 hours a day, orden days a week with our disaster program,

7 and we maintain a direct line from Orange County control

3 one to that facility in Santa Ana, which is monitored and

9 manned 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

10 Q And do you have other radio forms of communica-

gg tion available to you?

A Yes. In each of our facilities we have fixed12

site base stations, which do not run off of telephone lines,y3,.

' e~s
(_) if you will, plus we do have one in the Santa Ana office,34

15 which is run off from Santiago peak.

16 0 Any of your personnel have pagers which were

17 attempted at least to be described earlier, and which we
~ ~

33 later had an example of, I should point ou't?

j9 A Yes. Yes, we have nine personnel which are al-

20 ways on call. Six are directly involved with the disaster

21 Program. Three are nurses who back up the disaster program

12 in terms of being on call to provide the emergency medical

23 care that would have to go into back-up facilities, if you
j

~

will, or the relocation centers. We also maintain approxi-
(',_-} 24

j

25 mately 10 radio controlled vehicles from our Santa Ana .

i

|

j
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,m..
i ,) 1- office. These are equipment -- vehicles, if you will, that

2 are owned by the Red Cross, radio control them to our cen-

(~S 3 ters, as well'as 31 additional pre-placed radios throughout
(_/

4 Orange County that are located within other staff's --

5 volunteers' cars.

6 0 In the event of an emergency, how would you ex-
;

7 pect to receive notifi. cation?

3 A Okay, according to our procedures that have been

9 designated by us in the OES office, the minute any incident

10 would occur at SONGS, then at that point in time we are

33 notified. Currently within the planning stages we have gone

12 into our notification coming to the site emergency where

, . . 33 phase three of a problem at SONGS. However, because of our
O\~'

34 nature of our back-up responsibilities to the cities, ob-

15 viously with relation to any evacuation, we are prepared to

16 go into immediate swing as soon as the notification comes
;

17 through.
-

..

Is Q IIave you, putting aside a SONGS emergency for

19 the moment, have you had experiences recently where you have

20 had to set up reception and care centers without prior for-

21 mal planning recently?

22 A Right. All of our planning is geared around

23 providing mass care services to victims no matter what the

'Q)\._ 24 type of disaster, obviously. About three weeks ago we did

25 have an incident in Tustin. The Larry Fricker chemical

(~h
U

-
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/m
() 1 incident whereby again our total Red Cross disaster plan

2 was put into full swing with an evacuation of over 2,000

3 people. That is when we did not have a lot of time to plan(~} ,

4 As a matter of fact we were notified at about 12:40, and

5 within about 25 minutes the evacuation was called by the <

6 fire-department, and we had about 10 minutes to open up a

7 facility then. We did house at that point about 500 people

8 who chose to come to us because they had no other offsite

9 plans, if you will.

10 In those kinds of evacuations there isn't too

| 11 much time to plan, and generally we find that of the -- any

12 kind of evacuation, probably about 10 to 15 percent will

13 come to the Red Cross. In this particular case, since therej_

14 was no pre-warning, and the fire department and police de-"

15 part ment was just knocking on doors and advising people to

16 evacuate, we received about 500 of them, and they stayed

17 with is until about 12:30 that morning.

13 Q That you. How will you staff the reception'and

19 care centers once the decision is made to operate, to open?

20 A Okay, we will do exactly as we did in the May

21 13th exercise, primarily through a call-up procedure that

22 we have internally to notify staff a.d volunteers to re-

23 spond. These personnel have all been given training in

' i(' _'j 24 terms of how to open a facility site, and ho.w to immediate-

25 ly set up and deal with the evacuees themselves. I am not|

(O.a
I
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|
i

I,) 2 1 sure if that answers the way you --
%

2 Q No, that is fine. The process would include

3 3 the registration of evacuees, for example, and those pro-
(~J%.

4 cedures are known to the people who would set up the centers?

5 A That is right. And in terms of our training,

6 our training is anywhere from 8 to 16 hours, plus throughout -

7 the year, many of our personnel get some additional experi-
8 ences when we do have disasters that occur on a routine
9 basis, but the procedures and standards of training shou

10 that they would automatically set up a housing area, a
.

11 feeding area and also one for providing medical care in the

12 facility.

l, 13 Q Now the reception and care centers operated --
,_

14 in particular which would be operated in the event of an'-

15 emergency at SONGS capable of prolonged op< cations if

16 necessary?

17 A Yes.
-

._

18
.

Q And how would you accomplish that if you needed

19 additional supplies, for example? In other words, have

20 arrangements been made, or do you routinely have procedures

21 to bring in supplies from outside the immediate area if

12 they are required?

23 A 3. All of the Red Cross offices work on a"

() 24 mutual aid basis, and certainly we have agreements with

25

O
V

- _ , _



-

8428

,a(,) I other affiliated groups and agencies within Orange County

2 as well as outside the County boundaries, and if for some

(~} 3 reason we would have to -- if a prolonged situation occurred
v

4 whereby we would have to stay in the facility for a week,

5 two weeks, then provisions wculd be made to bring in the

6 extra equipment or whatever else would be necessary to care

7 for the evacueec.

8 Q And in that sense the operation of the recep-

9 tion and care centers in the event of an emergency at SONGS,

10 I gather would differ from the normal operation of your

11 reception and care centers for other emergencies, is that

12 right?

- 13 A That is right.
O\
'#'- 14 0 You mentioned that during the May 13 cxercise,

15 you did actually open your six primary reception and care

16 centers. Is that right?

17 A Yes, during the part of our scenario planning,

18 if you will, in the first six months of the year, we were

I9 only asked by FEMA to open one relocation site, and that

20 site was not designated by us or through the EOC process,

II the County EOC process, that is until the morning of the

22 exercise and we were obviously told by the controllers the

23 various parts of the scenario that that wished to activate,

24 to,only plan for operating one. As part of.our internal

25 preparedness planning, and to expedite our capabilities as

O
4

1

*
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I well, we went ahead and opened all six facilities. We went

2 ahead and established personnel at all six, but equipment

3 enough to handle at least a 300 person evacuation for onet

4 of the facility sites which was established at UCI, Univer-

5 sity of California, Irvine.
<

6,

7
,
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T18, 19 I Q In terms of the personnel necessary tc, staf f your
t'h
U 2 centers in the event of an emergency, dr you have sufficient

3 personnel available to staf f tbcae centers?

4 A Ybs.

5 Q Do you have suf ficient personnel available

6 to staff the reception and care conters which have been

7 designated in connection with the planning for an emergency

I at SONGS?

9 A Okay, I am going to answer that on the basis of

10 yes, we believe so. Our experience is generally again, that

11 based on the size of the evacuation, if we are talking an

12 80-person evacuation, about ten percent will be coming

( 13 to our direction. We' currently have plans to deal with 30

14 shelters running. We know we have the capability to do

15 that, with no problem.

16 There is no questica that if the evacuation, we
'

17 took all 80,000, tnen we would have to activate not just
'

18 500 trained disaster volunteers, but we have a corps of
19 5,000 within the total organization, and then we would be

20 going into our 5,000 volunteers, as well as 180 additional

21 staff that we have within our facilities here.

22 Q Let me ask you essentially the same question in

23 terms of the eqilipment. Do you believe you have sufficient

24 equipment available to you t;r staf fing these centers?

25 A Yes.

f
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1 MR. ROGIN: That is the end of our direct

(D
\_/ 2 testimony.,

3 J.DGE KELLEY: Thank you.

fm
I ' _) 4 CROSS-EXAMit:ATION(

5 BY MS. GALLAGHER:

6 Q Mr. Nash, how many relocation centers did you

7 say there were to be, in the event of an evacuation?
!

i 3 A Okay, there were six primary and/or what we refer
!

9 to as precautionary. Basically by saying that, I am speaking

10 of the fact that no matter what the~ size of the alert might be

11 at the plant, we realize that some people just by virtue of

( 12 hearing through the media might wish to relocate outside of

() 13 the area of already the existing ten miles.
;

I 14 We can go ahead and activate the six, and if we
|

i 15 become overloaded, then we have an additional 22 to 24

16 standing by that will take the entire ten percent of the popu-
|

~

; 17 lation, as I mentioned earlier. We have contractual
,

13 agreements with every school district in Orange County, to
i

i 19 take on every school which would take on the full 80,000.

20 0 Of the six primary location conters, can you tell
|

| 21 me how far each of them is from the plant, as the crow flies?
|

|

/~| (1 22 A Okay, now all are located 25 miles away f rom the ;
' /

l
1

23 p lant .

[}
24 0 Are there any implications of their being within

| 25 the ingostion exposure pathway that you 4.re awarc of, for
!
1

I

|
--- __
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i3 1 your purposes?

2 MR. ROGIN: It is a very broad question when she

3 says any implications. I think we need that narrowed.

4 BY MS. GALLAGHER:

5 Q Well, what planning have pu done, that your

6 relocation centers are within the ingestion exposure pathway?

7 MR. ROGIN: I wou ld add, this witness of course is

8 note involved in the ingestion pathway planning. I am not

9 sure this witness in fact knows what that is, the reception

10 and care centers.
I

11 JUDG3 KELLEY: Why don't we establish that. Do
l

1 12 you ' enow lat the ingestion pathway of the EPZ is?

f() 13 WITNESS NAS!!: Okay, I am familiar with the

14 terminology . I am not f aniliar with the number of miles.
t

| 15 That has been something in terms of our planning the last
16 couple of years, a lot of varied ideas about that number of

17 miles. So what are speaking of, I guess, in terms of miles?
i
'

18 BY MS. GALLAGHER:

19 0 I believe we are talking about 50 miles.

20 MR. ROGIN: But again, we are not talking about

21 someone who ic f amiliar with what the concept means of

22(~) ingestion pathway, and what planning would be done, and what

23 centers might be opened or not opened.
1

! /~S 24 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, I think for openers we canLJ
25 test the witness 's knowledge in this area. Do you understand

__

n
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4 1 the question?

(_~) |

2 WITNESS NASH: I would like to have it repeated. |

3 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Restate your question,
,

('N(j 4 please.

5 BY MS. GALLAGHER:

6 0 In your planning, have you taken into account the

7 location of the centers within the ingestion pathway?

! 8 A Okay, no.
l

i 9 0 Thank you.

10 okay. On your disaster preparedness committee,

11 who are the other staff members?
i

12 A Okay, let me try to explain this in a few terms.

[[]) 13 We have a staff of four within the service who are paid to dea l

| 14 on an everyday basis within the service. We have a disaster
i

15 committee which acts as an advisory committee, if you will, an

16 operations committee, to the program on a daily basis.
_

17 Those personnel are individuals who are

18 volunteers f rom our committee who hold various expertises.i

i

! 19 For example, the chairman of mass care, a chairman of
i
!

20 damage assessment, one responsible for family services, one

21 responsible for health services, and on that committee as well

22 are other individuals who act as advisors in terms of keepingV<g

13 us attuned to how we affect in a day to day preparedness
I

| {s}
24 planning, with the office of emergency services, for example,

! s

25 or the police department, fire department representative.

t



.. -. . _ ..

.

8434
5 1 Also, going with that are volunteers who relate

) 2 to each of these various chairman positions, - and we are talking

3~ a number of 500 volunteers who have been specifically trained

('h
(_j 4 in the various courses I have already mentioned.

5 0 In your background experience, f or example, with

6 Hurricane Agnes, what were your primary duties?

7 A Okay, I was assigned primarily, if I can use the v oad

8 term again of mass care, and on a job that size, I was

'

9 stationed within the city of Danville, Pennsylvania, which is

10 just a few miles south of Wilkes-Barre. The city of Wilkes-

11 Barre, for example, had 80,000 people evacuated in the Wyoming
*

| 12 Va lley .

i

|I( ) 13 My job on a day to day basis was to supervise a

14 number of volunteers who are responsible for providing meals
l

15 at fixed location sites of other evacuees along the route

16 between the Wyoming Valley and Danville.

17 0 Okay. Do you have plans for undertaking

13 decontamination of any evacuees at the relocation centers?

19 MR. ROGIN: Do you mean the Red Cross?

20 BY MS. GALLAGHER:

21 0 Yeo. )
*

22 A Okay. Again that is broad. Let me try to bring
.

|

| 23 it back down to size. In terms of the relocation sites
|

} 24 themselves, we do not have a responsibility for handling the

25 monitoring of or decontamination of victims. That is a part

- _ _ , _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ . _ . - _ . . _ . ~ _ _ _ .



84356 I that is played by another agency within the planning of the

q'
's- 2 county.

3 We are however; at the national level, at the
e

g

ts 4 Red Cross national level, currently writing in to our health

5 services, doctors' standing orders, if you will,for which our

6 nurses operate under, the opportunity for them to understand

7 more in the toxic chemical spill area, as wellas the nuclear

8 area, particularly because of our experiences at Three Mile

9 Is land .
,

10 0 Will potassium iodide be made available to

11 evacuees at relocation centers?

12 A I can't answer that.
.-

( (,) 13 0 IIas it been discussed? I mean, I am not trying

14 to --

15 A sure.

16 0 -- put you on the spot, but I would like to know
_

17 if that is part of the planning at present.

18 A Not with us. I do know, however, that any

19 resources we would need, in terms of the decontamination, and/

20 or again, based upon the situation, we would be finding

21 these kinds of things out through the County-EOC process,

() 22 where again we have an office there, and would have

23 personne l, and if there were any particular types of needs by

() 24 the evacuees, we could establish them at that time, and

25 certainly would attempt to get them f rom the proper resources.

0
|
|
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|7 1 Q How long would it take an evacuation relocation

/ \

' _) 2 center to be ready to receive evacuees?(

3 A That again is a broad statement, or a question,

(_m) 4 and I have to state it on the basis that it depends upon how
r

5 long it takes for the -- at that time the authorities

6 responsible for the incident to let us know.
|

|

| 7 We have personnel throughout all quadrants of the

i 8 county, and basically it depende upon where we are establishinn
L

: 9 those sites.
|

10 Again, if we were to go back to the Larry Fricker

11 situation three weeks ago, we had a facility open in about

12 10 to 15 minutes; because again, the of fice was close to our

[('} 13 of fice -- or the operation was close to the Santa Ana office,

| 14 for example; was a Sunday af ternoon.

15 0 How f ar are your relocation centers from your

! 16 office?
| ..

,

| 17 A We have offices in all -- again, we have one in

18 Laguna Niguel, one in Westminster, one in Fullerton, one in

| 19 Anaheim, plus our headquarters of fice in Santa Tna, and the

20 relocation center sites have been established between

21 Huntington Beach and Tustin. Basically they take in the

22 cities of Orange, the Newport-Mesa School District,
0-)

23 Huntington Beach, Santa Ana, and then of course Tustin.
!
|

24 We are also utilizing the Orange Coast College,

| 25 ) UCI and Golden West Colleges.
(

|
l

_ _ ,_
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'

Q 1 Q Let us assume that you get a phone call from the

O(_/ - 2 EOC -- or f rom -- excuse me, Orange County Communications,

3 that you are to prepare for evacuees. From that point on,

| ('
(_)8 4 given your past experience in the drill, and calling up

5 volunteers and personnel, approximately how many hours would i ;

6 take for you to become operational?

7 A Okay, that is again going to be relative to the

8 . time of the day. The day of the exercise, for example, when

9 we were r'aying true time responses, we utilized 41

10 personnel in terms of that response, but on the basis of the

11 controllers , that the EOC advising us which sequence we were

12 into, we called out personnel f rom their homes, to respond

) 13 directly to the sites, and again, no one knew, based on what

14 the controllers would throw at us, and as a matter of fact,

15 did that day of the exercise, we had Santa Ana high school

16 listed as one of the six precautionary -- or one of the six

17 immediate evacuation centers, 15 you will, and they took that

18 one out of service. It had a water flow problem, so we had to
|

19 immediately designated one of the others that we have in

20 existence.

21 It was taking us about two hours on a true time

| {}
response of getting personnel to that site and getting it22

| 23 truly activated and ready to receive evacuees.

24 Q When you speak of personnel, are you speaking of

25 paid and volunteer personnel?

i
1
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9 1 A Yes.

O
L> 2 Q Okay, in what proportion?

3 A 5,000 volunteers versus 180 paid personnel.

O
't) 4 Q How many persons would it take to staf f, say, each

5 of the major six relocation centers?

6 A Okay, when we respond, we respond with a team of

7 people who have responsibilities for actually running the

3 shelter. That would 'ge a shelter manager and assistant manager ,

9 if you will.

10 You are also dealing with receptionists who will<

11 have to receive the individuals and get the proper

12 registration materials .

' /h 13 we are also dealing with a nurse to two nurses to

14 he at the site, as well as support staf f or personnel, I

15 should say, in this particular case, to handle setting up the '

16 cots, the blankets, and working with the administrative

17 personnel.

13 I guess to answer the question specifically, it

19 could take maybe ten per site.

20 0 And approximately how many evacuees would you

21 expect to be able to handle at each of these sites?

22 A Okay, each site that we have chosen has a

23 maximum capability. Each one is different. We have

24 estimated it at no more than about 300 to 500 people for each

25 site, but again, 'E you take a look at UCI, for example,

-
|
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11 0 1 whereby we have established only 300, there is a potential of
f\
-(_/ 2 as many as ,3,000 there with no problen.

3 0 As you understand the process, will all evacuees

([ be instructed to go to the reception and relocation centers?4

5 A Yes.

6 0 And they will be asked Phen to register, and then

7 if they have other p laces to go, they may go on?

g A That is correct.

9 0 What will be the procedure for reuniting f mnilies?

10 A Okay, again, based on the hour of the day, if

i 11 school would be in, for example, we have again as part of the

12 planning phase, worked in the aspect of students being

( ) 13 relocated to school sites north of 25 miles . At that time,
I'

since we know where the school that are evacuating from the34

15 area are going to, we can begin to try to unite the families

! 16 as they are coming in to relocation center sites by again

17 calling up the various f acility sites and uniting the two
!

| '

33 together.

39 It is a process that is obviously going to take a

20 little time. Can't tell, in that terms of time what we are

21 talking about, but it has been worked out. It has been
'

22 es tablished .
s

23 A disaster welf are inquiry process, as we are

24 terming this, is one that we work on, on all disaster({}
15 operations, and if I can, let me give you an example, that in

_

I

! !'

._1.. - - ..-. .. . . . - _ - .
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'll 3 the Wichita Falls, Texas operation, '79, in a matter of 24

'k) 2 hours, we were dealing with 10,000 requests, based on from

3 throughout the country, as well as internally, wishing to
1 m

(_) 4 know where their friends and relatives are, and within that

5 24-hour period of the disaster itself, we had computerized all
|

6 the requests on the evacuees, and were able to unite and

7 relocate f amilies.

|

3 0 Will you have computer capability at the

9 relocation centers here?
|

10 A okay, not computer capabilities at the center,
|

i 11 but certainly through corporate arrangements we have made

12 loca lly, to have that, yes.

' (~) 13 Q How will those phone calls be redirected to the --
'

s.>

14 will you have to process each phone call, each inquiry yourself ,

15 and then feed it to a computer?

16 A In terms of dealing with the evacuees themselves,
r

-
- . -

_

j 17 we try to stay away from the telephone situation, because we
!

13 realize in a school that there is only a certain number of

19 phones that already exist there, and again, based on the lead

'O time for the evacuees' arrival, it is going to be -- well, it
i

21 would be a great amount of time, obviou s ly, to get the phone

p 22 company and to establish, to what we have done is prepared the
U

i 23 use of a 2-meter basis. These are 2-meter radio equipment, if

24 you will.
V(^T

,

25 We have ham radio operators standing by that would

t

i
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12 1 be sent to each of those facility sites, and any oroblems that

() 2 occurred, any unique kind of notification of f amilies can by
,

3 done via that system.

() 4 Our disaster welf are inquiry process allows us to

5 immediately register the people in each f acility site, and , ,

I 6 then transfer those records directly to our main office, and

7 there they are handled in a manner, if you will, that we

8 have established, aegin uniting the families together.s

9

10

11
i

12
l .

'(]) 13

1

14

15

: 16

i -
,

17

18

;

19>

20

21

'2
C)>

. 23

()
254

,

., - , , , - - . . - , . .,
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Q Is the Red Cross in any way rsponsible forgggtp19-11
2 providing transportation to persons who have no available

3 transportation?

'

4 A You are speaking in terms of this particular

5 scenario, the SONGS incident?

6 0 Yes.

7 A No.
E

8 Q Have you in your planning considered whether

9 the nature of a radiological accident might trigger a differ-

10 ent response to an appeal for volunteers than other requests

11 made previously for volunteers to assist in non-radiological

12 accidents?

13 MR. ROGIN: Do you uaderstand the question?
/ ,-

ss' 14 WITNESS NASH: No.

15 MR. ROGIN: Maybe she could rephrase it.

16 BY MS. GALLAGHER:

17 O Have you considered whether you will be as
*

18 successful as you have been historically in obtaining

19 volunteers in the event of a radiological emergency?

20 A You are speaking about volunteers to man the

21 reception and ctre centers now?

22 Q Yes.

23 A Since we have nc history of it in Orange County
'

'

t 24 at this point and based on our experiences at. Three Mile
j

25 Island, where we did not see this problem, we feel that we |

|
|

|

mj
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,

(,,) 2 1 realize -- and let me preface this by saying that even i

2 though we have established centers we tIve to realize that

r~'s 3 af ter the incident occurs, based on wind conditions and
()

4 what have you, all those sites may change, again, relative

5 to that particular problem. We realize that we are not

6 going to jeopardize anybody's life in any way possible, so

7 I would think that if we are taking people into safe areas

8 that we wi'l have no problem recruiting the volunteers to

9 as well man those same facilities.

10 Q What was the experience of the Red Cross at TMI?

11 A Okay. I was not there.-

12 0 But you referred to it.

13 A Records only. In terms of, again, the Red Cross,O
O 14 handled the relocation sites for the evacuees.

15 0 You mentioned in connection with TMI that you
16 are now, the National Red Cross is now considering - ' - -

17 logical training. Can you enlarge upon that?

18 A Okay. Let me rephrase that. It was not in
~

.

19 terms of radiological training, but as far as our nurses, if

20 you will, how to better understand if somebody came in that

21 seemed to appear to be contaminated and/or the people within
12 the facility cencerned about it, again, only relative to the

23 health care of those individuals. And to better understand

() 24 how they might be separated from other people.in the facility,

25 That's all.

C'O

.
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,-

( )3 1 Q Have you any knowledge of the percentage of

2 evacuees who might be among what is termed the frail elderly?
5 A No.

4 0 Have you made any arrangements for observation

5 and response to the health of persons whose health might

6 deteriorate after they arrive?

7 A Yes. We have an on-going agreement with the

8 Department of Social Services with the County of Orange in

9 that the minute we establish relocation center sites these
10 sites will automatically have individuals, if you will, from

II the Department of Social Serv' ices sent to each of those

12 facility site that have geriatric background, that have

13 experiences in dealing with the elderly, handicapped children
O

,

14 if you will, those kinds of backgrounds.

15 0 And you mentioned handicapped. What other provi-

16 sions, if any, have you made for receiving aandicapped
17 evacuees?

I8 A Nons

19 Q Have you made any arrangement for the care of

20 pets at relocation centers?

21 A Pets are always a problem; there's no question

22 of that. The only thing I can now say is that, again, it is

23 based on the situation, the amount of lead time that we have
G
ig 24 for the evacuation. If I can again go back to the Larry

25 Fricker situation just three weeks ago, we had to ask Animal
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I''14 1 Control to come in and individuals who brought pets to the
\J

2 relocation nite were offered the opportunity to have those

3 animals taken to the animal shelter whereby, again, they-~

4 were properly cared for until tha next day they could pick

5 them up and they obviously handled that very well because

: 6 they realized that the shelter was not the place for the

7 animal to begin with.

8 0 What arrangements have been made for sicas

9 directing evacuees to parking and once they get on -- for

10 example, UCI is a pretty large and confusing campus. What

11 signing arrangements have been made directing them to the

12 relocation?

13 A Sure. There are no predesignated, preplaced,

'

14 signs, if you will. We obviously, again, have to work from

18 the basis of the center from where we are working. At UCI'

16 it is very easy because you have campus police and in the

17 case of the exercise on May 13 campus police were instructed

- 18 to close off specific routes so that as buses, if you will,

19 would enter the grounds, could go through a decontamination

20 process and then frc; there the victims were then sent to

21 buildings that we were occupying at that time.

12 0 And will tha campus police also direct the traffic

23 control in the parking areas?

(,~) 24 A That's correct.

25 MS. GALLAGIIER: I believe that is all. Thank you
;

O
V

~
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(]) 5 1 very much,!!r. Nash.

2 WITNESS NASH: Thank yvu.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Staff?r-)(/
4 MR. HOEFLING: No questions, Mr. Chairman.

; 5 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Nash, with respect to how

6 long these reception care centers might operate or be called
i
i 7 upon to operata, do you have any -- does the Red Cross have
i

8 a sort of outer bound in its own mind as to how long in a

j 9 maximum sense you might operate them or, alternatively, do

10 you just look at what it would take to operate longer,

11 another week, another month, and as long as you can extend

12 food supplies and related things you would do so?

13 WITNESS NASH: Okay. To answer *. hat, the latter
..rm

'' 14 sounds very close to it. It ie., again, by the disaster situa-

15 tion. If you are talking a hurricane, obviously we handle

| 16 it on the basis of it may be a precautionary evacuation and
|

| 17 the need for the center to be there may only be a week. We
_

18 don't really take a look at any kind of a disaster as far as

19 looking at how quickly can we get the people in and obviously
|

20 get them out. But we'll obviously keep them open on the

21 bcsis of how long they are needed.

22 JUDGE KELLEY: Is there any charge to people who
:

|
23 come to these centers?

() 24 WITNESS NASH: No. Again, oy Congressional

i 25 ma;4 ate we are not allowed to charge for the services.

'(

- . ..
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(~') 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Congressional mandate? I might
U

2 have been out of the room.

f~s 3 MR. ROGIN: We did discuss on the direct examina-
U

4 tion that the Red Cross is a Congressionally chartered organ-

5 ization with certain Congressional mandates.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: But they can't charge people who

7 receive these services?

8 WITNESS NASH: No.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. In your experience in the

10 various disasteru you referred to have you found any particu-

11 lar problems arising out of the. phenomenon of separated

12 families? I have in mind people who insist on going to the

, _ 13 school and trying to find their kid rather than just letting
,e s,

~'
14 the kid be taken off in the bus and so forth. Is family

15 separation in your experience a difficult aspect of this

| 16 kind of work?

17 WITNESS NASH: I personally have never dealt with

18 the problem. As far as is it a problem to be dealt with4

19 and planned for, yes.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Can you specify what kinds of

21 things, in your view, are areas of concern? That's kind of

i 22 a broad question, I know, but if you could give it a try. !

; 23 WITNESS NASH: It is, again, based on I think

(]) 24 a human emotion type thing. If mom is at home and she is

25 evacuated to one location site and students taken somewhere

.- . .
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(m 'l else and dad's in Los Angeles and he is taken somewhere else(_) 7
2 and it does take 24 hours, then it is as simple as that. As

('T 3 I said, the procedures have 'oeen outlined, it is an exper-%)
4 ience that we always have to deal with because, again, if I

5 can refer to just even recent incidences within Orange County.

6 the minute we open a center whereby f amilies are evacuated to

7 we begin getting deluged very quickly with calls wanting to

8 know how grandmother is or, again, on the basis of where is

9 my daughter so I can find out if she would like to come live

10 with me instead of being where she is now. It is, again,

11 just based on the disaster, I have to say.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: But the problem is inherent in any

13,7 s situation where you have too quick evacuation, I would
''

14 assume.

15 WITNESS NASH: Yes.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: But it is the kind of thing that
' I7

_
_is in fact dealt with by the people running centers like the

18 ones you described.

19 WITNESS NASH: Yes.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Any redirect?

21 MR. ROGIN: No, we would not have any.

22 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Nash, thank you very much.

23 You are excused.
O
\_/ 24 (The witness was excused.)

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Doesn't that complete today's

O)'u,

.. . .
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|

() 8 1 subpenaed witnesses?

2 MR. ROGIN: It does, except for a couple of

r~T 3 procedural matters, I gather.
()

4 MR. PIGOTT: First a procedural matter with

5 respect to non-emergency planning. The 3rd of September is

6 the date on which Applicants are to file their proposed

7 findings of fact and conclusions of law and briefs in support

8 thereof. I have talked to Mr. Wharton. We have agreed that

9 the findings of facts and conclusions will go in as scheduled

to but he has allowed me an extra one week on the filing of the

11 briefs in support of that, if that meets with the Board's

12 approval.

- 13 JUDGE KELLEY: Any comment from the Staff?
?p

# 14 MR. HOEFLING: We have no objection to that, -

15 Mr. Chairman.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: So ordered.

17 MR, PIGOTT: Thank you. Secondl|7, as I stated
__. ._

18 I believe on Friday, the Aplpicants would be filing a document

19 with respect to low power testing and fuel loading. I will

20 now lodge with the Board the original to the Chairman and

21 serve the copies on the parties that are in the room a

22 document entitled " Alternative Motion of Applicants Southern

23 California Edison Company, et al, for an Operating License

() 24 for Fuel Loading and Low Power Testing". I will distribute
'

25 these.

O

:
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!(-)tp20 1 (Pause while Applicant distributes the documents. )'

2 MR. PIGOTT:- Personal service of this motion

/' 3b) will be affected on Mr. Wharton tomorrow. I believe this

4 will formally put the matter on the record. When you

5 examine the document you will find that it is the basic

6 document asking for the license in question. It does not

7 include procedural matters. I would contemplate tomorrow

8 morning making an oral motion under 730 to the Board for

9 the appropriate procedr.res to move this particular motion
10 along, the written motion along.,

II JUDGE KELLEY: Such as due dates for~ response?
12 and so forth? *

13,g MR. PIGOTT: For setting issues and testimony,
~J 14 yes. Responses, issues, and testimony I guess would be the

15 three.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes. My first question was from

17 what's been said and just given the context, I wouldn't be

18 surprised if you wanted or you would ask for a somewhat

19 more accelerated responses than the rules otherwise provide,
20 which in the case of the Staff is 15 days.

21 MR. PIGOTT: That's correct.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: So you will be addressing that.

23 MR. PIGOTT: Yes.

O)(_ 24 JUDGE KELLEY: Plus responses -- responses plus

25 and what else?

l

\.

_ ,-
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(~) 2 1 MR. PIGOTT: Plus a formulation of issues. Whether
%.s

2 or not there is an issue to be tried or heatl. I think that

(~S 3 is aquestion that will have to be addressed.
L)

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Sure. But wouldn't that be in

5 the respnse? Maybe you want to wait until tomorrow norning.

6 MR. PIGOTT: Well, all right. Maybe it should

7 wait until tomorrow morning. But that is the type of an

8 oral motion I would contemplate.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. And the third point,

10 though, just so I have a fix?

11 MR. PIGOTT: For tomorrow?

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

13 MR. PIGOTT: It would be issues, responses and-
<

(~%
'\- 14 the filing of testimony.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Right.

16 MR. PIGOTT: If in fact there's an issue to be

17 heard.

18
'

JUDGE KELLEY: But you will be stating the

19 Applicants' position on all three points?

20 MR. PIGOTT. Correct.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Right. Fine.

22 MR. PIGOTT: And that is all I would have on that

23 particular item at this time. The other question that I would

() 24 have in closing for today, I believe we were to be provided
25 with the exhibit and backup tests of Mr. Plotkin, unless that

(~n)-
'

.-

. .
- .

- . .
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(~)! 3 1 has been given to one of my associates in my absence.
<-

2 MS. GALLAGHER: No, I'm sorry. We had some

3 production problems with that today. We will getsit to you
( w)
-

'~
4 very shortly.

5 MR. PIGOTT: Are we going to get to Dr. Plotkin

6 this week, such that it becomes a rush? Frankly, I think it

7 is rather marginal to rush it.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: I hadn't thought so. You had your

9 listing plus the two witnesses or two plus a redirect that

10 we were going to fit in. For example, you don't happen to

11 have -- was it Mr. Woodard who got started on Friday and was

12 aborted?

13 MR. PIGOTT: He'l.1 be back on Wednesday.f,

^ !4 JUDGE KELLEY: He's not here today?

15 MR. PIGOTT: No. He'll be cack on Wednesday.

; 16 JUDGE KELLF.Y: I didn' t thir.k so , in short, that

17 we would get to Plotkin. Did you think in those terms at

18 all? '

19 MR. MC CLUNG: We have been acting under the

20 supposition that he would be coring in the week following

21 the 21st and we've made arrangements for him to be available
1

22 starting then and he is currently not available this week,

23 so we'd have a lot of problems doing that anyway.

() 24 JUDGE KELLEY: I think that's the. answer then.

25 We won't think in terms of his being here.

()'

.

v-- -w
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,() 1 MR. PIGOTT: We'd still like the exhibits and the

2 backup, of course. I guess I'd have the same request with

k'''J the other expert that I believe they indicated is going to% 3

4 be called. Is there someone else that worked with Dr.

5 Plotkin? Dr. Lyon I think is the subpenaed name.

6 MR. MC CLUNG: Yes. Any detailed graphs and

7 charts that were relied on by Dr. Lyon will be provided at

8 the same time. In fact, I'm under the understanding that

9 they are the same.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: The time you envision now is

Il exactly when?

12 MS. GALLAGHER: We had problems in production and,

13 we should be able to have them by no later thel Wednesday.,.

'~ 14 JUDGE KELLEY: As long as it is clear we are not

15 going to call these witnesses until the 21st session then

16 I would assume sometime this week is okay.
17 MR. PIGOTT: Fine.

. . . . -

18 JUDGE KELL 3Y: Anything else from the Applicants
!

19 at this point?
,

i

20 MR. PIGOTT: We will be providing the outlines

21 for further subpenaed witnesses at the conclusion of the day.
12 We will just informally hand those out. And also the cases,

23 copies of the cases that the Board requested either have been

P)\_ 24 distributed or at least they are available at.this time.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Good. And tomorrow we will have

-.
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("_/
; 1 your next three on the list, right?

x

2 MR. PIGOTT: That's correct. Mr. Stowe from

em 3 Parks and two more witnesses.
b

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

5 MR. PIGOTT: It would look, based on today, that

6 we will probably have a prett" full week with Applicants'

7 case because we do have Mr. Filmer and Mr. Woodard. With

8 respect to Mr. Brothers on the evacuation routes that was

9 on Saturday, my current review of the transcript of his

10 testimony leaves me with the impression that I do not see

11 any redirect for Mr. Brothers. However, in view of the

12 discussion concerning Applicants' approach and so on to the

13 evaluation of earthquakes below the SSE in emergency planningf

'

14 and perhaps with the explanation that I gave earlier in the

15 afternoon concerning our approach, if the Board thinks that

16 it may have further questions of Mr. Brothers, we would of

17 course be willing to call him back for any clarification

18 because it did seem that there may have been some confusion
-'

19 as to the basic premise of the questions and the answers.

20 If your review of the record indicates that you would like

21 some clarification or have some further questions, I would

22 certainly be pleased to bring him back.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: We'll take another look at

()I 24 Saturday's transcript, I guess, particularly in the light

'25 of your explanation this afternoon.

O
'

.
- .
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() 1 MR. PIGOTT: Otherwise I don't think we have any

2 intention of calling Mr. Brothers back is just why I say it.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. And it will be -- the{}
4 burden will be on us to let you know in a week or so whether

i 5 we have any further questions, based upon our reading of tha

6 transcript.

7 Anything else?

3 MR. PISOTT: I think that's it from Applicants.
;

| 9 MS. GALLAGHER: Nothing else.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Staff?

13 MR. HOEFLING: Nothing.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Tomorrow raorning, then, at

- 13 nine o' clock. We'll adjourn for today...

'O
14 (Thereupon, at 4 : 35 p.m. , the learing was'

15 adjourned, to reconvene at 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, September

16 1, 1981.)
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